
 

                   

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

  
                                                 

  
 

 
 

  
  

 
             

           
 

  
 
 
  
 

 
     

 
 

  
   
 

      
     

 

 
 

 

lffi] Framingham State University 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BOARD MEETING ◘  MARCH 27, 2019 6:30 P.M.  ◘   ALUMNI ROOM, MCCARTHY CENTER 

AGENDA 

1.0 Chair’s Report 
1.1 Consent Agenda Action Items: 

1.1.1 Approval minutes from January 30, 2019 meeting  Attachment 
1.1.2    Approval Personnel Actions List   Attachment 

1.2 Board of Trustees Retreat – May 16, 2019 
1.3 FSU Foundation Board Report 

2.0 President’s Report 
2.1 Update on Executive Searches 
2.2 Planned Advocacy with Congressional Delegation – April 2019 
2.3 Council on Diversity and Inclusion Excellence (DICE) Report Attachment 
2.4    Advancement Report Attachment 
2.5    Student-in-the- Spotlight  Attachment 

3.0 Student Trustee Report 
3.1 Election of New SGA Officers 
3.2 Budget Updates:  SGA Budget and FSU Capital Budget Process 
3.3 Upcoming SGA Open House & Elections 

4.0 Academic Affairs Subcommittee (Trustee Budwig) 
4.1 Academic Affairs subcommittee report 

5.0 Enrollment and Student Development Subcommittee (Trustee Herr) 
5.1 Enrollment and Student Development subcommittee report 

5.1.1  Social Media @ FSU 

6.0 Administration, Finance and Technology (Trustee Grilli) 
9.1    Trustee Update/Discussion Items (Finance Committee Items) 
9.2 Approval of Restatement of FY’18 Audit Attachment 

7.0 New Business 

8.0 Public Comment 

9.0 Adjourn Open Meeting 



 

       1.0 Chair’s Report 



                                    

 

 

     

       

 

         

       
 

 

 

                             
       

 

~ Framingham 
~ State University 

Attachment 

Framingham State University 

Request for Trustee Action 

Date: March 27, 2019 

Subject: Approval of Minutes 

RESOLUTION 

The Framingham State University Board of Trustees (the “Trustees”) hereby approves the minutes from the 
January 30, 2019 meeting. 



 

            
    

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

       
 
           

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

lffi] Framingham State University 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

The meeting of the full board of trustees was called to order at 6:30 PM. 

In Attendance:  Trustees Foley, Logan, Bielat, Budwig, Ferguson, Herr, Hubbard, Neshe, and 
Quezada. 

Call to Order: 

Chair Kevin Foley called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

1.0 Chair’s Report  
Chair Foley asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda that included the 

following: 
 Minutes (November 28, 2018) 
 Executive Session Minutes (November 28, 2018)  
 Personnel Actions 

**************** 
On a motion duly made and seconded it was voted to approve the consent agenda 

including the minutes from the November 28, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting, the 
executive session minutes from the November 28, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting, and 

the personnel actions report.   
**************** 

Chair Foley reminded trustees about the DHE’s Annual Trustee Conference taking place 
on Thursday, March 28 at the Doubletree Hotel in Westborough and asked them to let 
him know if they are planning to attend.    

Chair Foley also reminded the Trustees about the proposed Trustee Retreat scheduled for 
May 16, 2019.  Trustees with conflicts with the date were asked to respond to Chair 
Foley and Ann McDonald (Chief of Staff, General Counsel, and Secretary to the Board). 

Chair Foley concluded his report by congratulating Trustee Dana Neshe on being named 
the Chief Operating Officer at Middlesex Savings Bank.  

2.0 President’s Report 
President Javier Cevallos remarked on the items below: 
 The budget process began with Governor’s budget for FSU showing a 3.8% 

increase for the campus.  The funds for the Mass Grant that we are hoping for did 
not appear in the budget.  
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

 A recent life sciences event was  held on campus and attended by the Lieutenant 
Governor, Karen Polito.   

 The Danforth Art Museum @ FSU is continuing to prepare for their opening in 
April.  The museum will be a great asset for the University and the community.  
There will be naming opportunities at Danforth for approximately 10 benches at a 
cost of approximately $1500 each.   

in April.  Ms. Gonzalez also commented on the Open Educational Resources initiative 
that will make materials more affordable and accessible to student.       

President Cevallos invited Dr. LaDonna Bridges (Associate Dean of Academic Success) 
to make a presentation on services for students with disabilities.  The presentation 
included an overview of the staff and services of Center for Academic Success and 
Achievement, as well as the changing landscape and complexity of issues that they 
encounter on a regular basis.

Trustee Herr asked if there is a cost to departments for their services.  Dr. Bridges 
responded that her office covers costs from her departmental budget.  Trustee Quezada 
asked if we have data about the ethnic and racial diversity of students who are using 
disability services.  Dr. Bridges responded affirmatively.   Trustee Quezada also asked 
about the services the library provides for students with disabilities.  Dr. Bridges 
responded that when Ms. Gonzalez worked in the library, they collaborated on accessible 

 Eric Gustafson (Vice President of Development and Alumni Relations) could not 
be here tonight but will give a fundraising update at the next Board meeting. 

President Cevallos invited Millie Gonzalez (Interim Chief Officer of Diversity, Inclusion, 
and Community Engagement) to provide an update from her division.  Ms. Gonzalez 
noted that the trustees received a handout that included dates of upcoming events and 
initiatives.  Ms. Gonzalez invited the trustees to attend the events and noted that we will 
be rolling out the campus climate survey results and hope to have more feedback on that 

learning.   

Another trustee asked if there has been a noticeable change over time.  Dr. Bridges 
commented the acuity and complexity of mental health issues have been the biggest 
change.  Trustee Hubbard asked to see the slide again that showed the increase in 
numbers of students using services.  Dr. Bridges attributed the increase as rise in mental 
health diagnosis. Trustee Bielat inquired about formalized training for faculty.  Dr. 
Bridges responded affirmatively and added that the Student Assistance Team works 
individually with faculty on a student by student basis.    Trustee Ferguson asked if there 
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4.0 Academic Affairs Committee 
Trustee Budwig provided updates about three presentations that were made to the 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

are faculty members in CASA.  Dr. Bridges responded that CASA does not have faculty 
but that faculty are good about having us help with them with their blackboard sites.     

President Cevallos invited Dr. Lisa Eck, Professor from the English Department to 
introduce Nick Ironside for the Student-in-the-Spotlight presentation.  Dr. Eck, who is 
also the Coordinator of Arts & Ideas program, distributed the Spring 2019 Arts & Ideas 

ESL.  Nick credits the University’s MED program with fusing his journalism background 

Trustee Ferguson reported the following: 
 SGA got off to a rocky start with the semester with some officer roles not filled.   

SGA has been working on parking issues and updating signage in McCarthy.  They 
are exploring options to install a kiosk in the lobby of McCarthy to help direct people 
to where they need to be. 

 The Administrators Forum took place on February 20th.  

Chair Foley asked about the nature of the forum.  Trustee Ferguson explained that is an 
opportunity for students to address concerns with administrators.  President Cevallos 
added that it is an open forum for dialogue between the two groups.    

schedule and invited the Trustees to attend the upcoming events.  

Mr. Ironside, a current graduate student in the Master of Education program, shared that 
until a few years ago he did not anticipate a career in education.  While studying as an 
undergraduate at Curry College, he worked at the Boston Globe as a Sports 
Correspondent, which led him to other positions in Journalism outside of New England.   
He covered crime, college athletics, and eventually found that he really enjoyed working 
with students.  He enjoys working with English learners and will be taking his MTEL 

with this interest in education.   

3.0 Student Trustee Report 

Academic Affairs Committee. The Committee selected the topic of retention for 
presentation tonight.  

Trustee Budwig attended a national conference last week and was happy to see that FSU 
had a presence.  The academic Deans came together in a cohesive way to talk about 
academic success.  Trustee Budwig reported that there is a buzz about Framingham State 
which she was not expecting at this meeting with several thousand people.  She was 
proud to see FSU on the map. 
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national trend.  Addressing and servicing the needs of students with mental health 
conditions is something that all of the state universities are dealing with and Dr. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

Trustee Budwig invited Lauren Keville, Director of Student Retention & Graduation 
Success Initiatives to present to the Board.  Ms. Keville presented data about students 
who left FSU after the fall 2017 semester.  The data showed that out of 229 students who 
exited, 100 did not enroll at another college.  Twenty nine of those students were first 
generation. Ms. Keville distributed a handout entitled “Detailed Withdrawal Reasons” 

       Enrollment and Student Development Committee 
Trustee Herr briefly remarked about the work of the Enrollment and Student 
Development Committee and invited Dr. Lorretta Holloway to provide highlights.  Dr.
Holloway referred Trustees to the full copy of the PowerPoint presentation of enrollment 
updates and analytics contained in the board packets.   

Dr.  Holloway highlighted that Michelle Yestrepsky and the board of the RAMS 
Resource Center recently received the University’s RAM (Recognition of Achievement 
and Merit Award).  She also noted that the Governor will be on campus for the Student 
Homelessness Initiative tomorrow.  The first cohort for this new initiative will house 
students from FSU and Mass Bay Community College.  More details will be presented at 
tomorrow’s meeting.   

Dr. Holloway reported there is a 28% increase in the number individual therapy sessions 
over the same period in 2017 in the Counseling Center.  Increase is consistent with a 

which states reasons why students are leaving the University. 

The trustees discussed some of the reasons noted for withdrawal including attendance at a 
two year college, financial reasons, uncertain of their major or not feeling a sense of 
belonging on campus.  Ms. Keville offered to provide more details.  Trustee Herr asked 
questions about the schools that students are transferring to.  Trustee Logan asked if we 
know the majors of students transferring into FSU. 

5.0 

Holloway asked the President to talk about this issue with the Council of Presidents.     

Trustee Herr mentioned that he heard FSU mentioned 4 times on the news due to the 
Lieutenant Governor’s visit.  Trustee Foley commented that it was good exposure.   

6.0        Compliance, Audit, and Risk Committee 
Trustee Neshe remarked that the FSU Internal CAR Committee is re-reviewing the 
Deloitte report as well as going back to developing a compliance grid of applicable 
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7.0         General Counsel 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
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federal and state regulations.  The CAR committee is looking forward to hearing more 
about the work they are doing in the months ahead. 

Trustee Neshe commented that the committee had a good meeting with Tammy and 
Rachel.  She noted that risk management is everyone’s job.  Tammy will be working with 
departments on policies and procedures and internal controls.   The following priority 
areas were identified: 

o Vendor maintenance 
o Payments 
o Fixed Assets 

A schedule of internal audits for 2020 will be shared at next meeting. 

Trustee Neshe reported that the committee also had conversation about a draft assessment 
for NSLDS reporting, a topic that has been discussed previously.  She reported that 
Tammy reviewed this area again and report showed an error rate but the Registrar was 
able to speak to changes being made to correct issue.  Trustee Neshe reported that the 
committee has faith that between the Registrar’s Office and Tammy we should be able to 
rectify this matter. 

Trustee Neshe also remarked that Patrick Laughran (Chief Information Officer) was at 
the CAR committee meeting and provided an update on the Chief Security Officer 
opening.  She said Mr. Laughran and his team have taken on some of the duties of the 
vacant CSO position, most notably, the work on patching and identification of 
vulnerabilities continues to happen on a timely basis.   

Trustee Neshe also commented that the committee had a positive meeting with Ann 
McDonald (General Counsel) and Tammy Till (Manager – Financial Controls).   

Dr. Dale Hamel presented on behalf of Ann McDonald who was unable to attend the 
meeting.  Dr. Hamel reported that the full Board of Higher Education approved the 
revised Equal Opportunity, Diversity, and Affirmative Action Plan (EOP) which still 
required approval from the campus Board of Trustees.  Dr. Hamel mentioned that the 
Trustees have a copy of revised EOP and document that lists the substantive changes in 
the new EOP.  He also reminded the Board that Kimberly Dexter presented information 
about Title IX and the changes at their November meeting.   

**************** 
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Trustee Neshe asked if the money for the Danforth is an unsecured line of credit.  Dr. Hamel 
responded in the affirmative. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

On a motion duly made and seconded it was voted to approve the Equal Opportunity, 
Diversity, and Affirmative Action Plan as written and approved by the Board of Higher 

Education on  
September 28, 2018.    
**************** 

8.0 Administration, Finance and Technology Committee 
Trustee Grilli reported that the FY 2018 Financial Audit had no findings and audit is fine but 
the state comptroller has asked us to make a change as referenced on the first page of the blue 
sheet.  Trustee Grilli invited Dr. Dale Hamel (Executive Vice President of Administration, 
Finance, and Technology) to provide remarks.  

Dr. Hamel reiterated the Governor’s proposed budget has a 3.8% increase and noted in our 
predictions we have been anticipating a 3% increase.  He remarked that we have not seen 
house or senate budgets and are have built in an offset for the continuing decline in 
enrollment while also seeking additional increases in state aid.   

Dr. Hamel reported that we did not get the amount that we wanted for capital improvements 
but the University is moving forward with upgrades.  He then turned the focus to the 
Danforth Art Museum improvements and unanticipated costs that need trustee action and 
noted the motion included in tonight’s agenda.   

Trustee Herr asked about the issue with electrical work.  Dr. Hamel responded that we were 
not anticipating upgrading the electrical panel which then required other changes.   

Trustee Herr asked for clarification on whether we are budgeting at 3% or 3.8%.  Dr. Hamel 
responded 3% and remarked that $300K is the differential.  He continued that the budget 
indicates reductions of $500K so will offset those reductions if we get the additional amount.   

**************** 
On a motion duly made and seconded it was voted to approve drawing from an approved 

line of credit, up to a maximum of $150,000 (one-hundred-fifty-thousand dollars), 
through MutualOne Bank for costs associated with the FSU Cultural Arts Center 

(“Maynard Building”) Project. Repayment to be made through the Danforth Museum 
Trust Fund.  
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
◘   ALUMNI ROOM, 303 – MCCARTHY CENTER 

************** 

9.0 New Business 
There was no new business. 

10.0 Public Comment 

Dr. Sarah Pilkenton, Professor in the Chemistry & Food Science department, made an 
impassioned plea to the Trustees to think about and understand how demoralized the 
faculty feel having been 578 days without a contract and are finding it hard to have the 
growth mindset that is beneficial for teaching in  classroom and preparing students to 
enter society when they have been made to feel this way for such a prolonged period of 
time, noting that the Commonwealth tax revenues were higher than anticipated.      

Dr. Virginia Rutter, professor in the Sociology department and Vice President of the 
MSCA chapter on campus distributed a handout, “News from MSCA”.  She remarked 
that there is a crisis at Framingham State and faculty have been playing nice but are now 
aggressively seeking work to rule.  She said this hurts are students.  She said the union 
has been bargaining in good faith, we have an agreement, the COP and bargaining team 
are being disingenuous, and we still do not have a contract.  She provided that the reason 
she is addressing the Trustees is because the system is broken, the leaders that they 
supervise are not responsive.  Earnest faculty have been speaking to their presidents.  Dr. 
Rutter continued that the response that they keep getting back is patronizing and has 
quality of gas lighting – a metaphor for what you see is happening isn’t really happening.  
Dr. Rutter implored the Board to ask questions, exercise their commitments and state 
publicly their commitment.  

Trustee Foley asked if there were any other comments.  He then thanked the faculty for 
attending and sharing their comments.  

11.0 Adjourn Open Meeting 
Chair Foley called for a motion to adjourn the open meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

**** 
On a motion duly made and seconded, it was unanimously voted to adjourn the open meeting of 

the Board of Trustees. 
**** 

The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES  ◘   BOARD MEETING   ◘ JANUARY 30   6:30 P.M.     
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Respectfully Submitted,   

Kevin Foley 
Chair 

Framingham State University, Board of Trustees 

Dr. F. Javier Cevallos 
President 

Framingham State University 
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Attachment 

Framingham State University 

Request for Trustee Action 

Date: March 27, 2019 

Subject: Personnel Actions 

RESOLUTION 

The Framingham State University Board of Trustees (the “Trustees”) hereby approves the attached Personnel 
Actions. 



   
              
          

 
 

 
 

  
 

    
  
  

     
  
  
 

    
  
 

    
  
 

    
  

 
   

  
 

        
  

 
       

  
 

        
 

 
        

 
 

 
        

 
 

       
  
  

 
        

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 
March 27, 2019 

Page 1 of 3 

PERSONNEL ACTIONS 

3rd YEAR REVIEW & REAPPOINTMENT TO 4th YEAR 

Sanchez-Connally, Patricia Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Sociology 

Skypeck, Frances Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Accounting, Economics, 
& Finance 

Solomon, Folashade Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Education 

Souza, Brian Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Food & Nutrition 

Westall, Samantha Assistant Librarian Effective: 09/01/2019 
Whittemore Library 

4th YEAR REVIEW & REAPPOINTMENT TO 5th YEAR 

Bell, Dwayne Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Chemistry & Food Science 

Caffrey, Mary Kate Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Communication Arts 

Chaar, May Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Mathematics 

Deniz, Borga Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Management & Business 
Information Technology 

Krul, Michael Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Mathematics 

Lamontagne, Laura Assistant Professor Effective: 09/01/2019 
Accounting, Economics, 
& Finance 

Meunier, Suzanne Assistant Librarian Effective: 09/01/2019 
Whittemore Library 



   
   
 

   
              
          

 
 

       
 

 
        

 
 

        
 

 
 

  
   

       
 

 
        

 
 

        
 

   
       

  
 

       
 

 
      

   
 

      
 

 
       

  
  

          
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 
March 21, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 

Obaid, Margaret Assistant Professor 
Psychology & Philosophy 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Rincon, Lina Assistant Professor 
Sociology 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

White, Jeffrey Assistant Professor 
Biology 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

5th YEAR REVIEW & REAPPOINTMENT TO 6th YEAR 

Bentley, George Assistant Professor 
Geography 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Coelho, Joseph Assistant Professor 
Political Science 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Connolly, Bryan Assistant Professor 
Biology 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Gentry, Christian Assistant Professor 
Art & Music 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Lin, Phoebe Assistant Professor 
Psychology & Philosophy 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Mannam, Vinay Assistant Professor 
Chemistry & Food Science 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Penmatsa, Satish Assistant Professor 
Computer Science 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Riveras, Jorge Assistant Professor 
Business 

Effective: 09/01/2019 

Zhang, Ruirui Assistant Professor 
Fashion Design & Retailing 

Effective: 09/01/2019 



   
              
           

 
 

 
 

                 
                                                         
 
 

 
 

     
     
    
 

      
     
    
 

         
                                                        
    
  

   
 

 
     

   
 

      
   
  

      
   
 

    
   
 

   
  

 
 

 
 

   
  
  
 
 
  

Adhibhatta, Santosha 

Crane, Stephanie 

Galang, Roy 

Masse, Jeffrey 

Dickie, Sandra 

Farnham, Josette 

McDonald, Grace 

Moore, Ivonne 

Modir Khazeni, 
Seyedeh Mahnaz 

Soriano, Beverly 

ATTACHMENT 
March 21, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 

FULL TIME TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS 

Assistant Professor Effective: 01/22/2019 
Physics & Earth Science Semester Salary Rate: $32,195 

STAFF APPOINTMENTS 

Associate Director Effective: 02/19/2019 
Residence Life Annual Salary Rate: $62,000 
Replacement 

Information Security Officer Effective: 03/04/2019 
ITS Annual Salary Rate: $80,000 
Replacement 

Associate Director Effective: 03/04/2019 
Graduate & Cont. Ed Annual Salary Rate: $60,000 
Replacement 

RESIGNATIONS/SEPARATIONS 

Staff Associate Effective: 03/08/2019 
Health Services 

Staff Associate Effective: 01/25/2019 
Business Office 

Staff Assistant Effective: 02/01/2019 
CASA 

Assistant Director Effective: 01/18/2019 
Student Accounts 

Assistant Professor Effective: 01/25/2019 
Physics & Earth Science 

RETIREMENTS 

Assistant Professor Effective: 06/01/2019 
Accounting, Economics, 
& Finance 



 

       2.0 President’s Report 



Board of Trustees Update - Office of Diversity Inclusion and Community Engagement (DICE) 

MetroWest College Planning Collaborative (CPC) 
Five dual enrollment classes began this spring semester with 65 students enrolled from Milford High 
School, Framingham High School, Cathedral High School and Boston International High School. Courses 
include Cultural Anthropology, Biological Perspectives on Environmental Issues, Quantitative Reasoning 
and Social Problems. 

CPC College Advisors Erika Reyes and lracely Sanchez received a grant to take five members the CPC's 

College Access Advising team to Washington, DC for College Access Advocacy Training . The CPC team 

met with congressional staff from the offices of Senators Warren and Markey, and from the offices of 

Representatives Clark, Kennedy, McGovern, and Trahan. They discussed college affordability, 

community college, a pathway to citizenship for Dreamers, and supports for college students 

experiencing housing and food insecurity. 

The CPC is gaining exposure with the local Brazilian community by participating in events supporting the 

Brazilian community. The CPC connect with a church in East Boston who has a large Brazilian 

congregation to provide a presence every 6 weeks to talk about college access. 

The CPC was awarded an FY19 Early College Technical Support grant of $30,000 towards developing an 

Early College program at FSU which will strengthen career education for high school students. 

The CPC college advising team escorted 5 members of the student group Brother2Brother to 

Hillsborough Community College's Black Brown and College Bound: Empowering Black and Latino Men 

in College Conference. 

Center for Inclusive Excellence (CIE) 
The Center for inclusive Excellence held a number of events for students during Black History Month 
including a discussion on the life and death of Sandra Bland and Ram Table Talk with an alum leading a 
discussion on the impact of entering the work force as a person of color. 

On Apr il 3, the Center for Inclusive Excellence with hold a meet and greet for students to meet the Olivia 
Davidson Voices of Color Lecture Series speaker, author MK Asante. 

Motivation. lntersectionality . Solidarity. Sisterhood (M.I.S.S.) will hold a meet and greet in April with 
representatives from sororities South Middlesex County Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority 
Incorporated and Rho Epsilon Omega Chapter of Alpha Kappa Alpha Sorority, Inc. 

Alex Valdez, program coordinator for the CIE, attended this year's American College Personnel 
Association conference held in Boston. 

Office of Diversity, Inclusion and Community Engagement (DICE) 
In an effort to support transparency and promote the resources of the division, the Office of Diversity, 
Inclusion and Community Engagement now has its own channel in my.framingham.edu. The channel 
contains links to the strategic plan, the campus climate survey report, and reports from the FSU Leading 
for Change Consortium team. 

The Whittemore Library and DICE hosted the Widening the Circle Diversity Book Group and selected 

Andrew Solomon's Far from the Tree to read this semester. Here is the brief video about the families 

https://my.framingham.edu


profiled in the book: https: //www .youtube.com /w atch?v 0l<GMju BJ2O0. The book group organizers will 

host a film showing of the documentary Far from the Tree 

!:ittp://andre wsolomon.com/co verage/ffttdoc opens july 20/ in April. 

The Beacon Award is given to members of the Framingham State University community who go above 

and beyond their responsibilities to make noteworthy contributions which advance inclusive excellence 

at FSU. The most recent recipients of the Beacon Award: Aynsley Rosenbaum, Assistant Director, 

Athletics/Club Sports Coordinator/Recruiting Coordinator/ Assistant Football Coach, Professor Bridgette 

Sheridan, History Department, Meghan Maxfield, Administrative Assistant for the Food and Nutrition, 

Fashion Design and Retailing, Math, and Geography Departments . 

Professor Deborah McMakin and Millie Gonzalez will present at the March Leading for Change Higher 

Education Diversity Consortium on the faculty development program "Widening the Circle for Faculty". 

DICE hosted Coach Bill Raynor's presentation for Black History Month "Beyond Sports - the Impact of 

the Black Athlete on Society." 

The Pathways internship program placed 23 interns for the 2018-2019 academic year . 

DICE scheduled 4 Courageous Conversations about Race and 3 implicit bias trainings during the spring 
semester. 

Dr. LaDonna Bridges, Associate Dean of Academic Success and Director of CASA, and Millie Gonzalez, 

have been appointed to an Open Educational Resources (OER) Working Group under the direction of the 

Massachusetts Department of Higher Education . The Working Group is charged with expanding the use 

of OER statewide to make education more affordable and accessible to students . 

DICE invited th e Lawyers' Commit tee fo r Civil Rights Under Law to speak in April on the context of the 

increase in hate incidents across t he country and t he parallel increase in hate incidents on college 

campuses, on the affect that hate has on targeted communities; on the differences between hate 

incidents and hate crimes, and on an overview of federal and Massachusetts state hate crime laws. 

The Office of Human Resources and the DICE is launching in March a pilot professional development 

program for staff . Widening the Circle for Staff Program reflects t he univers ity 's commitment to create a 

learn ing culture that values diversity and inclusion. The program helps participants develop inclusive 

competencies. Participants also learn about var ious groups and discuss how to support them in their 

departments . 

The spring is always packed with exciting program ing from DICE. In March, we will host the Women 

Making History award ceremony. In April we will host 3 events in one week: Defining Hate Crimes in 

College Campuses, Oliv ia Davidson Voices of Color Lecture Series speaker - author MK Asante, and the 

World Culture Community Collecting event . 

Millie Gonzalez was a panel ist on Fram ingham Mayor Spicer's Ma rch Commu nity Conversation : 
Exploring Diversity and Inclusion in Framingham. 

Millie Gonzalez, Interim CDIO, has been selected to be a member of the Human Relations Commission 
for the City of Framingham . 

https://wsolomon.com/co
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DEVELOPMENT AND ALUMNI RELATIONS UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2019 

FUND RAISING 
• As of March 18, 2019, we have raised a total of $2,362,513 towards an FY19 goal of 

$2,500,000. 
• Notable gifts and pledges received recently include: 

o $25,000 to create a new endowed scholarship fund for students from Clinton, 
Mass. 

o $25,000 to create a new endowed scholarship fund for students from Worcester 
County, Mass. 

o $42,000 in equipment for the biology and chemistry departments. 
o An unrestricted bequest of $55, 912. 

• Year to date, we have secured 57 donors at the President's Circle level or higher. 
• The President's Circle Gala, which celebrates and thanks our leadershi p donors, will be 

Saturday, April 6, 2019 at the Warren Center. 

ALUMNI ENGAGEMENT 
• Year-to-date, we have hosted more than 35 events for alumni and friends, wi th 

approximately 1,245 attendees. 
• We continue to partner with departments across campus to further engage alumni, and 

support both current students and the larger goals of the University. Some examples of 
partnerships include: 

o Admissions: Members of the Alumni Board supported enrollment by attending 
the Honors Brunch, and will also be attending the upcoming Accepted Student 
Open Houses. We :will also be sending a postcard featuring alumni to all 
deposited students over the summer. 

o Athletics: In addition to the annual Rams Booster Club Golf Tournament, we 
have sponsored events for alumni of three sports - softball, baseball, and hockey. 

o Biology: We are helping the department secure alumni volunteers for a 
networking event for current students later this month. 

o Danforth: We are working closely with Director Debra Petke on the Ribbon 
Cutting and Grand Opening event in April. 

o DGCE: We continue to partner on the University's signature Adventures in 
Lifelong Leaming program, including processing all membership payments and 
managing the registration process. We are also partnering on a Family Business 
Workshop in April that will feature an expert speaker on issues facing family 
businesses. 

o Food & Nutrition: We are assisting the department with outreach to alumni on 
behalf of several upcoming departmental events. 



o Master of Business Administration: We are hosting an event for MBA alumni in 
April. 

o Master of Educational Technology: We provided assistance and outreach to 
survey program alumni regarding career paths and interest in additional alumni 
engagement. 

o Master of Human Resource Management: We hosted an HRM alumni gathering 
earlier this year and actively administer a Linkedln networking group for the 
program. 

o McAuliffe Center: We have assisted the Center with alumni outreach for a range 
of events this year, including the special 1969 Moon Landing in Context series. 

• Upcoming alumni and friends events include: 

April 6, 2019 - President's Circle Gala 
April 13, 2019- Danforth Art Museum Ribbon Cutting and Grand Opening 
April 23, 2019 - Family Business Seminar 
May 31, 2019- June 1, 2019- Reunion Weekend 
July 8, 2019 - Rams Booster Club Golf Tournament 
September 21, 2019 - Homecoming and Family Weekend 
November 7, 2019 - Swiacki Children's Literature Festival 
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State University 

Board of Trustees 
Division of Academic Affairs 
Agenda 
Wednesday, 27 March 2019 

1.0 From the Academic Affairs Committee of the Board of Trustees: Updates 
Presenter(s): Nancy Budwig (Committee Chair) 

Copy of the Agenda from the Latest Meeting of the 
Academic Affairs Subcommittee of the Board of Trustees: 

Academic Affairs Committee of the Board of Trustees 
Agenda 
7 March 2019 
McCarthy Center, Alumni Room 
08:00 a.m. - 09:30 a.m. 

1.0 Approval of Minutes from the Previous Meeting - 15 Januan; 2019 
Time: 08:00 a.m. - 08:05 a.m. 
Presenter(s): Nancy Budwig (Committee Chair) 
Attachment(s): Pp. 01 - 03 

2.0 From the Provost's Office: Updates & Reports 
Time: 08:05 a.m. - 08:45 a.m. 

2.1 Subtopic: NECHE 5111 Year Report 
Presenter( s): Mark Nicholas 
Attachment(s): P.04 

2.2 Subtopic: Commencement Speakers 
Presenter( s): Linda Vaden-Goad 
Additional Notes: Undergraduate: U.S. Congressman John Lewis, Georgia 

Graduate: Dr. Diane Lowe (Emerita Faculty from Education) 

2.3 Subtopic: Re-Imagining the First Year (RFI) 
Presenter( s): Linda Vaden-Goad 
Attachment(s): Pp. 05 - 06 (Figures 1 & 2) 
Additional Notes: 

o RFY- Spring 2018 Course Outcomes (Gates Foundation/AASCU 
funded project). Each course integrated two High Impact Practices 
(one required in Diversitt;) into spring 2018 courses that already 
were scheduled to run 

OFFICE OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
100 State Street PO Box 9101 Framingham, MA 01701-9101 T 508-626-4582 P 508-626-4592 www .framingham.edu 

www.framingham.edu
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• Outcomes and Comparative Data 
o AASCU Conference Presentations regarding RFY: 

• LaDonna Bridges, CASA and Lauren Keville, 
Retention (Winter 2018 Meeting) 

• Dr. Rebecca Shearman, Biology (Summer 2018 
Meeting) 

• Dr. Deborah McMakin, Psychology and Spring HIP 
Program Coordinator (Winter 2019 Meeting) 

• Linda Vaden-Goad - 2-3 presentations on RFYper 
year, three years 

o AASCU Final Report to the Gates Foundation 
• Recognition that "Problems" are really 

"Observations" - too quickly to solutions 
o AASCU Book on "If the first-year mattered ... " 

• Chapter on Policies, Procedures and Practices (3-Ps) 
o RAMS 101: Pilot First-Year Program 

• New Developing Program: Current Status 
• 9 Courses for Fall 2019 
• 2 High Impact Practices, Diversity HIP is 

always one of the required elements along 
with College 101 elements 

• First-Year Project proposal 
• Selecting FaculhJ Leadership (Coordinator 

and Associate Coordinator) 

2.4 Subtopic: Mid-Year Report 
Presenter(s): Linda Vaden-Goad 
Attachment(s): Pp. 07 - 10 (Table 1) 
Additional Notes: Undergraduate Academic Affairs' Strategic Plan's Top Metrics 

and Initiatives. Academic Affairs' Goals for the FY19 Academic 
Year 

3.0 From the Provost's Direct Reports: Updates & Reports 
3.1 Subtopic: Department Highlight: Academic Advising 

Time: 08:45 a.m. - 08:50 a.m. 
Presenter(s): Christopher Gregory 
Additional Notes: Program Pathways: An interactive approach to exploring 

interests, majors, minors and careers at FSU 

3.2 Subtopic: Department Highlight: Honors Program 
Time: 08:50 a.m. - 08:55 a.m. 
Presenter( s): Paul Bruno 

3.3 Subtopic: Academic Affairs Council 
Time: 08:55 a.m. - 09:30 a.m. 
Presenter(s): Council Members: 

Continuing Education (Scott Greenberg) 
Graduate Studies (Yaser Najjar) 
Library (Bonnie Mitchell) 

OFFICE OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
100 State Street PO Box 9101 Framingham. MA 01701-9101 T 508-626-4582 F 508-626-4592 www.framingham_edu 

www.framingham_edu
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College of Arts & Humanities (Marc Cote) 
College of Business (Susan Dargan) 
College of Education (Larnell Flannagan) 
College of STEM (Margaret Carroll) 
College of Social & Behavioral Sciences (Susan Dargan) 

Attachment(s): Pp.11- 21 

Academic Affairs Committee of the Board of Trustees - Charter 

This committee is chartered with the responsibility of assuring the quality of the educational experience and the fit 
between the university's mission and the academic programs offered. The committee's oversight involves: reviewing 
policies and practices related to teaching, learning and evaluation; faculty development, training and evaluation; 
assessment of student learning, outcomes and related responses; accreditation at the program and institutional level; 
new or expanded programs; and results related to retention, graduation and the total educational experience. The 
committee is charged with examining the adequacy of financial resources allocated to support a high-quality 
educational experience and monitoring regularly the connections between academic programs and financial 
sustainability. 

OFACE OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
100 State Street PO Box 9101 Framingham, MA 01701-9101 T 508-626-4582 F 508-626-4592 • www .framingham.edu 
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Figure 1:  DFW Rates by First-Year Course Type 
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Figure 2:  Changes in Policies, Procedures and Practices 
N=28 RFY Universities, "3-P" Changes=132 
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Table 1:  Academic Affairs Goals: 2018-

2019 

Mid-Year Outcomes, January 2019 

Goals Metrics Initiative 

1.3 1.12 Develop and implement a revised Academic First-Year Experience based on recommendations from and engagement with the full university 
community. 

● RAMS 101 Pilot.  We piloted six RAMS 101 first-year seminars in fall 2018. These seminars, which are writing-intensive and focus on 
deep learning on specific topics within academic disciplines, enroll up to 20 students per section. In addition to the academic 
component of the the seminars, the instructor also covers “College 101” topics, such as advising and registration and major and 
minor exploration. An academic success peer mentor is assigned to each section. This mentor attends all class meetings and works 
with students on habits of mind and strategies for academic success. These seminars were popular with first-year students, and all 
were fully enrolled. We are in the process of analyzing assessment data, both qualitative and quantitative, on these seminars. We 
are planning to offer 15 RAMS 101 seminars in fall 2019, and we will be hiring a faculty coordinator to oversee the program. 

1.5 1.7 Develop and implement World of Work Center. 
● World of Work (WoW) Pilot Planned for Spring 2019.  Mr. Mark Hardie, Director, World of Work Center, will initiate a WoW pilot in 

the Spring 2019 at Framingham State University, following his visit to Liverpool John Moores University, our collaborator. 

1.6 8.5 Grow collaborations with sister schools in MA, MassBay, international partners, and other colleges and universities (find ways of enhancing 
efficiencies using shared video-classrooms, pre-program articulations, etc.). 

● Shared Online Streaming of Language Courses with Sister Schools.  We have successfully implemented shared streaming foreign 
language classes with Fitchburg State that allow us to offer languages that we don’t offer at own respective institutions (Italian, 
Arabic, Chinese) using the CAPS State University MOU. 

● Plans to Stream Language Courses with UMass Lowell.  UMass Lowell has indicated a desire to participate in foreign language 
course sharing, particularly with Portuguese. We plan to develop a MOU with them to grow this cooperative venture between the 
public institutions. 

● Community College to FSU STEM Bridge Program. We are currently working with the Dean of STEM at MassBay and the 
Coordinator of the STEM Starter Academy at MassBay to write a proposal for a 2Y to 4Y bridge program. The program will accept 16 
students each year, with priority to MassBay students, and offer transitional support as they transfer to FSU. 

● HHMI Peer Implementation Cluster. As part of our HHMI grant we have been assigned to a Peer Implementation Cluster (PIC). We 
are collaborating with our PIC partners, Wellesley, Brandeis, and Bates, as we develop programming to improve STEM student 
success. 

● College of Education to Maintain Recruitment Collaboration with MA Community Colleges. The Interim Ed Dean met with dept. 
chairs, deans and/or VPAAs at eight community colleges during 2017-2018 to discuss recruiting early childhood education majors to 
FSU’s Early Childhood Education program. This initiative will continue during 2019 as the interim dean plans to hold recruitment 
information visits at five regional community colleges. 

● Massachusetts Colleges Online: Framingham State continues to be a contributing member of MCO. As liaison, Steven Courchesne is 



 

 
 

  
  

   
 

     
    

  
 

       
 

    
 

      
   

 

    
    

    
 

    
  

   
  

 
  

   
 

    
 

      
 

   
   

 

    
    

leading the strategic initIative on professional development and chaired the MCO conference in 2018. (RR) 

1.10 1.2, 
1.5, 1.6 

Increase student success (retention, graduation rate, progression metrics). 
● Data will be presented in the Annual Report. 

2.1 2.1 Develop a Center for Civic Engagement to foster development of courses and pedagogies that integrate civic learning and engagement. 
Apply for Carnegie Community Engagement Classification status in 2020. (Metrics 2.1). 

● Center for Civic Engagement and Service Learning. We launched the Center for Civic Engagement and Service Learning in fall 2018, 
appointing Dr. Christopher McCarthy-Latimer, Chair of Political Science, as the center’s first coordinator. During the spring 
semester, Dr. McCarthy-Latimer will oversee a mini-grant program to support faculty civic engagement and service learning 
activities and apply for grants to support the center. 

2.2 2.2 Infusing our motto “Live to the Truth” in all aspects of university life; from orientation and on-boarding, through day-to-day activities, to 
graduation and the first-year experience (First-Year Project). 

● Harmony Grove.  Our current plan is to create a project for next year (FY20, fall 2019) on Harmony Grove and Abolition or another 
subject that invites all academic disciplines to participate through their own lenses (but coming together at the end in a Teach-In).. 

3.4 3.5 STEM Scholars Program – maintain and expand to support students’ needs. 
● STEM Scholars. There were 30 students in the program in Fall 2018. This year we are introducing extra support for those students 

who stay in the program during their second semester. 

3.8 3.6 Create the policy structure for Guided Pathways (Complete College America) with meta-majors policy and other necessary changes. 
● Advising Center, Career Services, Retention and Graduation Success, and Registrar  began collaborating with Marketing Department 

to build online resource for prospective and current students to search FSU website based on interests, careers and FSU major and 
minor programs. CG 

3.10 3.5 Support co-requisite remediation including the Math Emporium and Writers Workshop. 
● Writing Workshop Pilot. The English Department completed its second pilot semester of Writing Workshop in Fall 2018. These co-

requisite workshops provide assistance to at-risk students in ENGL 100 and 110 (Intro to College Writing and Expository Writing). 
We are reviewing comparative data to measure the pilot’s success and first signs indicate that we should consider bringing the 
program to scale. 

● Math Emporium. The Mathematics Department continued at scale with co-requisite remediation. There were 104 students enrolled 
in co-requisite remediation in Fall 2018. Unfortunately these students had a significantly higher DFW rate than those in the non-
remediation sections. The Mathematics Department plans to meet early in the spring to discuss new approaches to improve 
success. MC 

4.5 4.5 Hire one Mary Miles Bibb Fellow per year in areas of need, and consider increasing TT lines for potential Bibb Fellow conversions, 
maintaining total FT faculty counts. 

● Bibb Fellow in English. The English Department (currently 100% white TT) is conducting a Bibb Fellow search for an FTT to teach 
Creative Writing and First-year Writing. This position is scheduled to begin Fall 2019. 

4.6 4.7 Recruit second semester freshmen from underrepresented groups into the Honors Program. 
● We are awaiting the list of freshman GPAs. Once I obtain those, I will invite five students into the program. (Update, 15 have been 

invited, 3/1/19). PB. 

4.10 4.5 Increase the faculty and staff of color hires by X% 
● Implementation of New Strategies to Diversify Faculty Candidate Pools. We implemented three new strategies in fall 2018 to 



     

 
  

   
   

 
 

   
  

 

   
   

    
 

      
  

   
    

   
    

  
   

 

   
   

   
  

   

   
  

  
 

   
 

  

    
   

 

diversity our candidate pools. (1) Our academic deans traveled to Virginia to recruit faculty candidates at the Institute of Teaching & 
Mentoring, an institute attended by over 800 scholars of color who are either new PhDs or nearing PhD completion. (2) We now 
require all tenure-track faculty candidates to submit diversity statements with their applications.(3) We now require all tenure-track 
faculty candidates to have “experience with or a demonstrated willingness to participate in teaching, mentoring, research, or 
service activities that promote an equitable, diverse, and inclusive academic environment.” 

● Enhancement of Current Practices to Diversity Faculty Candidate Pools. We continue to increase the number of departments that 
we fund to travel to national conferences to recruit for open faculty positions. During the past year, the Departments of Marketing 
and Accounting, Economics, & Finance recruited for open positions at national conferences. 

5.1 5.1 Continue to update policies, procedures and practices that impact student success on campus, such as change of major signatures, midterm 
warnings, review of block scheduling, expansion of two credit courses, etc. 

● Draft Block Schedule Created.  Mark Powers, Executive Director, Registrar, has created a draft block schedule that is being shown 
to staff, faculty, and students prior to being submitted in spring 2019 as a log to governance. 

● Dean’s List Policy Revision. The academic deans revised the Dean’s List Policy to allow those students participating in study abroad 
opportunities and students who go on leave of absence to maintain eligibility for President’s list (President’s List requires three 
consecutive semesters of academic continuity). 

● Transfer Credit Policy Revision. The academic deans collaborated with the Director of International Studies to make application of 
transfer course work more transparent. The policy is currently undergoing governance review. 

5.9 5.2 Create new Adult Student Learning Center 
● On hold as a separate Center, but CASA is assisting with special hours for adult students. 

6.1 6.3 Make necessary changes to enhance the impact of Starfish (policies, offices involved, mobile device enhancements, etc). 
● Mobile Access. As of January 2019 we have gone mobile for students.  Due to some of the preparation and updates needed for FSU 

to go mobile, our increase in offices, and new processes has been limited for fall. (LK) 
● Progress Surveys. We now have three distinct progress surveys, Census, Early Alert and Mid-term Warnings. In the beginning we 

had two with a combined census and alert (LK) 

6.5 6.5 Obtain Qualtrics account for whole university (funded via Academic Affairs Trust Fund). 
● Qualtrics for Students, Faculty & Staff.  With the help of ETO, Academic Affairs is prepared to fully fund Qualtrics for a university 

contract. There has been a snag - the company did not want to sign the state contract.  We have found a solution so that the 
students and faculty/staff can have the advantage of the software this spring 2019. It is a major component of student/faculty 
collaboration. Heroic help from IT, ETO (Robin Robinson), GC (Ann McDonald), AA 

7.2 7.2 Updates to department websites to include videos, internship placements, scholarships and student activities. 
● College of Education Webpage. As of 2018, the College of Education has a staff member who is responsible for maintaining the 

College’s webpage with updated information for teacher education students/candidates and the public to reference. The COE 
webpage will be current each semester based on information, events and activities occurring in the Education Department. 

8.1 8.3 Develop small FSU storefronts for classes, talks and pop-ups at Natick Mall, Downtown Framingham (involve the Entrepreneur Innovation 
Center). 

● On hold 

8.4 8.2 Continue to expand programming of the Entrepreneur Innovation Center. 
● New Agreement with Workbar. The Entrepreneur Innovation Center has renegotiated its contract with Workbar, leading to a 

significant reduction in the fees paid sustain the center’s status as a Workbar center. Workbar will continue to recruit members for 



  

      
 

     
  

 
    

   
   

 
 

       
  

   

 
  

  
  

    
  

   
  

 
 

 

 

the center and offer additional benefits to center entrepreneurs. 

8.6 8.3, 8.6 Add Industry Advisory Boards for new programs (examples, World of Work, Hospitality Management, Child & Family Studies, and others) 
and serve on boards in the community. 

● Hospitality & Tourism Management Advisory Board. We have convened an advisory board for our new program, which was 
approved by the Board of Higher Education in December 2018. The board, which is made up of industry professionals, convenes 
twice a year to advise FSU faculty and administrators on the program’s curriculum and to work on collaborative projects and 
initiatives related to the program. 

● Teacher Education Advisory Council (TEAC). The Teacher Education Advisory Council was reactivated during the 2017-2018 
academic year and will continue to meet once each semester. This teacher education governance council consists of on- and off-
campus stakeholders (faculty, staff, administrators and school personnel) who meet to review policies and procedures governing 
FSU’s teacher prep programs. 

● Child & Family Studies Advisory Council. The new Child and Family Studies Advisory Council will meet each semester in 2019 to 
begin providing advisory level input on maintaining a quality Child and Family Studies curriculum. Council membership will include 
on- and off-campus child care and family support services professionals, teachers, directors, administrators and faculty. 

9.6 9.2, 
9.5, 9.6 

Engage Academic Affairs with Alumni Relations and the Office of Advancement: Create a “Companion Academic Advancement Strategic 
Plan” for Academic Affairs; Endowment, Income, Grants & Contracts. 

● Grants & Contracts. Our goal in FY2019 is to increase number of PI’s, number of grant proposals submitted, amount of dollars 
requested, and amount of dollars awarded from FY2018 totals. Thus far in FY2019, we are on track to achieve this goal in most 
categories. We are also working to establish a federally negotiated indirect cost rate. 

● An Endowed Gift for Teacher Education Faculty. The College of Education recently received a $100,000 endowment from an 
anonymous teacher education alumna. The Education Faculty Fund for Research and Educational Pursuits gift is designed for 
education faculty to apply for an annual competitive grant, as additional support for faculty scholarship and professional 
development.  
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Board of Trustees Update 

Topic: Division of Enrollment and Student Development 
From : Lorretta M. Holloway , VP for Enrollment and Student Development 
Date : March 27, 2019 

Division of Enrollment and Student Development Collaboration Updates 

• The Career Services and Employer Relations Office in collaboration with the PSM in 
Biotechnology program held the 3rd annual STEM Career Event on February 21. This event 
brought 26 employer partners to campus and 75 students attended resulting in a 25% increase 
from last year. 

• The Health Center is collaborated with the Veteran's Center to provide an educational program 
addressing nutrition and resources available for Veterans in the Health Center. 

• The Health Center in collaboration with Center for Inclusive Excellence and the Nursing Honor 
Society is co-sponsored an Arts and Ideas event featuring one of the co-authors of the iconic 
book Our Bodies, Ourselves. The event is entitled Sexual Health/Sexual Politics 50 Years Later 
will also include Aziza Ahmed a current scholar on reproductive justice and sexual politics from 
Northeastern University who will provide a younger woman's perspective. 

• Veteran Services collaborated with First-Year Experience and Graduate Admissions to attended 
Graduate Orientation and the Transfer Orientation in January to inform incoming student 
veterans know of the various services provided to them. The VA work study students assisted 
and shared their experiences as student veterans on the Framingham State campus. As a result, 
we have a higher number of new students utilizing the Veteran Center this semester. 

• The Dean of Students Office collaborated with Dining Services and the Task Force for Supporting 
Students with Food and Housing Needs for the Annual Share a Meal, Share the Love meal swipe 
donation drive. 82 meals were donated to the emergency meal bank and $183 were raised to 
support FSU students. 

Student Affairs Updates 
• Rams Resource Center (RRC) 

o 1/23-2/20 - the RRC had 92 total visits where 469.02 pounds of non-perishable food of and 
231 toiletries & non-food items were given out. 

o The RRC is staffed by 19 volunteers including 16 students, one faculty member, one IAFSA 
staff member, and one FSU retiree. 

o For the Spring Semester the RRC is open on Mondays from 11:30am-2:30pm and 
Wednesdays from 1:30pm-5:00pm 

• Hosted webinar on the "Duty of Care" with 15 people from campus in attendance - Threat 
Assessment Team members, Student Assistant Team members, Residence Life staff, University 
Police, Academic Affairs staff, the VP Enrollment Management and Student Development, and 
General Counsel. 

• MutualOne Bank's Charitable Foundation grant award of $6,550 is being used this semester for the 

spring 2019 Suitable Solutions Professionalism Program. Currently, 25 students were accepted and 

have met with career counselors and attended the kick-off this month. 



• The Department of Higher Education Grant is supporting 5 students (2 from FSU and 2 from Mass 
Bay) living on campus and food for the spring 2019 semester through July 1. . It is anticipated the 
program will continue through the next year. A press conference was held in January to highlight 
the program. 

Enrollment Management Updates 

• Spring 2019 yielded one of the largest incoming classes of graduate students with 78 new students. 
• We did three information sessions and transfer visits at Newbury College along with an on-the-spot 

admission decision event on February 28· 2019. We currently have 27 transfer applicants from 
Newbury College 

• January and February are peak processing months for the Financial Aid Office. We have been 
working hard to process aid for the spring semester and assist students in finding ways to pay their 
balance. In addition, we began sending financial aid awards to new admitted students at the end of 
January. We have mailed financial aid awards to 1,317 admitted students. 

o 1,288 are incoming Freshman students 
o 27 are incoming Transfer students 
o 2 are new Graduate students 
o 65 admitted students are ready to award 

Marketing Updates 

• Transfer Student Marketing Campaign - We are currently running an extensive marketing campaign 
targeting undergraduate students at area community colleges. This campaign includes a mix of 
geotargeted digital advertising, on-campus advertising (posters and digital boards), and college • 
newspaper advertising. Schools being targeted include: Mount Wachusett Community College, 
Northern Essex Community College, Quinsigamond Community College, Bunker Hill Community 
College, MassBay Community College, Massasoit Community College, and Middlesex Community 
College. The Web Team also worked with Admissions to create a landing page with an embedded 
Slate inquiry form targeted to prospective transfer students. During January and February of 2019, 
traffic to the transfer application webpage were up 63%, compared to the same timeframe in 2018. 

• Website Projects - Website analytics for Jan. and Feb. indicate that the age group for which we are 

seeing the most significant growth in traffic to Framingham.edu is 24-30. This supports the work the 

Web Team has been doing with graduate program coordinators to feature more engaging, 

marketing-focused content on graduate program pages. 

Communications 

• Continuing to lead efforts for the launch of the Danforth's new website. Anticipated launch is March 
15. Also working with Danforth folks on media/PR strategy for the grand opening in April. 

• Working on event promotional guidelines to help people use a best-strategies approach to 
promoting their events on campus. 

• Upgraded digital color production printer to accommodate increased production output and new 

capabilities for a significant savings to the University (compared to outside pr int centers) 

https://Framingham.edu
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• First Steps 
• Assess current platforms 

• U-level and Deparbnental accounts 

• Social media audit (pre-cursor to social media directory) 

• Meet with administrators of major departmental accounts 
• Develop a content calendar 
• Develop standard set of guidelines 

• Pro cedure & Guidelines for Requesting the Creation of Social 
Properties 

• University Stat ement on Social Media Values 

• Social Media Tips & Best Pra ctices for Institutional , Deparbnental 
& Or ganizational Use 

• Social Media Participation Poli cy 

1 
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• Short Term Goals & Objectives 
• Build awareness of Framingham State among relevant 

audiences 
• Post content that is of interest to the audiences on each respective 

social media platform consistently 

• Increase engagement with both current and prospective 
students 
• Develop campaigns that encourage engagement, particularly 

those that encourage users to submit content 

• Utilize monthly social media reports to track engagement 

• Coordinate efforts that encourage alumni and current students to 
share their stories and submit content 

D Framingham 
Stzill' Univt'rs1ty 

• Short Term Goals & Objectives 
• Optimize existing FSU social media platforms 

• Facebook: optimize links and images; transition less active pages to 
groups or flag for deactivation 

• Twitter: reapply for verification if/when Twitter reintroduces this 
process; flag/monitor inactive and imposter accounts 

• Instagram: increase use of Instagram stories; reapply for verification 
• Linkedin: share content that would be of interest primarily to current 

and prospective students , alumni, and parents; monitor closely to 
adjust content for largest audience on the platform 

• Develop a strategy for and launch an FSU Snapchat account 
• Continue to research and monitor how other 

universities/ departments are utilizing the platform 
• Currently reviewing proposal and strategy submitted by Social Media 

Student Intern 

2 
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U Framingham 
Stotc U111vc1sity 

• Short Term Goals & Objectives 
• Prioritize producing video content that can be shared 

across multiple platforms 
• Utilize Social Media Student Intern to assist in content creation 

and strategy development 
• What type of content do current students want to see? 
• How can we differentiate ourselves from other universities and tell 

the FSU story? 

- Framingham U
StJh' Univl'rsity 

• Long Term Goals & Objectives 
• Create cohesion across all social media accounts associated 

with the University 
• FSU branded hashtags 
• Internal stakeholder involvement and training 

• Develop a social media administrator mailing list that encourages the 
cross-promotion of content, as well as departmental interactions and 
support 

• Develop resources that will be available to social media 
administrators, including a list of standard inquiry responses and 
contacts, property creation guidelines, etc. 

3 
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U. Framingham 
Sta tc University 

• Long Term Goals & Objectives 
• Diversify content mix 

• Leverage content on the FSU website 
• Promote existing content that highlights the FSU Difference and draws 

attention to key pro grams, services, and activities that make FSU unique 
(Arts & Ideas, Moon Landing in Context , McAuliffe Center, etc.) 

• Highlight student and faculty research / accomplishments / etc. 
• Develop a submis sion form that would allow faculty/ staff/ advisors/ etc. to 

submi t an announ cement they consider "newsworthy" 
• Lean on faculty experts to develop content around relevant and trending 

topics 
• Coordinate with College Deans to un-Earth potential stories 

• Utilize and leverage student-created content 
• Develop a team of social media ambassadors to assist with content creation 

• Continue live social media coverage of campus events and speakers 

U1 --Framingham 
St1tl' University 

Questions? 
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Student & Community Feedback Survey - Responses | SurveyMonkey Page 1 of 6 

÷ w SIGN UP FREE 

Student & Community Feedback Survey 

Q1 w 

What is your gender? 
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1 

Female 

Male 

Choose not to 
answer 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Female 20.97% 13 

Male 75.81% 47 

Choose not to answer 3.23% 2 

TOTAL 62 

Q2 w 

What is your status? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Veteran 

Active Duty 

Reserves 

National Guard 

Family member 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Veteran 79.37% 50 

Active Duty 3.17% 2 

Reserves 3.17% 2 

National Guard 9.52% 6 

Family member 4.76% 3 

TOTAL COPY 63 Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re 63 responses 
Share 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV
https://www.surveymonkey.com/re
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Student & Community Feedback Survey - Responses | SurveyMonkey Page 2 of 6 

÷ w SIGN UP FREE 

Q3 w 

What is your family situation? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Single 

Partner only 

Partner and 
children or... 

Single with 
children or... 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Single 42.86% 27 

Partner only 19.05% 12 

Partner and children or other family members to care for 30.16% 19 

Single with children or other family members to care for 7.94% 5 

TOTAL 63 

Q4 w 

What is your current college level? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Freshman 

Sophomore 

Junior 

Senior 

Graduate 
Student 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Freshman 7.94% 5 

Sophomore 14.29% 9 

Junior 19.05% 12 

Senior 44.44% 28 

Graduate Student 14.29% 9 

TOTAL 
COPY 

63 
Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re 63 responses 

Share 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV
https://www.surveymonkey.com/re
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Student & Community Feedback Survey - Responses | SurveyMonkey Page 3 of 6 

÷ w SIGN UP FREE 

Q5 w 

As a student veteran, what is your biggest challenge in 
class and on campus? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Faculty/staff 
communication 

Interactions 
with... 

Family 
obligations 

Work/job 
demands 

Service 
connected... 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Faculty/staff communication 7.94% 5 

Interactions with traditional students 22.22% 14 

Family obligations 15.87% 10 

Work/job demands 42.86% 27 

Service connected disabilities 11.11% 7 

TOTAL 63 

Q6 w 

What is your second biggest challenge? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Faculty/staff 
communication 

Interactions 
with... 

Family 
obligations 

Work/job 
demands 

Service 
connected... 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Faculty/staff communication 23.81% 15 

Interactions with traditional students 9.52% 6 

Family obligations 33.33% 21 

Work/job demands 20.63% 13 

TOTAL 
Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re COPY 63 responses 

Share 63 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV


 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

I 

I 

I 

■ 

-L 

Student & Community Feedback Survey - Responses | SurveyMonkey Page 4 of 6 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 
SIGN UP FREE ÷ w Service connected disabilities 12.70% 8 

TOTAL 63 

Q7 w 

Do you plan to utilize the Veteran Center on campus? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Yes 

No 

Unsure 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Yes 84.13% 53 

No 6.35% 4 

Unsure 9.52% 6 

TOTAL 63 

Q8 w 

Which of the following do you see as a benefit of the 
Veteran Center? 
Answered: 63 Skipped: 0 

Study space 

Fellowship/vete 
ran specific... 

Assistance 
from Veteran... 

Connecting to 
community... 

Assistance 
with VA issues 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Study space 33.33% 21 

Fellowship/veteran specific programs 9.52% 6 

Assistance from Veteran Coordinator with academic issues 39.68% 25 

Connecting to community organizations 0.00% 0 

Assistance with VA issues 

COPY 

17.46% 11 

Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re 63 responses 
TOTAL Share 63 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV
https://www.surveymonkey.com/re
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Student & Community Feedback Survey - Responses | SurveyMonkey Page 5 of 6 

÷ w SIGN UP FREE 

Q9 w 

How frequently do you expect to visit the  Veteran 
Center? 
Answered: 62 Skipped: 1 

Daily/every 
day I am on... 

Once a week 

1-2 times per 
month 

Once per 
semester 

Never 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES 

Daily/every day I am on campus 43.55% 27 

Once a week 16.13% 10 

1-2 times per month 20.97% 13 

Once per semester 14.52% 9 

Never 4.84% 3 

TOTAL 62 

Q10 w 

What does having a Veteran Center on campus mean to 
you? 
Answered: 57 Skipped: 6 

 

 

I am enrolled in an entirely online graduate program and do not access the campus or the Veteran Center. 

11/30/2018 12:28 PM 

It’s a place where a veteran can go where he feels at home and can relate to others. Sometimes that is hard 
to find especially if you’re service connected disabilities are serious. 

11/30/2018 8:19 AM 

it is a great place to see answers to VA questions, college questions and networking with like minded 
individuals 

11/29/2018 4:46 PM 

It means I have a central location where I can be among a group of people I feel at home with. A place 
where I can easily ask for assistance and get the help I need to succeed. 

11/29/2018 2:27 PM 

63 responses Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re COPY Share 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 
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Powered by 

Check out our sample surveys and create your own now! 

÷ w SIGN UP FREE 

Share Link https://www.surveymonkey.com/re COPY Share Tweet 63 responses 
Share 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV/ 3/11/2019 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-J5WKCVJDV
https://www.surveymonkey.com/re


 

	 	 	 	 	
 

                                     

                                   

                               

                                   

                               

                                 

                   

 

Counseling Psychology Programs 

Counse ling Psychology Faculty 

Studen t Handbook 

Graduate Adm issklns 

Tuit ion and Fees 

More Graduate Programs 

Build a career that makes a dif ference. Our graduates provide menta l health serv ices in a variety of sett ings, including 
schools, hospitals, addict ion t reatment centers, homes and correct ional facil it ies. 

Fram ingt, am Sta te offers the Master of Arts with a concent rat ion in Counse ling Psychology in both a lie.ensure and non - licensure track. 

The I c.m 'iure t rack combines theore t ical aspects wit h pract ical co...-.sefing skills to prepare stodents to work effect ively as a counseSor in any men tal health 
field . A culminating internsh ·p experience must be arranged a t a site a ffilia ted with or approved by the Department of Psychology. 

The non - l icensure track prov ides a theore tic.al undet stand ing of the issues relat ed to th e counsel ing psychology PfOfession. Students receive a strong 

found at ion in psycho logy and in anen t theo ries , da ta, and research related to counse ling approach es . 

In the Spotlight 

Ryan Hebert ' 1 8 
Md. " .:11·1 H~ it 11I 

Alumn i Spotlight 

Cindi Scrimgeour '18 
Rl~ n id" Commun ?'/ C• " 

Faculty Spod rght 

Robert Donohoe 
f\'o fn .iaor & Progu m ~ r 

FRAMINGHAM.EDU	Updates	&	Analytics	 

January & February 2019 Highlights 

Website analytics indicate that the age group for which we are seeing the most significant growth in traffic to 

Framingham.edu is 24‐30. This supports the work the Web Team has been doing with graduate program coordinators to 

feature more engaging, marketing‐focused content on graduate program pages. In January, the Web Team launched a 

new landing page for our Counseling Psychology graduate programs, featuring a video (with 386 views since posting in 

December), and testimonials from recent program graduates. Analytics show that visitors spend more time viewing and 

engaging with program pages that include these features, and that these pages earn more call‐to‐action clicks (apply, 

request information, visit campus) than those that only include text. 

https://Framingham.edu


 
                                   

                                   

                                 

                                   

           

 

	

	 	
 

         

 

rn Framingham 
~ State University 

Abo ut FSU Academics 

Considering A Change? We Make it Easy! 

The FSU Dif ference Admissions and Aid St udent Life 

Framingham State welcomes more than 600 transfer students from four-y ear and commun ity colleges each year, so we know how 

to help you make a seamless transit ion. You'll get ded icated admiss ions support to help you find out about your credit trans fer 

opt ions and introduce you to the fRAM ily. 

Explore Degree Programs 

Users New l!Jsers 

2.93 % 5.89%, 
108,972 vs 105,875 91,162 vs 86,089 

Visit Campus 

Framing ham State welcom es transf er st udents to apply fo r 

admiss ion fo r bot h t he spr ing and fa ll semesters. View our tr ansf er 

re~uiremen t s and aRRlicat ion here. 

We parti cipate in MassTransf er, a col laborat ion among t he 

Comm onwealth 's communi ty and state colleges, to al low st udents 

FRAMINGHAM.EDU	Updates	&	Analytics	 
Another Spring campaign that generated a substantial amount of web traffic was the transfer campaign. The Web Team 

worked with Admissions to create a landing page with an embedded Slate inquiry form targeted to prospective transfer 

students. A homepage banner advertising transfer applications was also featured on the website for the months of 

January and February. During these months of 2019, traffic to the transfer application webpage were up 63%, compared 

to the same timeframe in 2018. 

Data Points 

Graphic 1: Overall Site Users 



 
                             

 

 

/ student -life/r esidence-l ife/ 

Jan 1, 2019 - Feb 28, 2019 

Jan 1, 2018 - Feb 28, 2018 

% Change 

/ academ ics/ graduate-stud ies/ courses-an @J 
d-registration/ 

Jan 1, 2019 - Feb 28, 2019 

Jan 1, 2018 - Feb 28, 2018 

% Change 

2,9 09 (0.459') 

2,84 2 (0.39'1,) 

2.36% 

2,63 7 (0.419') 

2,570 (0.359') 

2.61% 

FRAMINGHAM.EDU	Updates	&	Analytics	 
Graphics 2 & 3: Traffic to key target areas for Housing and Graduate Course Registrations. 
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RESIDENCE LIFE 
UPDATES & INITIATIVES 

FRAMINGHAM STATE UNIVERSITY 

1 RESIDENCE HALLS 

• CORINNE HAll TOWERS 

• LARNEDUll 

• NORTHHAll 

• WESTHAll 

• LINSLEY HAll 

• PEIRCE HAll 

• HORACE MANN Hill 

1 



3/20/2019 

HIGHLIGHTS: 
• SAFETY AND SECURITY-HIGH SATISFACTION 

• • 800+ PROGRAMS/EVENTS 

• 73%-AVERAGE RESIDENT PRESENCE ON WEEKENDS ~ ~.r 
f 

• HONORS FLOOR 
• ARTS COLLECTIVE 
• COMMUNITY 

ENGAGEMENT 

LIVING FLOORS LEARNING/THEMED 

2 
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• HEALTH AND · 
WELLNESS 

• NEW ENGLAND \ 
SPORTS NATION 

• EXTENDED QUIET 
HOURS FLOOR 

LIVING FLOORS LEARNING/THEMED 

LIVING FLOOR LEARNING/THEMED 
INITIATIVES 

VETERAN STUDENT/NON
SOCIAL FLOOR JUSTICE 

TRADITIONAL FLOOR STUDENT 

3 
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OTHER INITIATIVES 
r,,..-. "'1' , . • "'.. ~1, - . 

i-,•~ I 

"• '• 
··• \ 

STUDENT AND 
SUPPORT ROOM OPTION 

RESIDENTIAi EDUCATION NEW ROOMMATE 
SElECTION 

• INTEOlffl TIWEIS AND lARNm-TIADITl8NAI • FUlflll SPECIFIC REQUESTS IOOMMIFE 
fY/SOPII UfAS 

• ENHUIIIIE IN PUTICIPIIION 
• IIPPOIT OF Rl81S DMLOPMENT UC/1HEME llC/TIEME ROOD 

FUll AY AND 12 MONTH 
HOUSING 
• llNSllY IAU 

• SIMMUUSE 

• BOTEI STUDENT MEET NUDS 

MASSBAY CC HOUSING 

Live On-Campus at Framingham State University 

lnl1rHl:lld m on-etmoui Uvh,;" PramlnlJNffi State Untwn lty t. etferlne ~ Maue., ~ltv 
Coll ... ltudMltl tM Mitt bffl ttllnr, the UfllQUe OPPotlUnlty to Uve on t ht Ftan•unohllm St•te lmlwrslty 
cAtnpu ~ whtlo att cncl1ng <IUHI 1t Mas.a.,- . Framingham St.it• UnJY-111Cy " 5lh,1111•d on a baf,1,1tlruf, 71\-acr, 
lr.c!IIIOMI New E"90nd colleo- CMIPUI locatad ~•t 9 tnlloi ltom our WeKe,tey ca,'nPUI. 2 mii.1 J,om our 
Fronllnp,n Campus. artd ◄ . S "1ltin lrom ~r Athkind ComPUS. 

Ad.,antqH of 0.C.mpwi Lh,/Ji9 

Stuc:i ■ nts wl'to, d,0019 to llvv ~ a n,11~• carnpUS tt1nd to f,nd It "'* to anga ge in communlly acllvlt•• 
,ind l'Hll ll. "f &eto, l~t un COfttflb\lte to ,tuctotnt SUCU'SS 

,i.1 r ,0Mh, .nC11 "91.Ciltr• ""'c.....,.. sqm ,, 
u, .. 1'5(ol(lv• e111 

loi.,p,....th D"0:111_. ......, I f(lmA ul 
Doc•<.!thanollrld w.,ll!>ou C</<11.~• 
•cc,u 10 f-W 111'.tlh kn' , -. 
lV.,., 

1.-.~>1~-..i... "''" 
J: / /WC<iMV ~ 
c.... 1vr.ow n1 
, .,_,n:wc..,,., ~11 h'.lll lfl""v • ._.tr1-,11dol,oo,.i._.. ,,_wl11l,ly 
l•mt-lllCllsDUbll _..HWf.lf lti~roUlft 
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• 4 REGIONAL PARTNERS 

• 5 STUDENTS-3 FSU; 2 MBCC 

• 12 MONTH HOUSING -MEALS 

DHE HOUSING FOR STUDENTS PllOT HOMElESS 

QUESTIONS? 
RESIDENCE LIFE 

UPDATES & INITIATIVES 
FRAMINGHAM STATE UNIVERSITY 

5 



 

     

     

6.0 Administration, Finance 

and Technology 



~ Framingham 
ffl State University 

FSU Board of Trustees 
Administration, Finance, and Technology March 27, 2019 

Action Item: 

► Approval of Restated FY2018 Financial Statements Handout 

Update Items: 

► Items from BOT Finance Committee meeting of March 13, 2019 

o Introduction of O'Connor & Drew auditing firm. 

o Danforth Line of Credit approved by BOT in January 
• Due to recent gift and transfer of remnant Danforth Art Alliance funds, 

it is not anticipated that this line of credit will be drawn upon. 

o FY2020 Preliminary Budget Development Discussion 

• FY2020 Budget Preliminary Assumptions 

• No changes regarding preliminary state appropriation assumptions 

• Proforma updated to reflect MSCA collective bargaining agreement 

• No changes regarding student charges assumptions 

• Adjustment in projected enrollment figures based on current recruitment 
numbers 

• Small downward adjustment on anticipated inflationary adjustments 

• Staffing and compensation adjustments for next fiscal year under 
consideration (informed by ongoing pay equity study) 

• Strategic capital adaptation and renewal projects prioritization 
exercise underway. 

o FY2020 Budget development schedule as previously noted with House budget 
anticipated in April and Senate budget in May. 

o FSU Investments Considerations 
• FSU Foundation considering potential allocation to Alternative Strategies 

investments; could inform FSU future allocations considerations. 

o Public Safety Update 



                             

 

 

     

       

 

         

                 
 

 

 

                         

                   

 

m Framingham 
lmJ State University 

Attachment 

Framingham State University 

Request for Trustee Action 

Date: March 27, 2019 

Subject: FY2018 Independent Audit of Restated Financial Statements Approval 

RESOLUTION 

The Framingham State University Board of Trustees (the “Trustees”) hereby approves the FY2018 

Independent Audit of Framingham State University Restated Financial Statements. 



COHN REZNICK 
ACCOUNTING • TAX • ADVISORY 
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CohnReznick LLP 
cohnreznick.com 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Framingham State University 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
discretely presented component unit of Framingham State University (the "University") (a department of 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial 
statements as listed in the Index. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not 
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, Framingham State University 
Foundation, Inc. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been 
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Framingham State 
University Foundation, Inc., is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audits 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Cohn Reznick~ 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type 
activities and discretely presented component unit of Framingham State University as of June 30, 2018 
and 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Restatement 

As described in Note 26, the University has restated the accompanying financial statements to correct 
amounts allocated to the University by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Emphasis of Matters 

As discussed in Notes 1 and 26 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2018, the University adopted 
new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is 
not modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of Framingham State University and its discretely 
presented component unit are intended to present the respective financial position, the changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows of only that portion of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts that is attributable to 
the transactions of Framingham State University and its discretely presented component unit. They do 
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the pension and OPEB benefit schedules on pages 6 to 16 
and 81 to 84, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the 2018 financial statements that 
collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements. The residence hall fund and residence 
hall damage fund activity shown on pages 85 to 87, and the statistical section on pages 88 to 92 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 2018 financial 
statements. The residence hall fund and residence hall damage fund activity are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the 2018 financial statements. The residence hall fund and residence hall damage fund 
activity information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2018 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2018 financial 
statements or to the 2018 financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the residence hall fund and residence hall damage fund activity information are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the 2018 financial statements as a whole. The statistical section has not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2018 financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14, 
2019, on our consideration of Framingham State University's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Framingham State University's internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Framingham State University's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Boston, Massachusetts 
November 14, 2018, except Note 26 which is dated March 14, 2019 
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m Framingham 
~ State University 

FRAMINGHAM STATE UNIVERSITY 

FY2018 Financial Statements 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Unaudited 

INTRODUCTION 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and results of operations of 

Framingham State University (the "University") for the years ended June 30, 2018 (Fiscal Year 2018), June 30, 

2017 (Fiscal Year 2017), and June 30, 2016 (Fiscal Year 2016). This discussion and analysis has been prepared 

by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, as 

separately provided. 

FY2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HIGHLIGHTS 

 This year's financial statements are significantly impacted by implementation of Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 75 (GASB 75) that requires accounting for post-

employment benefits liabilities (in addition to pension liabilities that were previously incorporated) on 

public institutions' financial statements. The implementation of GASB 75 has resulted in the need to 

restate FY2017 financial statements – increase liabilities associated with Other Post-Employment 

Benefits (OPEB) obligations by $25.8M - and the full accounting of these liabilities in FY2018. 

 The University's total assets at the end of Fiscal Year 2018 were $213.7 million (a decrease of -$4.4 

million, or -2.0%, from FY2017), liabilities were $95.1 million (an increase of $0.4 million, or 0.4%, 

from FY2017) and there were $11.1 million in deferred outflow of resources (associated with booked 

pension and OPEB obligations) and $6.9M of deferred inflow of resources ($2.5 million associated with 

the food service contract and $4.4M associated with pension and OPEB obligations). Net Position, which 

represents the residual interest in the University's assets after liabilities and deferred 

inflows/outflows, decreased -$6.0 million, or -4.7%, from $128.8 million in Fiscal Year 2017 

(restated) to $122.8 million in Fiscal Year 2018. 

o Restricted net position and net investment in capital assets accounts total $112.5 

million (an increase of $2.6 million from FY2017) and include: $107.5 million net 

investment in capital assets, $2.2 million in scholarship reserves, and $2.8 million in 

other restricted accounts. 

o Aggregate accumulated unrestricted net position (after accounting for increases 

in pension and OPEB liabilities that results in a direct accounting reduction to 

unrestricted assets) was $10.3 million at the end of FY2018. 

o The aggregate impact of the accounting of pension and OPEB liabilities as well 

as associated deferred outflows/inflows for pension and OPEB obligations 

totaled -$37.4 million in FY2018 and -$34.9 million in FY2017; this impact is 

ultimately reflected in a reduction in Unrestricted Net Position. 

o A significant portion of the year-over-year (FY2018 versus FY2017) reduction 

in net position can be attributed to the increase in FY2018 aggregate pension 

and OPEB obligations as well as an increase in depreciation associated with the 

completion of the Science Laboratories building. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Framingham State University's basic 

financial statements. These statements are comprised of two components: 1) the financial statements and 2) the 

notes to the financial statements. The University's financial report includes three financial statements: the 

Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement 

of Cash Flows. 

The Financial Statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 

University's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector University. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the University's assets and deferred outflows of resources, 

less its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the residual balance being reported as net position. Over 

time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 

University is improving. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the 

University's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as 

soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, 

revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 

fiscal periods (e.g., the accrual for compensated absences). 

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported on the direct method. The direct method of cash flow reporting portrays 

net cash flows from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g., tuition and fees) and disbursements 

(e.g., cash paid to employees for services). 

Framingham State University reports its activity as a business-type activity under GASB using the full accrual 

measurement focus and basis of accounting. The University is a department of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts. Therefore, the results of the University's operations, its net position and cash flows are also 

summarized in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report in its government-wide financial 

statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 

understanding of the data provided in the separately attached financial statements. 

Other Information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, supplemental information is 

also provided. The financial statements and related footnotes are presented separately from this discussion and 

analysis. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the University at the end of the fiscal year and 

includes all assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the 

University. The difference between these amounts – net position – is one indicator of the current financial 

condition of the University, while the change in net position is an indicator of whether the overall financial 

condition has improved during the year. Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 

resources are generally measured using current values. A condensed comparison of the University's assets, 
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Trend Analysis: Net Posit ion 

Million s 

$150 +------------------------

so 
Unrest ricte d Rest ricted 

Net lnve stm e nt in 

Cap ital 
Total Net Posit ion 

■ FY2016 $39 .6 $4 .6 $97 .6 $141 .8 

■ FY2017 $44 .8 $5-2 $104 .7 $154 .7 

■ Break Point 

■ FY2017 Resta ted $18 .9 $5-2 $104 .7 $128.8 

■ FY2018 $10 .3 $5 .0 $107.5 $122.8 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position at June 30, 2018; June 

30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

University Accounts

2017 2016

Current Assets                  $               36,720  $               36,193 

Capital Assets                 139,585                 134,207 

Other Noncurrent Assets                   41,813                   35,316 

Total Assets                 218,118                 205,716 

          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources                     5,961                     5,463 

Current Liabilities                   14,090                   14,424 

Noncurrent Liabilities                   80,643                   54,557 

Total Liabilities                   94,733                   68,981 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources                        527                        375 

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets                  104,694                   97,567 

Restricted                     5,207                     4,607 

Unrestricted                   18,918                   39,649 

Total Net Position  $             128,819  $             141,823 

                  43,487 

                213,728 

(In Thousands)

 $             122,809 

                    6,871 

                107,502 

                    4,979 

                  10,328 

                  11,067 

                  15,517 

                  79,598 

                  95,115 

2018

 $               32,362 

                137,879 

As noted, the University's net position as of June 30, 2017 has been restated by -$25.8M (Note 26 

in the financial statements provides details) to reflect accounting for pension and other post-

employment benefits ("OPEB") obligations (that are ultimately born by the Commonwealth). The 

University's net position as of June 30, 2018 reflects changes resulting from operations as well as 

the full impact of accounting for additional pension and OPEB liabilities. 

Net Position has decreased -$6.0 million, or -4.7%, from the end of restated FY2017 to the end of 

FY2018. 
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Net Impact of Accounting for Pension and OPEB Obligations 

(In Thousands) 2018 2017 2016

Pension and OPEB Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability 14,962$               14,520$               12,702$               

Net OPEB Liability 29,100                 25,834                 -                       

Allocated Pension/OPEB Liability 44,062                 40,354                 12,702                 

Net Deferred Outflows/Inflows:

Deferred Outflows for Pensions (5,495)                  (5,961)                  (5,463)                  

Deferred Outflows for OPEB (5,572)                  -                       -                       

Deferred Inflows for Pensions 993                      527                      375                      

Deferred Outflows for OPEB 3,416                   -                       -                       

Net Deferred Outflows/Inflows (6,658)$                (5,434)$                (5,088)$                

Net Impact of Accounting for Pension and 

OPEB Obligations: 37,404$               34,920$               7,614$                 

Unrestricted Net position Adjusted for 

Pension and OPEB Obligations: 47,732$               53,838$               47,262$               

Total Net Position Adjusted for Pension 

and OPEB Obligations: 160,213$             163,739$             149,437$             

The impact of the accounting for Pension (GASB 68) and OPEB (GASB 75) obligations on 

both Unrestricted Net Position and Total Net Position was $37.4 million in FY2018; $34.9 

million in FY2017; and $7.6 million in FY2016. Adjusted Net Position trends – backing out the 

impact of Pension and OPEB obligations – are as follows: 

Unrestricted Restricted
Net Investment in

Capital
Total Net Position

FY2016 Adjusted $47.2 $4.6 $97.6 $149.4

FY2017 Adjusted $53.8 $5.2 $104.7 $163.7

FY2018 Adjusted $47.7 $5.0 $107.5 $160.2

$0

$50

$100

$150

Millions

Trend Analysis: Net Position
Revised to net out impact of Pension (GASB 68) and OPEB (GASB 75) Obligations

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt 

It should be noted that "Net Position: Net Investment in Capital Assets" represents a conservative accounting (cost 

approach) of the University's capital assets. This figure is net of related debt and net of accumulated depreciation 

and deferred inflow of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those 

assets. Capital Assets also do not include residence halls since they are recorded on the financial statements of the 

Massachusetts State College Building Authority. 
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■ 

■ 

■ 

The University has $32.6 million in aggregate interagency payables (predominantly long-term capital debt) 

as of the close of FY2018 (a decrease of $5.0 million over FY2017 due to pay off of the outstanding balance 

on the MHEFA bond as well as debt service payments on other bonds). Net Investment in Capital Assets 

was $107.5 million at the end of FY2018. 

Interagency Payables
(Long Term Debt)

Net Investment in Capital

FY2016 $39.4 $97.6

FY2017 $37.6 $104.7

FY2018 $32.6 $107.5

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120
Millions

Trend Analysis: Interagency Payables (Long Term Debt); Net Capital Investment

Major capital projects undertaken during FY2018 ("Additions" to Net Investment in Capital) include: 

Maple Athletic Fields Study 20,655$               

Whittemore Library Study 24,000                 

Welcome Center Exterior Painting 57,430                 

May Hall HVAC 62,554                 

McCarthy Student Services Center 83,786                 

Doyle Center ITS Renovation Project 92,991                 

Hemenway Hall “Backfill Project” Components   300,181               

Power Plant Reheat Boiler 789,040               

Utilities/Tunnel Project 1,003,618            

McCarthy Student Center Chiller Project 1,438,485            

McCarthy Student Center Dining Commons 3,647,924            

7,520,664$          

Maynard Building/Cultural Arts Center 2,932,536$         

Recorded as interagency funded from FSU to MSCBA

Endowment Funds 

A portion of the restricted net position includes endowment funds held by the University. The University itself 

has a very small designated endowment; $2.2 million of non-expendable restricted funds. An additional $2.0 

million, at June 30, 2018, in restricted scholarship funds (designated as "expendable" but in practice allocations 

are limited to proceeds) acts as "quasi-endowment" funds. Further, the Board of Trustees has designated 

unrestricted net position with end of FY2018 value of $26.4 million as quasi-endowment (noted as "Core 

Investment" funds in the University's annual approval of its Cash Management and Investment Policy). 

Aggregate endowment and designated quasi-endowment funds held by the University total $30.6M 

(representing an increase of $2.3M or +8.1% from FY2017). The University invests these assets, along with 

other cash holdings, in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), the Common Fund, Eaton 

Vance, Brown Advisory, and Boston Trust. 

10 



 

 

 
 

  

     

       

  

 

• 
• 
• 

University Endowment
(Including Designated) Funds

FSU Foundation Endowment
(Net Assets) Funds

FY2016 $25.7 $8.8

FY2017 $28.3 $9.6

FY2018 $30.6 $11.2

$0.0

$10.0

$20.0

$30.0

Millions

Trend Analysis: Endowment (Including Designated) Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position represents the University's results from 

operations. A condensed summary of the University's revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years 

ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2017, and June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

(In Thousands) 2018 2017 2016

Operating Revenues:

Tuition and Fees 44,796$               43,927$               42,531$               

Less Scholarships (9,569)                  (8,532)                  (8,215)                  

Net Student Tuition & Fees 35,227                 35,395                 34,316                 

Sales and Services 1,243                   923                      827                      

Auxiliary Enterprises 16,001                 15,630                 14,707                 

Other Revenues 10,449                 12,076                 13,495                 

Total Operating Revenues 62,920                 64,024                 63,345                 

Operating Expenses:

Instruction (34,241)                (33,812)                (31,337)                

Research (112)                     (1,732)                  (1,631)                  

Academic Support (13,870)                (12,836)                (11,852)                

Student Services (13,682)                (13,214)                (11,912)                

Institutional Support (11,690)                (10,555)                (10,815)                

Operation/Maintenance of Plant (12,791)                (12,353)                (11,440)                

Depreciation (7,328)                  (5,892)                  (4,735)                  

Auxiliary Enterprises (13,866)                (13,601)                (10,396)                

Total Operating Expenses (107,580)              (103,995)              (94,118)                

Operating Loss (44,660)                (39,971)                (30,773)                
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(In Thousands) 2018 2017 2016

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):

State Appropriations (net) 37,753                 37,022                 35,478                 

Gifts 871                      324                      329                      

Net Investment Income 3,815                   4,170                   1,729                   

State Capital Appropriations/Grants 173                      12,189                 20,696                 

Interest/Issuance Costs on Debt (1,353)                  (1,104)                  (829)                     

Capital Grants 538                      

Transfers (to)/from State Agencies (3,147)                  200                      (10,799)                

Net Non-Operating Revenues 38,650                 52,801                 46,604                 

Change in Net Position (6,010)$                12,830$               15,831$               

Due to the nature of public higher education accounting as it pertains to state appropriations, institutions incur a 

loss from operations before accounting for state support. State appropriations supplement University operations 

and act as a subsidy for operations not covered by operating revenues. Under GASB, appropriations are 

considered non-operating revenue. The following schedule illustrates the University's incurred losses from 

operations as well as change in net position for Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2017, and June 30, 

2016: 

Schedule of Loss from Operations and Change in Net Position

FY2018 FY2017 FY2016

       

Tuition and Fees Revenue, Net 35,227$               35,395$               34,316$               

Other Operating Revenue 27,693                 28,629                 29,029                 

Total Operating Revenue 62,920                 64,024                 63,345                 

Operating Expenses (107,580)              (103,995)              (94,118)                

Operating Loss (44,660)                (39,971)                (30,773)                

Net State Appropriations 37,753                 37,022                 35,478                 

Net Other Revenue/(Expenses) 897                      15,779                 11,126                 

Change in Net Position (6,010)$                12,830$               15,831$               

Net Position End of Fiscal Year 122,809$             128,819$             141,823$             

(In Thousands)

Net position at the beginning of Fiscal Year 2018 (restated) was $128.8 million. Net position at the end of 

Fiscal Year 2018 was $122.8 million; representing a -$6.0 million (-4.7%) decrease in net position. A 

significant portion of this decrease is associated with non-operating/accounting adjustments for pensions and 

OPEB obligations as well as depreciation expense increases. 

Revenues and Expenditures 

From FY2016 to FY2018, expenditures on Auxiliary Enterprises experienced the largest increase 

(reflecting the opening of West Hall in FY2017) increasing $3.5 million, or 33.7%; followed by: 

Depreciation that increased $2.6 million, or 54.8% (due to the completion of the Science Laboratories 

buildings); Instruction that increased $2.9 million, or 9.3%; Academic Support that increased $2.0 million, 

or 16.9%; Student Services that increased $1.8 million, or 15.1%; Operations and Maintenance of Plant 

that increased $1.4 million, or 12.2%; and Institutional Support that increased $0.9 million or 8.1%. 
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Trend Analysis: Instruct ion, Support Services, Plant O&M , Aux. Ent. Expenditures 
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Instruct ion Research 
Academic Stud e nt Inst itutional Ops and 

De prec iat ion A ux. Ent. 
Supp ort Services Supp ort M aint 

■ FY2016 $31.3 $ 1.6 $ 11.9 $ 11.9 $ 10.8 $ 11.4 $4.7 $ 10.4 

■ FY2017 $33 .8 $ 1. 7 $ 12.8 $ 13 .2 $ 10.6 $ 12.4 $5.9 $ 13.6 

■ FY2018 $34 .2 $0. 1 $13 .9 $13 .7 $ 11.7 $ 12.8 $7.3 $13 .9 

• 
• • 

From FY2017 to FY2018, net state appropriations (including fringe benefits support) increased by $0.7M 

(+2.0%), student net revenues decreased by -$0.2M (-0.5%), and other revenues decreased a total of -

$16.0M (-36.0%); the decrease in Other Revenues is largely associated with reductions in state capital 

support in FY2018 associated with completion of the Science Laboratories building. 

State Appropriations (Net) Student Revenues (Net) Other Revenues

FY2016 $35.5 $34.3 $51.8

FY2017 $37.0 $35.4 $45.5

FY2018 $37.7 $35.2 $33.1

$0.0

$15.0

$30.0

$45.0

$60.0

Millions

Trend Analysis: State Appropriations, Student and Other Revenues

FY2018 Other Revenues reflects a  significant reduction in state capital funding associated with the Science Laboratories Proj ect.
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Revenues Illustration 

The following is an illustration of revenues by source (both operating and non-operating), which were used to 

fund the University's activities for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Fiscal Year 2018 Revenues 

State appropriations, along with student tuition and fees, are the primary sources of funding for the University. 

Fiscal Year 2018 net state appropriation support as a percent of total revenues (including fringe benefits support) 

was 37% while tuition and fees revenues represented 35% of total revenues and other revenue (including 

Auxiliary Enterprises) represented 28% of total revenues. 

Expenditures Illustration 

A graphic of the University's functional expenditures for FY2018 is as follows: 

Research 0% 

Expenditures on Instruction and Academic Support made up approximately 45% of total expenditures in 

FY2018. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows provides information about the University's financial results, by reporting 

the major sources and uses of cash. A condensed summary of the statement of cash flows for Fiscal 

Years 2018, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

Statement of Cash Flows

(In Thousands) FY2018 FY2017 FY2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

  Cash Received from Operations 64,259$               63,265$               63,413$               

  Cash Expended for Operations (86,966)                (85,217)                (81,580)                

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities (22,707)                (21,952)                (18,167)                

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities

  State Appropriations 28,224                 25,417                 30,247                 

  Tuition Remitted to the Commonwealth (386)                     (341)                     (312)                     

  Gifts and Endowment 899                      529                      93                        

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities 28,737                 25,605                 30,028                 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

  State Capital Appropriations 173                      4,523                   7,459                   

  Perkins Loan Program Net Funds Received 9                          13                        (50)                       

  Payments for Capital Assets (2,977)                  (3,352)                  (3,524)                  

  Interagency Principal Payments                                                         (4,812)                  (1,772)                  (1,702)                  

  Interest Paid on Interagency Payables (1,494)                  (1,403)                  (1,430)                  

  Transfers of Funds to/from State Agencies (3,147)                  200                      (10,799)                

  Net Proceeds of Bank Line of Credit -                       -                       (1,153)                  

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (12,248)                (1,791)                  (11,199)                

Cash flows from Investing Activities

   Purchase/Sale (Net) of Marketable Securities (2,298)                  (1,934)                  (3,165)                  

   Earnings on Investments 2,803                   2,212                   1,362                   

   Loan funds received/(advanced) -                       -                       1,153                   

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Investing Activities 505                      278                      (650)                     

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,713)$                2,140$                 12$                      

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of Fiscal Year 2018 were $33.3 million and at the end of the 

fiscal year were $27.6 million; reflecting a -$5.7 million decrease. This decrease is largely attributable to use 

of cash to pay off the remaining principal on the 1998 MHEFA bond as well as payment and transfer of 

state funds for capital assets. 

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT THE FUTURE 

Framingham State University (FSU) is entering into a transition period where – after a sustained period of 

substantial enrollment growth – the University has experienced decreases in new and aggregate student 

enrollment for the past three years. This situation is primarily a result of demographic changes (predominantly the 

number of Massachusetts high school graduates being produced annually) as well as other external factors such as 

increased competition for students (e.g., the University of Massachusetts system continues its enrollment growth 

strategy). 

As significant as future enrollment changes impact on University operations will be, so will be the level of future 

state appropriation support. When state funding increases are not sufficient to keep up with University salary 

costs, the University has to move personnel to local trust funds and, subsequently, picks up additional fringe 

benefits costs on these faculty and staff (that is, for every one dollar of salary that gets transferred to local funds, 

the University is picking up an additional thirty-six cents in benefits costs in addition to the assumed salary costs). 
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Looking forward, progress in implementation of the new strategic plan will require the prudent use of state 

support, recognition that increases in net student revenues will likely be minimal, and further diversification of 

funding including private gifts and grant funding. Further, alternative financing vehicles will be sought as 

important supplements to traditional state and student revenue streams. These actions, in conjunction with 

continuing cost containment as well as selective expenditures reduction measures, will enable the University to 

provide high-quality and affordable programs and services to its constituents. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Framingham State University's finances for all 

those with an interest in the University's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 

report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Executive Vice President, 

Framingham State University, 100 State Street, P.O. Box 9101, Framingham, MA 01701-9101. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 2018 2017

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10,793,500$      16,421,922$      796,343$           722,311$           

1,934,454 1,674,586 -                     -                     

16,477,344        15,097,837 7,721,252          7,083,668          
Accounts receivable, net 2,529,818 2,793,284 -                     -                     
Contributions receivable, net -                     -                     441,485             63,064               

2,011 2,778 -                     -                     
Other current assets 624,476 729,505 25,564               15,205               

Total current assets 32,361,603        36,719,912        8,984,644          7,884,248          

Noncurrent assets

14,883,520        15,228,433        -                     -                     
Endowment investments -                     -                     2,261,794          1,772,452          

26,499,096        24,374,633        -                     -                     
Contributions receivable, net -                     -                     28,121               48,454               

2,105,117          2,210,548          -                     -                     
Capital assets, net 137,878,836      139,584,598      -                     -                     

   Other noncurrent assets -                     -                     20,667               -                     

Total noncurrent assets 181,366,569      181,398,212      2,310,582          1,820,906          

Total assets 213,728,172      218,118,124      11,295,226        9,705,154          

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows for pensions 5,494,852          5,961,111          -                     -                     
Deferred outflows for OPEB 5,572,017          -                     

11,066,869        5,961,111          -                     -                     

Foundation, Inc.

Component Unit
Framingham State University

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents
Investments in marketable 
securities

Loans receivable - current 
portion

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

Investment in marketable 
securities

Loans receivable, net of current 
portion

Total deferred outflows of 
resources
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 2018 2017

Liabilities
Current liabilities

1,579,472           1,914,058           -                     -                     

3,425,024           2,647,866           82,054                103,692              

95,126                110,794              -                     -                     

3,567,363           3,399,346           -                     -                     
Faculty payroll accrual 3,311,241           3,209,692           -                     -                     
Revenue received in advance 1,992,847           1,867,419           -                     -                     
Deposits 463,993              321,978              -                     -                     
Other current liabilities 1,081,758           619,200              -                     -                     

Total current liabilities 15,516,824         14,090,353         82,054                103,692              

Noncurrent liabilities

31,061,909         35,679,054         -                     -                     

353,583              501,330              -                     -                     

2,217,325           2,213,030           -                     -                     

1,903,986           1,894,862           -                     -                     
Net pension liability 14,961,538         14,519,987         -                     -                     
Net OPEB liability 29,100,266         25,834,386         -                     -                     

Total noncurrent liabilities 79,598,607         80,642,649         -                     -                     

Total liabilities 95,115,431         94,733,002         82,054                103,692              

Deferred inflows of resources

2,462,000           -                     -                     
-                     

Deferred inflows for pensions 992,813              527,421              -                     -                     
Deferred inflows for OPEB 3,415,904           -                     -                     -                     

6,870,717           527,421              -                     -                     

Accrued workers' 
compensation - current portion
Compensated absences - 
current portion

Foundation, Inc.

Component Unit
Framingham State University

Interagency payables - current 
portion
Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities

   Service concession 
   arrangement

Total deferred inflows of 
resources

Interagency payables, net of 
current portion
Accrued workers' 
compensation, net of current 
portion
Compensated absences, net of 
current portion
Loan payable - federal financial 
assistance programs
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 2018 2017

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 107,501,952       104,693,789       -                     -                     
Restricted for

Non-expendable
Scholarships and academic 
purposes 2,158,255           2,088,572           2,261,794           1,772,452           

Expendable
Scholarships 1,969,445           1,834,356           847,749              478,302              
Academic purposes -                     -                     1,539,576           1,592,544           
Research 478,808              440,761              -                     -                     
Loans 372,365              389,160              -                     -                     
Capital projects -                     454,000              -                     -                     

Unrestricted 10,328,068         18,918,174         6,564,053           5,758,164           

Total net position 122,808,893$     128,818,812$     11,213,172$       9,601,462$         

Foundation, Inc.

Component Unit
Framingham State University

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Component Unit 
Framingham State University 

Foundation, Inc. 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

Operating revenues 
Student tuition and fees $  44,796,259 $     43,927,462 $ - $   -
Less: Scholarship allowances (9,568,815) (8,532,544) - -

Net student tuition and fees 35,227,444 35,394,918 - -

Federal grants and contracts 7,389,989 6,515,105 - -
State and local grants and 
contracts 327,193 1,250,379 - -
Private grants 313,378 2,116,834 - -
Sales and services of 
educational departments 1,243,159 923,237 - -
Gifts and contributions - - 1,070,190 420,989 
Auxiliary enterprises 

Residential life 16,001,360 15,630,123 - -
Other operating revenues 2,417,870 2,193,522 49,918 48,767 

Total operating revenues 62,920,393 64,024,118 1,120,108 469,756 

Operating expenses 
Educational and general 

Instruction 34,241,502 33,811,638 - -
Research 112,467 1,732,248 - -
Academic support 13,869,676 12,835,835 - -
Student services 13,682,206 13,214,323 - -
Institutional support 11,690,341 10,555,230 220,435 179,501 
Operations and maintenance 
of plant 12,790,568 12,352,552 - -
Depreciation 7,327,512 5,892,062 - -
Scholarships - - 628,517 603,231 

Auxiliary enterprises 
Residential life 13,866,466 13,601,357 - -

Total operating expenses 107,580,738 103,995,245 848,952 782,732 

Operating income (loss) (44,660,345) (39,971,127) 271,156 (312,976) 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 2018 2017

State appropriations 37,753,236        37,022,123        -                     -                     
Gifts 871,103             323,530             -                     -                     

3,815,056          4,170,089          851,394             909,414             

(1,352,733)         (1,103,808)         -                     -                     

41,086,662        40,411,934        851,394             909,414             

(3,573,683)         440,807             1,122,550          596,438             

State capital appropriations 173,013             12,188,695        -                     -                     
Transfers (to)/from state agencies (3,147,249)         200,000             -                     -                     
Capital grants 538,000             -                     -                     -                     

-                     -                     489,160             186,649             

(2,436,236)         12,388,695        489,160             186,649             

Increase (decrease) in net position (6,009,919)         12,829,502        1,611,710          783,087             

128,818,812      141,823,696      9,601,462          8,818,375          

Restatement (See Note 26) -                     (25,834,386)       -                     -                     

128,818,812      115,989,310      9,601,462          8,818,375          

Net position - end of year 122,808,893$    128,818,812$    11,213,172$      9,601,462$        

Net position - beginning of year, as 
restated

Component Unit
Framingham State University

Net position - beginning of year, as 
previously stated

Foundation, Inc.

Investment income, net of 
investment expense

Interest expense on Interagency 
payables and capital asset related 
debt

Net nonoperating revenues 
before capital and 
endowment additions

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before capital 
and endowment additions

Private gifts for endowment 
purposes

Total capital and endowment 
additions

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Tuition and fees 34,918,542$      34,744,794$      
Research grants and contracts 8,334,180          7,288,318          
Private grants 282,410             2,428,309          
Payments to suppliers (28,036,819)       (27,347,974)       
Payments to utilities (3,834,308)         (3,883,505)         
Payments to employees (50,728,071)       (49,711,018)       
Payments for benefits (4,102,557)         (4,051,349)         
Loans issued to students (264,405)            (223,678)            
Collection of loans to students 370,603             322,244             
Auxiliary enterprise receipts

Residential life 16,001,360        15,630,123        
Receipts from sales and services of educational departments 1,235,058          912,066             
Room and parking fees 142,015             (16,927)              
Other receipts 2,974,520          1,955,908          

Net cash used in operating activities (22,707,472)       (21,952,689)       

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
State appropriations 28,224,323        25,416,504        
Tuition remitted to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (385,692)            (341,127)            
Gifts from grants for other than capital purposes 898,759             529,064             

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 28,737,390        25,604,441        

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
State capital appropriations 173,013             4,522,681          
Perkins Loan Program net funds received 9,124                 13,177               
Payments for capital assets (2,976,750)         (3,351,867)         
Interagency principal payments (4,812,250)         (1,771,747)         
Interest paid on Interagency payables (1,494,095)         (1,402,947)         
Net transfers of funds (to)/from state agencies (3,147,249)         200,000             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (12,248,207)       (1,790,703)         

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 15,120,264        14,393,270        
Purchase of marketable securities (17,418,585)       (16,326,557)       
Earnings on investments 2,803,143          2,211,838          

Net cash provided by investing activities 504,822             278,551             

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents          (5,713,467)            2,139,600 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 33,324,941        31,185,341        

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 27,611,474$      33,324,941$      
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in 
operating activities 

Depreciation 
Bad debt expense 
Fringe benefits paid by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Change in net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows for 
pensions 
Change in net OPEB liability and deferred inflows and outflows for 
OPEB 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable, net 
Loans to students 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Accrued workers' compensation 
Compensated absences 
Faculty payroll accrual 
Revenue received in advance 
Deposits 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent balances 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Noncurrent assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

2018 

$    (44,660,345) 

7,327,512 
290,703 

10,075,869 

1,373,202 

1,109,767 

(54,893) 
106,198 
105,029 
777,158 

(163,415) 
172,312 
101,549 
125,428 
142,015 
464,439 

$    (22,707,472) 

$     10,793,500 
1,934,454 

14,883,520 

$     27,611,474 

$  

$  

$   

$   

2017 

(39,971,127) 

5,892,062 
8,222 

9,446,746 

1,472,538 

-

(1,102,615) 
98,566 

(202,720) 
1,591,254 

93,276 
221,548 
486,695 

(283,026) 
(16,927) 
312,819 

(21,952,689) 

16,421,922 
1,674,586 

15,228,433 

33,324,941 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017

Schedule of noncash investing, capital and financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets 5,621,750$        11,269,894$      
Accounts payable thereon

Beginning of year -                     10,353               
Payments made by DCAMM -                     (7,666,014)         
Investment contributions related to service concession arrangement (2,645,000)         -                     
Net interest incurred, capitalized in construction in progress -                     (262,366)            

Payments for capital assets      2,976,750$        3,351,867$        
               

Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities 2,004,396$        1,958,251$        

Fringe benefits paid by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 10,075,869$      9,446,746$        

Capital grants - amortization of deferred inflows of resources - 
service concession arrangement 538,000$           -$                   

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Organization 
Framingham State University (the "University") is a public, State-supported comprehensive four-
year university which offers a quality education leading to baccalaureate and master's degrees in 
many disciplines. With its campus located in Framingham, Massachusetts, the University provides 
instruction in a variety of liberal arts, allied health, and business fields of study. The University also 
offers, through the Division of Continuing Education, credit and non-credit courses. The University 
is accredited by the New England Commission of Higher Education ("NECHE") (formerly known as 
the New England Association of Schools and Colleges ("NEASC")). 

The University is a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the "State" or the 
"Commonwealth"). The accompanying financial statements reflect only the transactions of the 
University and it's discretely presented component unit. Accordingly, the accompanying financial 
statements may not necessarily be indicative of the conditions that would have existed if the 
University had been operated independently of the State. 

Framingham State University Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") is a component unit of 
Framingham State University. The Foundation is a legally separate tax exempt organization under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It was organized on November 10, 1981, 
exclusively for the benefit of Framingham State University, to receive and maintain funds to be used 
for the development, promotion and best interests of the University and its students. The Board of 
the Foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of graduates and friends of the University. 
Although the University does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the 
majority of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds and invests are restricted to the 
activities of the University by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the 
Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a 
component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University's financial statements. 

Framingham State University Foundation Supporting Organization, Inc. (the "Foundation Supporting 
Organization") was organized on October 22, 2012 for the exclusive benefit of the Foundation and 
all of its educational and charitable activities. The Foundation Supporting Organization is a legally 
separate, tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As of 
June 30, 2018, the Foundation Supporting Organization has not had any activity. The financial 
information of the Foundation Supporting Organization is consolidated into the financial statements 
of the Foundation. The Foundation and Foundation Supporting Organization are collectively 
referred to hereinafter as the "FSU Foundation". 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the FSU Foundation distributed scholarships in the amount 
of $628,517 directly to students of the University, and incurred an additional $220,435 in support of 
its mission in other ways. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the FSU Foundation distributed 
scholarships in the amount of $603,231 directly to students of the University, and incurred an 
additional $179,501 in support of its mission in other ways. Complete financial statements for the 
FSU Foundation can be obtained from the office of the Executive Vice President, Administration, 
Finance and Technology, Framingham State University, 100 State Street, P.O. Box 9101, 
Framingham, MA 01701-9101. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Basis of presentation 
The University's financial statements have been prepared using the "economic resources 
measurement focus" and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board ("GASB"). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

FSU Foundation, as a nonprofit organization, reports under Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASB") guidance on financial reporting for Not-for-Profit Entities. As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria 
and presentation features. Other than the reclassification of certain items, no modifications have 
been made to FSU Foundation's consolidated financial information in the University's financial 
reporting entity for these differences. 

The University's policy for defining operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the 
payment received for services and payment made for the purchase of goods and services. Certain 
other transactions are reported as nonoperating activities in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 35. These nonoperating activities include the University's operating and capital appropriations 
from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, net investment income, gifts, and interest expense. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the University's policy to 
use the restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

GASB Statement No. 34 requires that resources be classified for accounting purposes into the 
following three net position categories: 

 Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position. 

 Restricted: 

Nonexpendable - Component of net position whose net assets are subject to externally-
imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the University. Such assets 
include the University's permanent endowment funds. 

Expendable - Component of net position whose use of net assets by the University is 
subject to externally-imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the University 
pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

 Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. Unrestricted net position may be 
designated for specific purposes by action of management or the University's Board of 
Trustees (the "Trustees"). 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

In accordance with the requirements of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the University's 
operations are accounted for in several trust funds. All of these trust funds have been consolidated 
and are included in these financial statements. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts and disclosures reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Although these estimates are based on management's knowledge of current events and actions it 
may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results. 

Cash and cash equivalents and investments 
The University's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, cash and cash 
equivalents held by the Commonwealth's Treasurer and Receiver-General, Massachusetts 
Development Finance Agency ("MDFA"), Massachusetts State College Building Authority 
("MSCBA") and Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance ("DCAMM"), and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Investments for the University are reported at fair value. Any investments held with the 
Commonwealth's Treasurer and Receiver-General in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust 
("MMDT") are also at fair value. This external investment pool, run by the Commonwealth's 
Treasurer and Receiver-General, operates in accordance with appropriate laws and regulations. 
The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 

Investments include marketable debt and equity securities which are carried at their readily 
determinable fair values. Investments also include pooled investment funds with Commonfund 
which are valued at fair value based upon estimated net asset values provided by the management 
of Commonfund. These pooled investment funds are invested in marketable debt and equity 
securities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in nonoperating revenues. Gains 
and losses on the disposition of investments are determined based on specific identification of 
securities sold or the average cost method. Investment income is recognized when earned and is 
generally credited to the trust fund holding the related assets. 

Dividends, interest and net gains or losses on investments are reported in the statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Any net earnings not expended are included in 
net position categories as follows: 

(i) as increases in restricted - nonexpendable net position if the terms of the gift require that 
they be added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund; 

(ii) as increases in restricted - expendable net position if the terms of the gift or the University's 
interpretation of relevant state law impose restrictions on the current use of the income or 
net gains. The University has relied upon the Attorney General's interpretation of state law 
that unappropriated endowment gains should be classified as restricted - expendable; and 

(iii) as increases in unrestricted net position in all other cases. 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University had $91,123 and $102,127, respectively, in endowment 
income available by authorization for expenditure, which is included in restricted-expendable net 
position for scholarships and fellowships. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 15 grants authority to the University's Trustees to administer 
the general business of the University. Inherent in this authority is the authority to invest funds of 
the University. Chapter 15 further grants the Trustees the authority to delegate, to the President, 
any said powers or responsibilities. The Trustees of Framingham State University have delegated 
the authority to make specific investment decisions to the Finance Committee of the Board of 
Trustees. Endowment funds are in cash and cash equivalents. The primary cash equivalents are 
within the MMDT, the external investment pool for political subdivisions of the Commonwealth. 

The University's authorized spending rule provides that all earnings on endowment investments 
may be expended pursuant to the stipulations placed on those endowments. If a donor has not 
provided specific instructions, Massachusetts General Law permits the University's Trustees to 
authorize for expense the net appreciation (realized and unrealized) of the investments of 
endowment funds. Any net appreciation that is spent is required to be spent for the purposes for 
which the endowment was established. 

FSU Foundation's investments include marketable debt and equity securities which are carried at 
their readily determinable market values. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in 
revenue. Restricted investment income and gains are reported as increases in unrestricted net 
position, unless a donor or law temporarily (expendable) or permanently (non-expendable) restricts 
their use. Gains and losses on the disposition of investments are determined based on specific 
identification of securities sold or the average cost method. 

FSU Foundation maintains cash and an investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each 
fund's portion is reflected in the financial statements under cash and cash equivalents and 
investments. Earnings on cash and investments of the unrestricted net position and temporarily 
restricted (expendable) net position are reflected in the fund in which the assets are recorded. 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the University expects to collect from outstanding 
balances. The University provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to 
operations and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the University has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts 
receivable. 

Loans receivable and payable 
Loans receivable consist, primarily, of the Federal Perkins Loan Program ("Perkins"). The federal 
government provides the majority of the funds to support this program. Loan payments received 
from students made under the Perkins program may be re-loaned after collection. The portion of the 
Perkins program provided by the federal government is refundable to the federal government upon 
the ending (liquidation) of the University's participation in the program. 

The prescribed practices for the Perkins program do not provide for accrual of interest on student 
loans receivable or for the provision of an allowance for doubtful loans. Accordingly, interest on 
loans is recorded as received and loan balances are reduced subsequent to the determination of 
their uncollectability and have been accepted (assigned) by the U.S. Department of Education 
("ED"). Management closely monitors outstanding balances and assigns loans to the ED based 
upon such factors as student payment history, current status of applicable students, and the results 
of collection efforts. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Capital assets 
Capital assets are controlled but not owned by the University. The University is not able to sell or 
otherwise pledge its assets, since the assets are all owned by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, building 
improvements, equipment and other assets are reported in the statements of net position at cost or 
fair market value, if donated. Capital assets are defined by the University as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $50,000 in accordance with the Commonwealth's capitalization policy. 
The University does not hold collections of historical treasures, works of art, or other items not 
requiring capitalization or depreciation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets, with the exception of land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
estimated useful lives of 40 years for buildings, 20 years for building and land improvements, 5 
years for furniture and 3 to 10 years for equipment. 

Library materials acquired for the most recent five-year period are capitalized. The cost of library 
materials purchased in the current year is added and the cost of purchases made in the earliest 
year of the five-year period is deducted from the net position balance. 

The land on which the residence halls stand is leased by the MSCBA from the Commonwealth at a 
yearly cost of one dollar. 

The University, in accordance with a management and services agreement between the MSCBA 
and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, is charged a semi-annual revenue assessment which is 
based on a certified occupancy report, the current rent schedule, and the design capacity for each 
of the residence halls. This revenue assessment is used by the MSCBA to pay principal and 
interest due on its long-term debt obligations. These obligations may include the costs of periodic 
renovations and improvements to the residence halls. The revenue assessment amounts for the 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were $11,430,074 and $11,043,860, respectively, and are 
included in the Residential life auxiliary enterprises in the accompanying statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position. All facilities and obligations of the MSCBA are included in 
the financial statements of the MSCBA. It is not practical to determine the specific asset cost or 
liability attributable to the University. The leases, therefore, are accounted for under the operating 
method for financial statement purposes. 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Foundation has elected to not 
record its art collection as an asset on the statements of net position. Purchases of collection items 
are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in the year in which the items are acquired, or 
as temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the assets used to purchase the items are 
restricted by donors. Contributed collection items are not reflected on the financial statements. 
Proceeds from deaccessions or insurance recoveries are reflected as increases in the appropriate 
net asset classes. Donations and acquisitions of collections are not required to be recognized since 
they are added to collections that are held for public exhibition and education in furtherance of 
public service rather than financial gain; are protected, kept encumbered, cared for and preserved; 
and are subject to a policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to 
acquire other items for collection. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Compensated absences 
Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation leave and sick leave. 
Accrued vacation is the amount earned by all eligible employees through June 30, each year. 
Pursuant to statewide experience on sick pay buy-back agreements applicable to state employees, 
the University accrues sick leave to a level representing 20% of amounts earned by those 
University employees with 10 or more years of State service at the end of the fiscal year. Upon 
retirement, these employees are entitled to receive payment for this accrued balance (see Note 8). 

Student fees 
Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships applied to students' accounts. Certain 
other scholarship amounts are paid directly to, or refunded to, the student and are generally 
reflected as expenses. 

Scholarship allowances consist of various forms of student financial assistance, which do not 
require repayment. Federal scholarships include Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity 
Grants, Federal Pell Grants, and Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education 
Grants ("TEACH Grants"). University scholarships include a wide variety of University and 
University department funded scholarship programs. 

Scholarship allowances for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 consist of the following: 

2018 2017

Federal scholarships 6,557,040$       5,849,615$       
University scholarships 2,626,317         2,324,068         
University scholarships (residential life) 287,949            288,000            
Endowment scholarships 97,509              70,861              

Total 9,568,815$       8,532,544$       

Revenue received in advance 
Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees related to the University's summer 
programs and tuition billed for the following fiscal year are recorded as revenues received in 
advance. Funds received in advance from various grants and contracts are also included in 
revenues received in advance. 

Agency funds 
Agency funds consist of resources held by the University as custodian or fiscal agent of student 
organizations, the State Treasurer and others. Transactions are recorded to asset and liability 
accounts. There were no material balances at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Bond premiums 
Bond premiums are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related debt 
agreements. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Interest expense and capitalization 
The University follows the policy of capitalizing interest expense as a component of the cost of 
capital assets constructed for its own use. During 2018 and 2017, total interest costs incurred were 
accounted for as follows: 

2018 2017

Total interest costs incurred 1,502,492$       1,482,475$       
Less: Interest income on unused funds from tax 
exempt borrowings
Bond premium amortization (139,481)           (37,290)             

1,352,733         1,366,174         

Less: Capitalized portion of net interest earned and 
incurred -                    (262,366)           

Interest expense 1,352,733$       1,103,808$       

(10,278)             (79,011)             

Pension plan 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Massachusetts State Employees' Retirement System ("MSERS") and additions 
to/deductions from MSERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by MSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

OPEB plan 
For purposes of measuring the net post-employment benefits other than pensions ("OPEB") liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB Trust Fund and additions 
to/deductions from the OPEB Trust Fund 's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Trust Fund. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Fringe benefits 
The University participates in the Commonwealth's fringe benefit programs, including health 
insurance, unemployment, pension and workers' compensation benefits. Workers' compensation 
coverage is provided by the Commonwealth on a self-insured basis. Health insurance and pension 
costs are billed through a fringe benefit rate charged to the University. Workers' compensation and 
unemployment insurance costs are assessed separately based on the University's actual 
experience. 

Tax status 
The University is a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and is, therefore, exempt 
from federal and state income taxes. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Reclassifications 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 financial statements to conform to the 2018 
presentation. 

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements 
In June 2015, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of GASB Statement No. 75 
is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or "OPEB"). GASB Statement No. 75 
requires governments providing defined benefit OPEB plans to recognize their long-term obligation 
for OPEB benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably 
measure the annual costs of OPEB benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and 
transparency through revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary information. 
The provisions in GASB Statement No. 75 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2017 with earlier application encouraged. The University adopted this 
standard in fiscal year 2018. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of GASB 
Statement No. 85 is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements, including GASB Statement No. 75. The applicable 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 85 have been adopted in fiscal year 2018 with the University's 
initial adoption of GASB Statement No. 75. 

The impact of implementing GASB Statements No. 75 and 85 on the University's financial 
statements is further discussed in Notes 21 and 26. 

Note 2 - Cash and cash equivalents, and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted and restricted - include the following at June 30, 2018 and 
2017: 

Current Current Noncurrent 
unrestricted restricted restricted

  
Cash and money market accounts * 7,709,895$       1,795,757$       8,569,700$       
Massachusetts State Treasurer ** 3,066,044         -                    2,002,400         
Petty cash 17,561              2,100                -                    
Century Bancorp, Inc. -                    -                    18,244              
Cash and cash equivalents held by MDFA*** -                    136,597            -                    
Cash and cash equivalents held by MSCBA **** -                    -                    4,293,176         
Cash and cash equivalents held by DCAMM ***** -                    -                    -                    

Total 10,793,500$     1,934,454$       14,883,520$     

2018
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Current Current Noncurrent 
unrestricted restricted restricted

  
Cash and money market accounts * 11,068,444$     1,281,822$       7,831,063$       
Massachusetts State Treasurer ** 5,331,929         -                    4,254,641         
Petty cash 21,549              2,100                -                    
Century Bancorp, Inc. -                    -                    18,208              
Cash and cash equivalents held by MDFA*** -                    390,664            337,300            
Cash and cash equivalents held by MSCBA **** -                    -                    2,687,221         
Cash and cash equivalents held by DCAMM ***** -                    -                    100,000            

Total 16,421,922$     1,674,586$       15,228,433$     

2017

* This amount includes cash and cash equivalents held at MMDT in the amounts of $6,132,497 
and $14,106,697 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

** This amount is held for the benefit of the University by the Massachusetts State Treasurer in 
the amounts of $4,203,339 and $8,679,144 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for 
University funds. In addition, the University has recorded cash held for the benefit of the 
University by the Massachusetts State Treasurer in the amounts of $865,105 and $907,426 at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, to pay year-end liabilities. The latter balances 
represent amounts paid from State appropriations subsequent to the fiscal year-end. 

*** This amount consists of cash and cash equivalents which are restricted by the Massachusetts 
Development Finance Agency ("MDFA") for the funding of payments to retire bonds when 
they mature (see Note 12) and for the funding of the installation of solar photovoltaic panels 
on the McCarthy Center and Athletic Center. The University does not have access to these 
funds except by the authorization of MDFA. The MDFA bonds were repaid in full in fiscal year 
2018 and the remaining funds held by MDFA will be released to the University in fiscal year 
2019. 

**** This amount consists of cash and cash equivalents which are restricted by the Massachusetts 
State College Building Authority ("MSCBA") for the funding of certain construction projects at 
the University and payments to retire bonds (see Note 12). The University does not have 
access to these funds except by the authorization of MSCBA. Interest earned on debt service 
reserve funds is used on a current basis to offset annual debt service payments. 

***** This amount includes cash and cash equivalents which are restricted by the Massachusetts' 
Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance ("DCAMM") for the funding of certain 
construction projects at the University. The University does not have access to these funds 
except by the authorization of DCAMM. 

The Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust ("MMDT") is not subject to Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance. According to the MMDT, it is an external investment pool 
for political subdivisions in the Commonwealth which was designed as a legal means to safely 
invest temporarily available cash. Its primary purpose is to provide a safe, liquid, high-yield 
investment vehicle offering participation in a diversified portfolio of high quality debt instruments. 
The MMDT is not a bank, savings institution, or financial institution. The MMDT is an instrumentality 
of the State Treasurer. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all trust funds. 
Each fund type's portion of this pool is reflected in the financial statements under the caption, cash 
and cash equivalents and investments. The method of allocating interest earned on pooled cash 
and investments is to record all interest to the appropriate fund based on that fund's average 
monthly balance. Interest earnings attributable to each trust fund are included under investment 
income. 

Custodial credit risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the University's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The University's deposit policy provides for bank balances to be 
held in interest-bearing checking accounts and, where account activity and balances warrant it, in 
money market accounts. All bank balances are to be held at financial institutions of high credit 
quality. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University had uninsured cash balances totaling 
approximately $14,594,300 and $6,919,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the 
University's uninsured cash balances of $14,594,300 and $6,919,000, respectively, are fully 
collateralized under an agreement with Bank of America. 

The University does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit 
risk is that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the University will not be able to recover 
the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

FSU Foundation's cash balances are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000. At June 30, 2018 and 
2017, FSU Foundation's uninsured cash and cash equivalent balances, amounted to approximately 
$546,300 and $473,300, respectively. 

Certain investments are covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC") up to 
$500,000, including $250,000 of cash from sale or for purchase of investments, but not cash held 
solely for the purpose of earning interest. SIPC protects securities such as notes, stocks, bonds, 
debentures, certificates of deposit and money funds. 

The following University investments are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent but 
not in the University's name and, therefore, are subject to custodial credit risk as follows: 

2018 2017

U.S. Treasury Notes and Government Securities 4,685,192$       3,383,555$       
Corporate Debt Securities 1,557,530         1,179,101         
Equity Securities 15,983,216       11,679,292       
Money Market Funds 558,458            5,525,798         
Mutual Funds 7,028,965         5,820,414         
Commonfund (pooled investment funds) 13,163,079       11,884,310       

42,976,440       39,472,470       

Less insured amounts 500,000            500,000            

Total subject to custodial credit risk 42,476,440$     38,972,470$     
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Credit risk 
The University is required to comply with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' deposit and 
investment policies which are principally defined in the Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 29. 
State Statutes permit investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, authorized bonds of all states, 
bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, commercial paper rated within the three highest 
classifications established by Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Commercial Paper 
Record and repurchase agreements secured by any of these obligations. The University has also 
adopted its own formal investment policy, the objectives of which are: safety of principal; liquidity for 
operating needs; return on investment; and diversification of risk. The University's investment policy 
generally limits the maturities of investments to not more than one year. However, the University 
may invest in securities with maturities in excess of one year if it is determined to be in the best 
interest of the University as described in the University's investment policy. The University may also 
appoint a professional fund manager and invest in equity and bond funds. Eligible investments shall 
be consistent with those permitted by State Statutes. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the University's deposits held at the MMDT were 
$6,132,497 and $14,106,697, respectively. At June 30, 2018, the approximate percentage of the 
University's deposits held at the MMDT and the respective investment maturities in days were as 
follows: 71% at 30 days or less; 20% at 31-90 days; 9% at 91-180 days; and 0% at 181 days or 
more. At June 30, 2018, 100% of the MMDT's cash portfolio had a First Tier credit quality rating. 

The University's funds held at MDFA are invested in the Short Term Asset Reserve ("STAR") Fund 
and had fair values of $136,597 and $727,964 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The STAR 
Fund invests primarily in U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and other obligations guaranteed by the U.S. 
government or its agencies or instrumentalities. Additionally, the fund invests in repurchase 
agreements, bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, notes, and both 
corporate floating rate and corporate fixed-rate securities. The STAR Fund maintains a net asset 
value ("NAV") of $1 per share and had a fund credit quality rating of AAAm as of both June 30, 
2018 and 2017. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the STAR Fund's investment securities maintain a 
weighted average maturity of 31 and 41 days, respectively. 

At June 30, 2018, certain of the University's funds are held at MSCBA. Of the total, $2,751,513 is 
deposited in various cash accounts which are fully collateralized by securities in accounts in the 
name of MSCBA, and $1,541,663 is invested in various funds as listed below: 

Less Greater 
Fair value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

Fannie Mae Corporation discount note 160,187$         160,187$         -$                 -$                 -$                 N/A
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 
U.S. Govt. Issues 221,582           221,582           -                   -                   -                   AA+
Federal Farm Credit 194,330           -                   194,330           -                     -                   AA+
Massachusetts ST Bonds 965,564           -                   -                   -                   965,564           AAA

Total 1,541,663$      381,769$         194,330$         -$                 965,564$         

                  Investment maturities (in years)            

Investment type
Credit 
rating
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

At June 30, 2017, certain of the University's funds are held at MSCBA. Of the total, $1,056,273 is 
deposited in various cash accounts which are fully collateralized by securities in accounts in the 
name of MSCBA, and $1,630,948 is invested in various funds as listed below: 

Less Greater 
Fair value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

Fannie Mae Corporation discount note 249,472$         249,472$         -$                 -$                 -$                 N/A
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 
U.S. Govt. Issues 221,582           -                   221,582           -                   -                   AAA
Federal Farm Credit 194,330           -                   -                   194,330           -                   AA+
Massachusetts ST Bonds 965,564           -                   -                   -                   965,564           AAA

Total 1,630,948$      249,472$         221,582$         194,330$         965,564$         

                  Investment maturities (in years)            

Investment type
Credit 
rating

The University's investments in marketable securities are represented by the following at June 30, 
2018 and 2017: 

Fair Fair
Cost value Cost value

Current

U.S. Treasury Notes and
Government Securities 93,667$           93,753$           213,594$         214,437$         
Corporate Debt Securities 151,306           147,555           81,228             82,095             
Equity Securities 559,176           826,732           462,716           723,385           
Money Market Funds 22,745             22,745             30,479             30,479             
Mutual Funds 2,198,028        2,223,480        2,205,871        2,163,131        
Commonfund (pooled 
investment funds)

Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 1,052,516        1,082,485        1,019,735        1,076,740        
Intermediate Term Fund   2,064,454        1,922,271        2,029,045        1,915,628        
Equity Index Fund 5,750,220        10,158,323      5,751,171        8,891,942        

Total 11,892,112$    16,477,344$    11,793,839$    15,097,837$    

Noncurrent

U.S. Treasury Notes and
Government Securities 4,747,496$      4,591,439$      3,161,147$      3,169,118$      
Corporate Debt Securities 1,471,505        1,409,975        1,110,619        1,097,006        
Equity Securities 10,059,331      15,156,484      6,827,780        10,955,907      
Money Market Funds 535,713           535,713           5,495,319        5,495,319        
Mutual Funds 4,310,477        4,805,485        3,170,275        3,657,283        

Total 21,124,522$    26,499,096$    19,765,140$    24,374,633$    

2018 2017

The University's investment balances as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 include $26,499,096 and 
$24,374,633, respectively, which represent unrestricted net position designated by the Board of 
Trustees (see Note 16). These amounts consist of an original designated investment of 
$13,500,000 ($0 designated in fiscal years 2018 and 2017), plus accumulated investment income 
earned thereon. 
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

At June 30, 2018, the University's U.S. Treasury Notes and Government Securities and corporate 
debt securities along with their investment maturities and credit quality ratings are as follows: 

Investment maturities (in years) 

Fair Less Greater Credit 
Investment type value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10 rating 

U.S. Treasury Notes and 
Government Securities 

0.125% to 5.450% $ 4,685,192 $ 93,753 $ 2,050,493 $ 2,501,768 $ 39,178 AAA 
Corporate Debt Securities 

1.820% to 3.812% 46,336 - 36,338 - 9,998 AAA 
Corporate Debt Securities 

3.250% 101,772 - 101,772 - - AA 
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.100% to 4.950% 30,180 30,180 - - - AA-
Corporate Debt Securities 

1.700% to 3.850% 246,954 - 246,954 - - A+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

1.700% to 5.250% 100,951 65,875 35,076 - - A 
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.650% to 3.900% 354,396 - 69,649 284,747 - A-
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.400% to 5.150% 262,413 - 246,460 15,953 - BBB+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

3.125% to 5.000% 241,056 - 10,102 215,807 15,147 BBB 
Corporate Debt Securities 

3.125% to 5.250% 91,700 - 14,864 67,536 9,300 BBB-
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.080% to 6.250% 81,772 51,501 30,271 - - NR 

Total $ 6,242,722 $ 241,309 $ 2,841,979 $ 3,085,811 $ 73,623 

At June 30, 2017, the University's U.S. Treasury Notes and Government Securities and corporate 
debt securities along with their investment maturities and credit quality ratings are as follows: 

Investment maturities (in years) 

Fair Less Greater Credit 
Investment type value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10 rating 

U.S. Treasury Notes and 
Government Securities 

0.125% to 5.450% $ 3,383,555 $ 214,437 $ 760,801 $ 2,408,317 $ - AA+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.00% 15,054 - 15,054 - - AAA 
Corporate Debt Securities 

1.00% 14,946 14,946 - - - AA+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

3.25% 104,739 - 104,739 - - AA 
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.100% to 4.950% 41,264 - 41,264 - - AA-
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.300% to 3.850% 215,144 - 199,604 15,540 - A+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

1.700% to 6.250% 448,510 52,139 142,486 253,885 - A 
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.000% to 3.900% 151,609 15,011 30,513 106,085 - A-
Corporate Debt Securities 

2.400% to 2.650% 87,298 - 30,111 57,187 - BBB+ 
Corporate Debt Securities 

3.25% 100,537 - - 100,537 - BBB 

Total $ 4,562,656 $ 296,533 $ 1,324,572 $ 2,941,551 $ -
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Cash equivalents and money market funds include the State Street Institutional U.S. Government 
Money Market Fund in the aggregate amounts of $83,657 and $360,278 at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. The State Street Institutional U.S. Government Money Market Fund invests in 
U.S. Government securities and securities issued by the Government National Mortgage 
Association ("GNMA"). The fund seeks maximum current income consistent with the preservation of 
capital and liquidity, and the maintenance of a stable $1.00 per share net asset value. At June 30, 
2018 and 2017, the fund's investment securities had a weighted average maturity of 22 and 25 
days, respectively. The fund had an average credit quality rating of AAAm at both June 30, 2018 
and 2017. 

Cash equivalents and money market funds include the First American Government Obligation Fund 
in the aggregate amounts of $338,809 and $165,520 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The 
First American Government Obligation Fund invests primarily in U.S. Government securities and 
repurchase agreements collateralized by such obligations. The fund seeks maximum current 
income and daily liquidity. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fund's investment securities had a 
weighted average maturity of 20 and 34 days, respectively. The fund had an average credit quality 
rating of AAAm at both June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Cash equivalents and money market funds include the ICT Treasury Portfolio Institutional Shares in 
the aggregate amounts of $135,992 and $5,000,000 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The 
ICT Treasury Portfolio Institutional Shares invests primarily in U.S. Government securities and 
repurchase agreements collateralized by such obligations. The fund seeks maximum current 
income consistent with stability of capital. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fund's investment 
securities had a weighted average maturity of 45 and 18 days, respectively. The fund had an 
average credit quality rating of AAAm at both June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Mutual funds include $2,082,666 and $2,080,804 held at MMDT in the MMDT Short Term Bond 
Portfolio at June 30 2018 and 2017, respectively. The fund's objective is to generate long-term 
performance exceeding the Barclays 1-5 Year Government/Credit Bond Index by investing in a 
diversified portfolio of investment-grade, short-term, fixed-income securities. The duration of the 
portfolio will approximate the duration of the Barclays 1-5 Year Government/Credit Bond Index. At 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fund's investment securities had a weighted average life of 2.8 and 2.9 
years, respectively, and an effective duration of 2.5 and 2.6 years, respectively. The fund had an 
average credit quality rating of AAA at both June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

The Intermediate Term Fund invests in high-quality fixed income securities with maturities generally 
ranging from 1-3 years. The fund may, however, invest in high-quality fixed income securities with 
maturities ranging from one day to 30 years. The fund's objective is to exceed the performance of 
the Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury Index. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fund's investment 
securities had a weighted average life of 2.6 and 2.4 years, respectively, and an effective duration 
of 2.1 and 2.0 years, respectively. The fund had an average credit quality rating of AA and AA- as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

The Multi-Strategy Bond Fund invests in debt securities across strategies in proportions that are 
considered to be optimal for a fully diversified fixed income portfolio. The majority of the fund's 
assets are invested in traditional core strategies with diversification achieved through exposure to 
global bonds, inflation-indexed bonds, high yield bonds, private debt and other credit-oriented 
strategies and relative value/absolute return strategies. The fund's objective is to exceed the return 
of the broad U.S. bond market as measured by the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index. At 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

June 30, 2018 and 2017, the fund's investment securities had a weighted average life of 6.7 and 7.2 
years, respectively, and an effective duration of 4.9 and 4.7 years, respectively. The fund had an 
average credit quality rating of AA- at both June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

The Equity Index Fund invests in equity securities across strategies in proportions that are 
considered to be optimal for a fully diversified equity portfolio. The fund's objective is to replicate the 
returns of the S&P 500 Index. 

The University incurred investment advisory fees of $101,361 and $109,492 for the years ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which have been netted against investment income in the 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

FSU Foundation's investment policy is to hold its investments to obtain a ratio of approximately 
50-80% equity securities, 20-60% fixed income securities, and 0% to 20% cash and cash 
equivalents based on market value. The FSU Foundation strives to make appropriations annually 
out of the various funds to the University in the form of scholarships and work studies at a 5% 
spending rate based upon the previous year's net asset balances that have funds available for 
expenditure. 

FSU Foundation's investments are included at their fair values and consist of the following at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Fair Fair
Cost value Cost value

U.S. Treasury Notes and
Government Securities 1,282,226$      1,352,324$      1,045,970$      1,044,049$      
Corporate Debt Securities 703,211           683,011           672,852           668,639           
Municipal Debt Securities 51,145            49,686            51,788            51,046            
Equity Securities 2,991,133        4,751,615        2,957,393        4,391,295        
Money Market Funds 373,307           262,012           320,150           258,899           
Mutual Funds 2,467,969        2,884,398        2,049,280        2,442,192        

Total 7,868,991$      9,983,046$      7,097,433$      8,856,120$      

2018 2017

FSU Foundation's investments at fair value are presented in the accompanying statements of net 
position as follows: 

2018 2017

Current assets
Investments 7,721,252$      7,083,668$      

Noncurrent assets
Endowment investments 2,261,794        1,772,452        

Total 9,983,046$      8,856,120$      
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

At June 30, 2018, net unrealized gains in FSU Foundation's investment portfolio amounted to 
$2,114,055. At June 30, 2017, net unrealized gains in FSU Foundation's investment portfolio 
amounted to $1,758,687. 

At June 30, 2018, the fair value of FSU Foundation's investments in debt securities by contractual 
maturities is as follows: 

Fair Less Greater Credit
Investment type value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10 rating

U.S. Treasury Notes and
Government Securities 1,352,324$         153,737$            369,877$            816,476$            12,234$              AAA
Corporate Debt Securities 683,011              33,576                472,371              172,413              4,651                  Varies
Municipal Debt Securities 49,686                5,000                  -                     33,808                10,878                Varies

Total 2,085,021$         192,313$            842,248$            1,022,697$         27,763$              

         Investment maturities (in years)        

At June 30, 2017, the fair value of FSU Foundation's Investments in debt securities by contractual 
maturities is as follows: 

Fair Less Greater Credit
Investment type value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10 rating

U.S. Treasury Notes and
Government Securities 1,044,049$         54,923$              129,386$            843,864$            15,876$              AAA
Corporate Debt Securities 668,639              55,835                357,713              245,359              9,732                  Varies
Municipal Debt Securities 51,046                11,474                5,030                  34,542                -                     Varies

Total 1,763,734$         122,232$            492,129$            1,123,765$         25,608$              

         Investment maturities (in years)        

Money market funds include the DWS Treasury Portfolio - Institutional Shares Fund and First 
American Treasury Obligations Fund in the amounts of $127,218 and $134,794, respectively, at 
June 30, 2018. Money market funds include the DWS Treasury Portfolio - Institutional Shares Fund 
and First American Treasury Obligations Fund in the amounts of $143,656 and $115,243, 
respectively, at June 30, 2017. 

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. 
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in the value of these investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could 
materially affect the University's and FSU Foundations' investment account balances. 

The University's investments have been categorized based upon the fair value hierarchy in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 72 below. The Foundation follows similar guidance in 
accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC 820-10, which prioritizes the inputs 
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of investment assets into three levels also. 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
University can access at measurement date. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University's investments at fair value measurement are as follows at June 30, 2018: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level
U.S. Treasury Notes and Government 
Securities 4,685,192$       -$                  4,685,192$       -$                  
Corporate Debt Securities 1,557,530         -                    1,557,530         -                    
Equity Securities 15,983,216       15,983,216       -                    -                    
Money Market Funds 558,458            558,458            -                    -                    
Mutual Funds 7,028,965         7,028,965         -                    -                    

29,813,361       23,570,639$     6,242,722$       -$                  
Investments measured at the net asset value 
("NAV")

Commonfund (pooled investment funds)
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 1,082,485         
Intermediate Term Fund   1,922,271         
Equity Index Fund 10,158,323       

Total investments measured at the NAV 13,163,079       

Total investments measured at fair value 42,976,440$     

The University's investments at fair value measurement are as follows at June 30, 2017: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by fair value level
U.S. Treasury Notes and Government 
Securities 3,383,555$       -$                  3,383,555$       -$                  
Corporate Debt Securities 1,179,101         -                    1,179,101         -                    
Equity Securities 11,679,292       11,679,292       -                    -                    
Money Market Funds 5,525,798         5,525,798         -                    -                    
Mutual Funds 5,820,414         5,820,414         -                    -                    

27,588,160       23,025,504$     4,562,656$       -$                  
Investments measured at the net asset value 
("NAV")

Commonfund (pooled investment funds)
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 1,076,740         
Intermediate Term Fund   1,915,628         
Equity Index Fund 8,891,942         

Total investments measured at the NAV 11,884,310       

Total investments measured at fair value 39,472,470$     
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University's investments measured at the net asset value ("NAV") are as follows at June 30, 
2018: 

Fair value
Unfunded 

commitments

Redemption 
frequency  (if 

currently eligible)
Redemption 
notice period

Commonfund (pooled investment funds)
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 1,082,485$       -                    Monthly 5 days
Intermediate Term Fund   1,922,271         -                    N/A N/A
Equity Index Fund 10,158,323       -                    N/A N/A

Total investments measured at the NAV 13,163,079$     

The University's investments measured at the net asset value ("NAV") are as follows at June 30, 
2017: 

Fair value
Unfunded 

commitments

Redemption 
frequency  (if 

currently eligible)
Redemption 
notice period

Commonfund (pooled investment funds)
Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 1,076,740$       -                    Monthly 5 days
Intermediate Term Fund   1,915,628         -                    N/A N/A
Equity Index Fund 8,891,942         -                    N/A N/A

Total investments measured at the NAV 11,884,310$     

FSU Foundation's investments at fair value measurement are as follows at June 30, 2018: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Treasury Notes and 
Government Securities 1,352,324$       -$                  1,352,324$       -$                  
Corporate Debt Securities 683,011            -                    683,011            -                    
Municipal Debt Securities 49,686              -                    49,686              -                    
Equity Securities 4,751,615         4,751,615         -                    -                    
Money Market Funds 262,012            262,012            -                    -                    
Mutual Funds 2,884,398         2,884,398         -                    -                    

Total investments measured 
at fair value 9,983,046$       7,898,025$       2,085,021$       -$                  
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

FSU Foundation's investments at fair value measurement are as follows at June 30, 2017: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

U.S. Treasury Notes and 
Government Securities 1,044,049$       -$                  1,044,049$       -$                  
Corporate Debt Securities 668,639            -                    668,639            -                    
Municipal Debt Securities 51,046              -                    51,046              -                    
Equity Securities 4,391,295         4,391,295         -                    -                    
Money Market Funds 258,899            258,899            -                    -                    
Mutual Funds 2,442,192         2,442,192         -                    -                    

Total investments measured 
at fair value 8,856,120$       7,092,386$       1,763,734$       -$                  

Endowment funds 
The Foundation maintains donor-restricted permanent endowment funds, in addition to unrestricted 
and temporarily restricted funds in its investment portfolio. Effective July 1, 2009, the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts implemented the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act ("UPMIFA"). The Foundation has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of 
the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent 
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies 
as permanently restricted net assets: (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent 
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and 
(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument. 

The remaining portion of donor-restricted endowment funds that is not classified in permanently 
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted until those amounts are appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standards of prudence prescribed by 
UPMIFA. The Foundation also recognizes that the unpredictable nature of fluctuations in the market 
value of its investments can result in restricted endowment funds dropping below its original gift 
value. 

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a 
determination to appropriate or accumulate restricted endowment funds: (i) the duration and 
preservation of the fund, (ii) the purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment 
fund, (iii) general economic conditions, (iv) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (v) the 
expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (vi) other resources of the 
Foundation, and (vii) the investment policies of the Foundation. 

The Foundation has adopted investment spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to 
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the 
Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce 
results that exceed the price and yield results of the S&P 500 Index and the Barclays 
Government/Credit Bond Index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in 
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) 
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that 
places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term objectives within 
prudent risk constraints. 

Changes in donor-restricted endowment net position for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
are as follows: 

Unrestricted

Temporarily 
restricted 
(restricted 

expendable)

Permanently 
restricted 

(restricted non-
expendable) Total

Endowment net position, June 30, 2016 5,182,539$       2,047,846$       1,587,990$       8,818,375$       

Investment return
Interest and dividends 122,027            41,061              163                   163,251            
Realized and unrealized gains, net 579,950            166,213            -                    746,163            

Contributions and royalties 378,951            90,805              186,649            656,405            
Released from restrictions 277,429            (275,079)           (2,350)               -                    
Appropriations for expenditure (782,732)           -                    -                    (782,732)           

Endowment net position, June 30, 2017 5,758,164         2,070,846         1,772,452         9,601,462         

Investment return
Interest and dividends 128,711            46,557              182                   175,450            
Realized and unrealized gains, net 495,701            180,243            -                    675,944            

Contributions and royalties 800,497            370,159            489,160            1,659,816         
Released from restrictions 280,480            (280,480)           -                    -                    
Appropriations for expenditure (899,500)           -                    -                    (899,500)           

Endowment net position, June 30, 2018 6,564,053$       2,387,325$       2,261,794$       11,213,172$     
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 3 - Accounts receivable 

The University's accounts receivable includes the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Student accounts receivable 3,238,379$       2,753,250$       
Grants receivable 211,099            562,478            
Parking fines receivable 319,441            308,871            
Tuition receivable 2,548                3,380                
Commissions receivable 52,168              44,067              
Due from Warren Center 175,055            318,551            
Due from the Foundation 58,484              86,140              
Due from Bay State Reading 41,906              41,765              
Miscellaneous other receivables 50,499              3,840                

4,149,579         4,122,342         
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1,619,761)        (1,329,058)        

Total 2,529,818$       2,793,284$       

Note 4 - Loans receivable and payable 

Loans receivable include the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Perkins loans receivable 2,105,117$       2,210,548$       
Emergency student loans receivable 2,011                2,778                

Total 2,107,128$       2,213,326$       

The amounts due to the federal government upon liquidation by the University are $1,903,986 and 
$1,894,862 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These amounts are included as a noncurrent 
liability in the accompanying statements of net position. 

The federal law authorizing the disbursement of Perkins loans expired on September 30, 2017. As 
of October 1, 2017, the University is prohibited from issuing new Perkins loans to undergraduate 
students. As of October 1, 2017, the University is prohibited from issuing new Perkins loans to 
graduate students who received them prior to October 1, 2016. The University may remit all federal 
proceeds and loans at any time thereafter to the Department of Education or continue to maintain 
them for five more years. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 5 - Capital assets 

Capital assets activity of the University for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Reclassification*
Totals and Totals

June 30, 2017 Additions reductions June 30, 2018

Capital assets
Non-depreciable capital assets

Land 3,201,215$         -$                   -$                    3,201,215$         
Construction in progress 6,020,924           5,131,690           (6,334,309)          4,818,305           

Total non-depreciable assets 9,222,139           5,131,690           (6,334,309)          8,019,520           

Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 9,602,736           -                     345,781               9,948,517           
Buildings 112,006,448       -                     -                      112,006,448       
Building improvements 67,539,446         -                     5,988,528            73,527,974         
Equipment 7,035,273           61,904                -                      7,097,177           
Library materials 1,965,943           428,156              (372,155)             2,021,944           

Total depreciable assets 198,149,846       490,060              5,962,154            204,602,060       

Total capital assets 207,371,985       5,621,750           (372,155)             212,621,580       

Less:  accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 3,666,136           487,513              -                      4,153,649           
Buildings 30,948,711         2,182,975           -                      33,131,686         
Building improvements 28,344,497         3,728,032           -                      32,072,529         
Equipment 4,828,043           556,837              -                      5,384,880           
Library materials -                     372,155              (372,155)             -                     

Total accumulated depreciation 67,787,387         7,327,512           (372,155)             74,742,744         

Capital assets, net 139,584,598$     (1,705,762)$       -$                    137,878,836$     

* Construction costs incurred for the University's May Hall HVAC Project and other facility 
improvements were included in construction in progress and subsequently transferred to capital asset 
additions upon completion during the year ended June 30, 2018. 

The University enters into various contract commitments with contractors, from time to time, for 
improvements to its facilities. Remaining contract commitments totaled approximately $1,029,000 at 
June 30, 2018. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Capital assets activity of the University for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Reclassification*
Totals and Totals

June 30, 2016 Additions reductions June 30, 2017

Capital assets
Non-depreciable capital assets

Land 3,201,215$         -$                   -$                   3,201,215$         
Construction in progress 69,267,891         9,321,481           (72,568,448)       6,020,924           

Total non-depreciable assets 72,469,106         9,321,481           (72,568,448)       9,222,139           

Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 9,602,736           -                     -                     9,602,736           
Buildings 40,851,685         -                     71,154,763         112,006,448       
Building improvements 66,089,872         35,889                1,413,685           67,539,446         
Equipment 5,504,649           1,530,624           -                     7,035,273           
Library materials 1,944,709           381,900              (360,666)            1,965,943           

Total depreciable assets 123,993,651       1,948,413           72,207,782         198,149,846       

Total capital assets 196,462,757       11,269,894         (360,666)            207,371,985       

Less:  accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 3,186,828           479,308              -                     3,666,136           
Buildings 29,655,167         1,293,544           -                     30,948,711         
Building improvements 25,038,212         3,306,285           -                     28,344,497         
Equipment 4,375,784           452,259              -                     4,828,043           
Library materials -                     360,666              (360,666)            -                     

Total accumulated depreciation 62,255,991         5,892,062           (360,666)            67,787,387         

Capital assets, net 134,206,766$     5,377,832$         -$                   139,584,598$     

* Construction costs incurred for the University's Hemenway Hall Project and other facility 
improvements were included in construction in progress and subsequently transferred to capital asset 
additions upon completion during the year ended June 30, 2017. 

During 2017, the University transferred $200,000 to fund University equity contributions related to 
other facility improvements, which were funded from a transfer from DCAMM. 

The net transfers to/from state agencies amounted to a net transfer out of $3,147,249 in 2018 and a 
net transfer in of $200,000 in 2017. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

During fiscal 2017, the University was awarded a grant in the total amount of $454,000 from the 
Massachusetts Life Sciences Center ("MLSC") to be used toward the construction of the 
Hemenway Hall Science Center. The University received grant proceeds of $454,000 from the 
MLSC in August, 2017. The grant proceeds of $454,000 were used to reimburse the University for 
expenditures funded by University operations during 2017 on the construction of the Hemenway 
Hall Science Center. The University recognized grant revenue of $454,000 in 2017, which is 
included in state and local grants and contracts in the accompanying 2017 statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position. As of June 30, 2017, the University has a receivable for this 
grant in the amount of $454,000, which is included in accounts receivable, net in the accompanying 
2017 statement of net position. 

The University has considered the requirements of GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, and has noted no implications of this 
standard to the University's financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Note 6 - Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Accounts payable - trade 1,158,218$       1,244,945$       
Salaries and fringe benefits payable 2,266,806         1,402,921         

Total 3,425,024$       2,647,866$       

During fiscal 2016, the University received State appropriations in the amount of $2,500,000 to 
contribute to the acquisition of the Warren Conference Center by the MSCBA. The contribution was 
ultimately made with bond funding provided by DCAMM in the amount of $2,500,000. The 
University reverted the $2,500,000 of State appropriations back to the Commonwealth during fiscal 
2017. 

Note 7 - Accrued workers' compensation 

Independent actuarial reviews of the outstanding loss reserve requirements for the 
Commonwealth's self-insured workers' compensation program were conducted as of June 30, 2018 
and 2017. Based upon the Commonwealth's analyses, $448,709 and $612,124 of accrued workers' 
compensation has been recorded as a liability at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 8 - Accrued compensated absences 

Accrued compensated absences are comprised of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Vacation time payable 3,103,716$        3,109,013$        

Sick time payable 2,680,972         2,503,363         

Total 5,784,688$        5,612,376$        

Amounts representing obligations due to employees
funded through sources other than State 
appropriations 1,294,782$        1,196,519         

Amounts representing obligations for employees funded
through State appropriations 4,489,906         4,415,857         

Total 5,784,688$        5,612,376$        

It is anticipated that the obligation due to employees funded through State appropriations will be 
discharged through future State appropriations and the balance is expected to be liquidated through 
trust funds. Had these amounts not been reflected as obligations of the University, the University's 
unrestricted net position balances would be $14,817,974 and $23,334,031 at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively (see Note 1, Compensated absences). 

Note 9 - Faculty payroll accrual 

The contract for full-time faculty begins on September 1 and ends on May 31, of any given 
academic year. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Framingham State University pay all 
faculty over the 12-month period from September through August. Consequently, on June 30 of 
each year there is a balance due on each faculty contract which is to be paid from the subsequent 
year's State appropriation. The total amount due at June 30, 2018 of $3,311,241 will be paid from 
the University's fiscal 2019 State appropriations. The total amount due at June 30, 2017 of 
$3,209,692 was paid from the University's fiscal 2018 State appropriations. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 10 - Revenue received in advance 

Revenue received in advance includes tuition received in advance from students for summer 
courses commencing after June 30, and grant funds received in advance. Revenue received in 
advance includes the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Summer tuition 1,517,994$       1,627,358$       
Grants 474,853            240,061            

Total 1,992,847$       1,867,419$       

Note 11 - Deferred inflows of resources from service concession arrangement 

In fiscal 2011, the University entered into a service concession arrangement with Sodexo 
Operations, LLC ("Sodexo") to manage and operate the University's food services operation at the 
University's dining services locations as more fully described in the arrangement. The service 
concession arrangement commenced on July 1, 2010 for a term of five years through June 30, 
2015, and was amended twice thereafter to extend the term of the arrangement until June 30, 2017. 
The deferred inflow of resources in the amount of $2,342,943 was amortized to revenue on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the original arrangement through June 30, 2015, at which time it 
was fully amortized. Sodexo provided a previous investment of $2,500,000 to the University for 
improvements to the dining services facility, including the purchase of equipment, during the original 
arrangement. As of June 30, 2017, the total unamortized amount of the previous investment was 
$170,589, which is a liability of the University to Sodexo, and is included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities in the accompanying 2017 statement of net position. Upon execution of the new 
service concession arrangement with Sodexo in September, 2017, the University repaid the 
unamortized portion of the previous investment of $170,589 in full to Sodexo. 

In September, 2017, the University entered into a new service concession arrangement with 
Sodexo, effective July 1, 2017 for a term of five years through June 30, 2022 with an option to 
extend the arrangement for five additional one-year periods upon mutual agreement of the parties. 
The new arrangement supersedes the previous arrangement, and has been amended several times 
thereafter to modify its terms and the additional payments to the University for investments in 
improvements in or at the University as mutually agreed upon by the properties. Commencing on 
June 30, 2019, provided that the agreement remains in effect, the arrangement provides for 
payments to the University totaling $1,530,000. These payments shall be made to the University by 
Sodexo in nine installments as follows: $70,000 in each of fiscal 2019 through fiscal 2024; and 
$370,000 in each of fiscal years 2025 through 2027. In addition, Sodexo paid the University a 
Partnership bonus of $300,000 in October, 2017 that is to be used at the discretion of the 
University. Sodexo agreed to pay the University specified percentages of 2.75% to 10% of specified 
sales receipts from the food services operation and various other contributions totaling $41,500 per 
year as more fully described in the arrangement. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

As a part of the new arrangement, Sodexo provided an investment in two installments in the total 
amount of $2,880,000 for improvements to the dining services facility, including the purchase of 
equipment. The University received the first installment of $500,000 to the University in October, 
2017. The University received the second installment of $2,380,000, which was comprised of 
$2,025,000 received in February, 2018, and equipment purchased directly by Sodexo in the amount 
of $355,000. Sodexo will amortize the investment over a period defined in the arrangement. All 
improvements and equipment purchased with the payments received from Sodexo shall remain the 
property of the University. The arrangement may be terminated by either party at any time, without 
cause, in accordance with the terms of the arrangement and per the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts Standard Terms and Conditions. The arrangement contains provisions, whereby, in 
the event of termination of the arrangement, the University shall be required to repay a portion of 
any payments made to the University by Sodexo. The portion required to be repaid shall be 
determined in accordance with amortization schedules prepared by Sodexo. The amortization 
schedules assume that all funds will be received from Sodexo. The University does not anticipate 
that the arrangement will be terminated prior to its expiration date. 

Deferred inflows of resources from the service concession arrangement amounted to $2,462,000 at 
June 30, 2018 which consists of the unamortized balances of the service concession arrangement 
with Sodexo. The deferred inflow of resources is being amortized to revenue on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the arrangement. Amortization in the amount of $538,000 has been recognized in 
capital grant revenue in the accompanying 2018 statement of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 12 - Interagency payables 

The University, in association with the Massachusetts State College Building Authority ("MSCBA"), the Massachusetts Development Finance 
Agency ("MDFA"), and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance ("DCAMM"), has entered 
into financing and construction agreements for various campus projects. 

The following table summarizes the University's Interagency payables as of June 30, 2018: 

Effective
Original Interest interest Interagency Unamortized Total Interagency 

Issue date amount rates (%) Due date  rates (%)* payable balance bond premiums payable

MDFA Series J-4 10/16/1998 6,265,000$       Floating 6/15/2023 2.22 -$                  -$                  -$                  
MSCBA Series 2003A 03/01/2003 2,275,000         2.00-5.25 5/1/2033 3.97 1,630,000         -                    1,630,000         
MSCBA Series 2005A 03/01/2005 7,835,000         3.50-5.00 5/1/2026 3.99 3,885,000         -                    3,885,000         
MSCBA Series 2006A 03/01/2006 1,545,000         3.50-5.00 5/1/2026 4.44 785,000            33,179              818,179            
MSCBA Series 2008A 03/01/2008 870,000            3.00-5.00 5/1/2028 4.19 530,000            17,591              547,591            
MSCBA Series 2009A 01/01/2009 5,899,009         3.00-5.30 5/1/2029 4.84 3,873,424         46,197              3,919,621         
MSCBA Series 2009 Land 10/01/2009 685,000            3.00-5.30 5/1/2029 5.04 455,000            11,400              466,400            
MDFA Series 2010A-5 06/01/2010 177,705            3.50 5/1/2027 3.61 94,079              -                    94,079              
MSCBA Series 2010B 12/01/2010 11,095,000       5.79-6.54 5/1/2035 3.64 11,095,000       -                    11,095,000       
DCAMM CEIP Funds - Phase I 07/01/2011 373,537            4.50 1/1/2032 4.54 293,560            -                    293,560            
DCAMM CEIP Funds - Phase II 07/01/2011 3,711,166         4.00 1/1/2027 4.06 2,481,814         -                    2,481,814         
MSCBA Series 2012C 12/01/2012 4,155,000         2.00-5.00 5/1/2032 3.27 3,370,000         262,858            3,632,858         
MSCBA Series 2014A 01/01/2014 3,185,000         2.00-5.00 5/1/2033 4.83 2,770,000         288,374            3,058,374         
MSCBA Series 2014C 12/01/2014 680,000            3.00-5.00 5/1/2034 4.92 620,000            98,905              718,905            

Total 48,751,417$     31,882,877$     758,504$          32,641,381$     

*Effective Interest Rates are calculated by dividing total interest paid during the year by the average outstanding balance of bonds payable.
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The following table summarizes the University's Interagency payables as of June 30, 2017: 

Effective
Original Interest interest Interagency Unamortized Total Interagency 

Issue date amount rates (%) Due date  rates (%)* payable balance bond premiums payable

MDFA Series J-4 10/16/1998 6,265,000$       Floating 6/15/2023 1.14 3,350,727$       -$                  3,350,727$       
MSCBA Series 2003A 03/01/2003 2,275,000         2.00-5.25 5/1/2033 4.02 1,695,000         -                    1,695,000         
MSCBA Series 2005A 03/01/2005 7,835,000         3.50-5.00 5/1/2026 3.27 4,285,000         -                    4,285,000         
MSCBA Series 2006A 03/01/2006 1,545,000         3.50-5.00 5/1/2026 4.37 865,000            57,824              922,824            
MSCBA Series 2008A 03/01/2008 870,000            3.00-5.00 5/1/2028 4.69 570,000            19,380              589,380            
MSCBA Series 2009A 01/01/2009 5,899,009         3.00-5.30 5/1/2029 4.78 4,139,161         68,297              4,207,458         
MSCBA Series 2009 Land 10/01/2009 685,000            3.00-5.30 5/1/2029 5.04 485,000            12,336              497,336            
MDFA Series 2010A-5 06/01/2010 177,705            3.50 5/1/2027 3.60 104,532            -                    104,532            
MSCBA Series 2010B 12/01/2010 11,095,000       5.79-6.54 5/1/2035 3.64 11,095,000       -                    11,095,000       
DCAMM CEIP Funds - Phase I 07/01/2011 373,537            4.50 1/1/2032 4.53 308,398            -                    308,398            
DCAMM CEIP Funds - Phase II 07/01/2011 3,711,166         4.00 1/1/2027 3.94 2,707,309         -                    2,707,309         
MSCBA Series 2012C 12/01/2012 4,155,000         2.00-5.00 5/1/2032 3.30 3,555,000         281,810            3,836,810         
MSCBA Series 2014A 01/01/2014 3,185,000         2.00-5.00 5/1/2033 4.93 2,890,000         337,567            3,227,567         
MSCBA Series 2014C 12/01/2014 680,000            3.00-5.00 5/1/2034 4.83 645,000            120,771            765,771            

Total 48,751,417$     36,695,127$     897,985$          37,593,112$     

*Effective Interest Rates are calculated by dividing total interest paid during the year by the average outstanding balance of bonds payable.
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

MDFA Series J-4 bond issuance 
On October 16, 1998, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $6,265,000 from a 
MDFA (formerly Massachusetts Health and Educational Authority ("MHEFA")) bond issuance to be 
used for the construction of the University's athletic facility. This obligation was to be repaid solely 
by the University. Construction of the athletic facility was completed in November 2001. MDFA 
initially retained $480,073 of the bond proceeds for a debt service retirement fund. 

The University was required to make annual funding payments of principal on this debt each 
June 15. These payments were made to a restricted cash account held in escrow in the University's 
name and recorded on the books of the University. These amounts, along with the remaining 
balance of the debt service retirement fund, are held in an escrow account by MDFA. The annual 
funding payments were held in this escrow account and made available to reborrow subject to 
specific conditions of the financing agreement or used to pay down the outstanding debt. Earnings 
on this total balance were used to offset costs related to the construction of the athletic facility and 
to defray debt service costs. These debt payments were to be repaid by the University solely from 
student fees. 

Interest on the debt was paid every 35 days at a floating rate of interest subject to market 
conditions. The interest rate is determined by MDFA conducting a true auction of their debt 
issuance every 35 days, in which the University's obligation is pooled with other higher education 
institutions within the Commonwealth who have debt funded through MDFA. The most recent 
auctioned interest rates in effect at June 30, 2018 and 2017 were 5.943% and 1.936%, 
respectively. The University was also responsible to pay for program expenses at an annual rate of 
1.101% (2018) and 1.172% (2017) of the outstanding principal balance, calculated and payable 
every 35 days when the rate was auctioned. Under the terms of the debt financing agreement, 
interest could be converted to a fixed rate with the consent of the bond insurer. 

Under the terms of the debt financing agreement, the University was able to again borrow funding 
payments made by the University through July 1, 2008 and during any subsequent period with the 
consent of the bond insurer. Any amounts reborrowed must be repaid within a 10-year period or by 
the debt due date, whichever is earlier. However, any additional borrowings were subject to specific 
conditions of the financing agreement. At various times, the University utilized this reborrowing 
option to fund various projects on campus. 

MDFA was responsible to determine, subject to certain criteria, if income earned on unexpended 
debt proceeds exceeds the interest cost to the bondholders. Any excess income earned was held 
by an appointed trustee in a rebate fund. Such amounts are held until every fifth year, whereby 
payment is to be made as indicated by the bond indenture agreement. 

The University repaid the outstanding balance of the bond debt to MDFA in May, 2018. At June 30, 
2018, MDFA is retaining escrow funds totaling $136,597 related to the bonds, which will be 
released to the University in fiscal year 2019. 

MSCBA Series 2003A bond issuance 
On March 1, 2003, the University signed a financing agreement in an original amount of $2,275,000 
from a MSCBA bond issuance. These funds, net of bond issue costs and debt service reserve 
funds, were used during fiscal year 2004 for improvements to athletic fields and a new parking lot. 
This obligation will be repaid solely by the University. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service funds in the amount of $160,187 each 
year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017 
as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service reserve fund are 
expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance in the debt service 
reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2033. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using 
rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.25% over the term of the debt to maturity. The effective interest rate 
at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflects interest savings as a result of a bond refunding. 

MSCBA Series 2005A bond issuance 
During March 2005, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $7,835,000 from a 
MSCBA bond issuance. These funds, net of bond issue costs, reoffering premiums and debt 
service reserve funds were used in prior fiscal years for the renovation of the McCarthy Center (the 
"Project") at the University. This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through University 
operations. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2026. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an 
increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% over the term of the debt to 
maturity. The effective interest rate at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflects interest 
savings as a result of a bond refunding. 

MSCBA Series 2006A bond issuance 
During March, 2006, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $1,545,000 from a 
MSCBA bond issuance. These funds were used for the renovation of the McCarthy Center (the 
"Project") at the University. This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through University 
operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service reserve funds in the amount of $108,631 
each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 
2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service reserve fund 
are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance in the debt 
service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2026. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an 
increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% over the term of the debt to 
maturity. The effective interest rate at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflects interest 
savings as a result of a bond refunding. 

MSCBA Series 2008A bond issuance 
During March, 2008, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $870,000 from a 
MSCBA bond issuance. These funds were used for the renovation of the McCarthy Center (the 
"Project") at the University. This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through University 
operations. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service reserve funds in the amount of $89,285 
each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 
2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service reserve fund 
are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance in the debt 
service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2028. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an 
increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% over the term of the debt to 
maturity. 

MSCBA Series 2009A bond issuance 
During January 2009, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $5,899,009 from a 
MSCBA bond issuance. These funds have been used for a parking facility (the "Project") at the 
University and for a new roof on O'Connor Hall. This obligation will be repaid solely by the 
University through University operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service reserve funds in the amount of $212,056 
each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service reserve fund 
are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance in the debt 
service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2029. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an 
increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.30% over the term of the debt to 
maturity. The effective interest rate at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflects interest 
savings as a result of a bond refunding. 

MSCBA Series 2009A bond issuance 
During October 2009, the MSCBA transferred land (the "Project") acquired with bond proceeds and 
the associated debt in the amount of $685,000 to the University pursuant to a financing agreement. 
This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through University operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service reserve funds in the amount of $9,526 
each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 
2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service reserve fund 
are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance in the debt 
service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1. The final 
principal payment is due on May 1, 2029. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and November 1 
each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an 
increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.30% over the term of the debt to 
maturity. The effective interest rate at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflects interest 
savings as a result of a bond refunding. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

MDFA CREBS bond issuance 
During June, 2010, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $177,705 from a MDFA 
New Clean Renewable Energy Bonds ("CREBS") issuance. These funds are being used for the 
installation of solar photovoltaic panels on the Student Center and Athletic Center. This obligation 
will be repaid solely by the University through University operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, unexpended debt proceeds held by Century Bancorp, Inc. related to 
the debt issue and the Project are $18,244 and $18,208, respectively, which are included in the 
accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017 as noncurrent restricted cash 
and cash equivalents. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on the CREBS debt each May 1. The 
final principal payment is due on May 1, 2027. Interest on the debt is payable May 1 and 
November 1 each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule using a 3.50% 
interest rate over the term of the debt to maturity. 

MSCBA Series 2010B bond issuance 
During December, 2010, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $11,095,000 from 
a MSBCA bond issuance. These funds, net of bond issue costs and a debt service reserve fund, 
are being used for the renovation of Hemenway Science Center, including the relocation of the 
Planetarium to O'Connor Hall. This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through 
University operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, amounts held by MSCBA related to the debt issuance and the 
Project are as follows: 

2018 2017

Unexpended debt proceeds -$                  175,273$          
Debt service reserve fund 965,564            965,564            

965,564$          1,140,837$       

The amounts held by MSCBA are included in the accompanying statements of net position at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt 
service reserve fund are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the 
balance in the debt service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on this debt each May 1, 
commencing on May 1, 2023. The final principal payment is due on May 1, 2035. Interest on the 
debt is payable on May 1 and November 1 each year. Interest payments are based on an 
amortization schedule prepared by MSCBA using an increasing coupon rate of interest ranging 
from 5.788% to 6.540% over the term of the debt to maturity. MSCBA is receiving a federal interest 
subsidy associated with this bond issue and is billing the University for interest net of the subsidy. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

DCAMM Clean Energy Investment Program 
In July 2011, the University entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts' Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance ("DCAMM") to undertake a 
Comprehensive Energy Performance Contracting Project - Phase 1 (the "Project"). Further, in 
March 2012, the University entered into a second Memorandum of Agreement with DCAMM related 
to the same project but known as Phase 2. The second agreement provided for, among other items, 
an increase in the total project cost and a change in the performance term from 20 years to 5 years. 
The Project's goal is to upgrade boilers, replace the chiller, lighting, EMS improvements, VAV 
boxes, and various energy conservation measures. 

The total project cost for Phase 1 was $451,537, including capitalized interest of $12,551. Phase 1 
was funded with Clean Energy Investment Program Funds ("CEIP Funds") in the amount of 
$373,537, which are being repaid over 20 years at 4.5% interest and $78,000 of University 
operating funds. Annual payments of principal and interest for Phase 1 in the amount of $28,716 
commenced on January 1, 2013. The total project cost for Phase 2 was approximately $6,650,000. 
The cost of the Project was funded from CEIP Funds in the amount of $3,711,166, capital grants of 
$2,700,000, energy incentives from the contractor in the amount of $45,600 and University 
operating funds of approximately $193,000. CEIP Funds for Phase 2 are being repaid over 15 years 
at 4.0% interest. Annual payments of principal and interest for Phase 2 in the amount of $333,786 
commenced in 2013. Additionally, both agreements provide for the University to fund annual 
maintenance costs to be paid over the first five years of the Project totaling approximately $100,800 
of which approximately $6,900 relates to Phase 1 and $93,900 relates to Phase 2. These 
maintenance costs are expected to be offset by energy savings as a result of the Project. 

MSCBA 2012C bond issuance 
During December 2012, the University signed financing agreements to receive an aggregate 
amount of $4,155,000 from a MSCBA bond issuance (in the separate amounts of $1,890,000 and 
$2,265,000). The $1,890,000 bond, net of a bond issue premium, bond issue costs, and a debt 
service reserve fund, is being used for the renovation of the Hemenway Science Center, including 
the relocation of the Planetarium to O'Connor Hall. The $2,265,000 bond, net of a bond issue 
premium, bond issue costs, and a debt service reserve fund, is being used for the expansion of the 
McCarthy Center. These obligations will be repaid solely by the University through University 
operations. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, MSCBA held debt service reserve funds related to the 2012C bond 
in the amount of $69,848 each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net 
position at June 30, 2018 and 2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from 
the debt service reserve fund are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings 
on the balance in the debt service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

In accordance with an amended funding agreement among MSCBA, DCAMM and the University, 
the University transferred $270,000 to DCAMM in July 2013 in association with the Hemenway 
Science Center project. As of June 30, 2017, DCAMM held unexpended funds in the amounts of 
$100,000, all of which is included in noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents in the 
accompanying 2017 statement of net position. During fiscal year 2018, DCAMM expended the 
remaining funds. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on the debt each May 1, commencing 
on May 1, 2014. The final principal payments are due on May 1, 2032. Interest on the debt is 
payable May 1 and November 1 each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization 
schedule prepared by MSCBA using an increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 2.00% to 
5.00% over the term of the debt to maturity. 

MSCBA 2014A bond issuance 
During January 2014, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $3,185,000. These 
bonds net of a bond issue premium, bond issue costs, and a debt service reserve fund, are being 
used for the renovation of the University's Maple Street athletic fields and the Salem End Road 
parking project. This obligation will be repaid solely by the University through University operations. 
The University also executed a management agreement with MSCBA, whereby MSCBA provided 
management services to the University for the Project. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, amounts held by MSCBA related to the debt issuance and the 
Project are as follows: 

2018 2017

Unexpended debt proceeds -$                  1,944$              
Debt service reserve fund 194,330            194,330            

194,330$          196,274$          

The amounts held by MSCBA are included in the accompanying statements of net position at 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt 
service reserve fund are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the 
balance in the debt service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on the debt each May 1, commencing 
on May 1, 2015. The final principal payment is due on May 1, 2033. Interest on the debt is payable 
May 1 and November 1 each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule 
prepared by MSCBA using an increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% over 
the term of the debt to maturity. 

MSCBA 2014C bond issuance 
During December 2014, the University signed a financing agreement to receive $680,000. These 
bonds net of a bond issue premium, bond issue costs, and a debt service reserve fund, are being 
used for the renovation of the University's Maple Street athletic fields. This obligation will be repaid 
solely by the University through University operations. The University also executed a management 
agreement with MSCBA, whereby MSCBA will provide management services to the University for 
the Project. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the MSCBA held debt service reserve funds in the amount of 
$44,781 each year, which are included in the accompanying statements of net position at June 30, 
2018 and 2017 as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents. Funds from the debt service 
reserve fund are expected to be applied to the final payment on the debt. Earnings on the balance 
in the debt service reserve fund are to be used to defray debt service costs. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University is required to make annual principal payments on the debt each May 1, commencing 
on May 1, 2016. The final principal payment is due on May 1, 2034. Interest on the debt is payable 
May 1 and November 1 each year. Interest payments are based on an amortization schedule 
prepared by MSCBA using an increasing coupon rate of interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% over 
the term of the debt to maturity. 

Aggregate principal and interest payments due to maturity consist of the following: 

Year ending 
June 30, Principal

Amortization of 
bond premium Total principal

Estimated 
interest Total

2019 1,523,528$       55,944$            1,579,472$       1,306,493$       2,885,965$       
2020 1,594,166         55,944              1,650,110         1,253,440         2,903,550         
2021 1,651,970         55,944              1,707,914         1,185,668         2,893,582         
2022 1,738,717         55,944              1,794,661         1,106,321         2,900,982         
2023 2,239,143         55,944              2,295,087         1,031,484         3,326,571         
2024 - 2028 13,193,852       270,240            13,464,092       3,551,218         17,015,310       
2029 - 2033 8,786,501         203,344            8,989,845         1,157,178         10,147,023       
2034 - 2038 1,155,000         5,200                1,160,200         69,703              1,229,903         

Total 31,882,877$     758,504$          32,641,381$     10,661,505$     43,302,886$     

Other Interagency activity 
The oversight of various capital projects on campus is provided by MSCBA. To fund these projects, 
the University provides equity contributions, by advancing funds to the MSCBA, which are then held 
by MSCBA until used for the payment of the capital project costs. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
amounts held by MSCBA representing the unexpended portion of the University's contributions 
totaled $2,438,968 and $205,796, respectively, all of which is included in noncurrent restricted cash 
and cash equivalents in the accompanying 2018 and 2017 statements of net position. 

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, construction costs funded during the year by the University's equity 
contributions and bond issuance funds amounted to $2,631,892 and $47,122, respectively. 

Project number Project name
Amount paid in 

2018
Amount paid in 

2017

FRA0802-17 Chiller Plant 1,657,835$       -$                  
FRA0803-17 Power Plant 234,186            36,162              
FRA0819-17 Dining Services 739,871            10,960              

Total 2,631,892$       47,122$            

Note 13 - Line of credit 

On May 1, 2018, the University entered into a unsecured revolving line of credit agreement with 
MutualOne Bank which permits the University to borrow up to $150,000 for a term of five years. The 
line of credit provides for interest at the floating rate of the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 
0.25% (25 basis points) for the life of the loan (5.00% at June 30, 2018). Payments of interest only 
are required on any line of credit balances outstanding. As of June 30, 2018, no amounts have 
been drawn on the line of credit. 

60 



 
    

 
  

   
 
 

 
 

   

   

   

 
         

   
    

    
      

     

   
        

 

        
 

Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 14 - Long-term liabilities 

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 included the following: 

Totals Ending Current
June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions balance portion

Interagency payables 37,593,112$       -$                   4,951,731$         32,641,381$       1,579,472$         [A]

Other liabilities
Compensated absences 5,612,376           3,571,658           3,399,346           5,784,688           3,567,363           
Workers' compensation 612,124              -                     163,415              448,709              95,126                
Loan payable - federal
financial assistance 1,894,862           265,200              256,076              1,903,986           -                     
Net pension liability 14,519,987         441,551              -                     14,961,538         -                     
Net OPEB liability 25,834,386         3,265,880           -                     29,100,266         -                     

Total other liabilities 48,473,735         7,544,289           3,818,837           52,199,187         3,662,489           

Long-term obligations 86,066,847$       7,544,289$         8,770,568$         84,840,568$       5,241,961$         

Totals June 30, 2018

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 included the following: 

Totals Ending Current
June 30, 2016 Additions Reductions balance portion

Interagency payables 39,402,149$       -$                   1,809,037$         37,593,112$       1,914,058$         [A]

Other liabilities
Compensated absences 5,390,828           3,631,993           3,410,445           5,612,376           3,399,346           
Workers' compensation 518,848              202,753              109,477              612,124              110,794              
Loan payable - federal
financial assistance 1,881,685           224,400              211,223              1,894,862           -                     
Net pension liability 12,702,384         1,817,603           -                     14,519,987         -                     
Net OPEB liability -                     25,834,386         -                     25,834,386         -                     

Total other liabilities 20,493,745         31,711,135         3,731,145           48,473,735         3,510,140           

Long-term obligations 59,895,894$       31,711,135$       5,540,182$         86,066,847$       5,424,198$         

Totals June 30, 2017

[A] - The MDFA debt issuance totaling $3,350,727 at June 30, 2017, was due in 2023. Required 
annual funding payments were due each June 15 and were held in escrow by the University's 
trustee and made available to reborrow subject to specific conditions of the financing 
agreement or used to pay down the outstanding debt (see Note 12). During May 2018, the 
University repaid the remaining principal balance in full. Funding payments held by the trustee 
at June 30, 2018 and 2017 are included in restricted cash and cash equivalents - current. 

The MSCBA debt issuances, including unamortized premiums, totaling $29,771,928 and 
$31,122,146 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, are due in various years (see Note 12). 
Required annual principal payments are due each May 1. 

The MDFA debt issuance in the amounts of $94,079 and $104,532 at June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively, is due in 2027. Required annual principal payments are due each May 1. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The DCAMM CEIP debt issuances in the total amount of $2,775,374 and $3,015,707 at June 
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, are due in 2032 (see Note 12). Required annual principal 
payments are expected to be paid each January 1. 

Note 15 - Operating lease commitments 

Pursuant to a management and service agreement (the "Agreement") between the University and 
MSCBA, the University is leasing a parcel of land from MSCBA for student parking and is obligated 
to make payments for the portion of a debt issuance attributable to the cost of the land. Lease 
payments are payable May 1 and November 1 each year and continue through May 1, 2019. Rent 
expense during 2018 and 2017, related to this lease amounted to $242,396 and $243,975, 
respectively. The University received $162,885 and $154,295 in parking fees from students during 
2018 and 2017, respectively, to offset these lease payments. 

According to the terms of the Agreement, the University is required to pay annually their portion of 
fees and expenses attributable to the management and administration of the bond issuance as well 
as applicable insurance and maintenance costs of the land. The University designated 
approximately $63,000 as a pledge for payment under this financial arrangement. A portion of the 
fees earned by the University from student parking charges is designated for the sole purpose of 
being applied to the lease payments as they become due. In addition, annual State appropriations 
or other spending authorizations in the Commonwealth's annual operating budget available on 
behalf of the University are additionally pledged to secure payment. 

The estimated future lease payments under this lease amounts to $240,000 for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. 

On July 2, 2012, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by and through its Division of Capital 
Asset Management and Maintenance ("DCAMM") on behalf of the University, entered into a lease 
agreement with the Town of Framingham for new office space located in Framingham, 
Massachusetts. The leased space is approximately 6,600 square feet. The lease provided for a 
one-time payment of $200,000 for the initial three-year term of the lease agreement. The $200,000 
payment was paid in October 2012 and the University occupied the building on August 30, 2012. 
The lease was for an initial term of three years and expired on the third anniversary of the Date of 
Occupancy. The original lease allowed for an extension for a term not to exceed five years in the 
aggregate pursuant to mutually agreed upon provisions by the landlord and the University. The 
Town of Framingham sold the property to the Danforth Museum Corporation. On September 1, 
2015, the lease was extended with the Danforth Museum Corporation effective September 15, 2015 
for a term of three years, expiring in September 2018, pursuant to mutually agreed upon provisions 
by the landlord and the University. The lease provided for a minimum annual base rent of $72,000 
for the initial year of the lease agreement and increases to $74,520 for year two and $77,128 for 
year three of the lease agreement. 

On December 22, 2017, the Danforth Museum Corporation sold the property to MSCBA as part of 
an agreement to create the Danforth Art Center at Framingham State University (see Note 25). In 
connection with the sale of the property, the lease with the Danforth Museum Corporation was 
terminated. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 16 - Net position 

Unrestricted net position is comprised of net assets that are not subject to externally imposed 
stipulations; however, they may be subject to internal restrictions. For example, unrestricted net 
position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Trustees or may 
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. Certain unrestricted net 
position are internally designated for academic and research programs and initiatives, and graduate 
and continuing education programs. Net position designated as unrestricted were $17,737,287 and 
$9,642,565 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, of the total 
designated unrestricted net position, $26,499,096 and $24,374,633, respectively, were designated 
by a vote of the Trustees during fiscal 2006 as a quasi-endowment and the remainder have been 
designated by action of management for the purposes described above (see Note 2). Undesignated 
unrestricted net position (deficiency) were $(7,409,219) and $9,275,609 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 

The University's net investment in capital assets consists of the following at June 30, 2018 and 
2017: 

2018 2017

Non-depreciable capital assets 8,019,520$        9,222,139$        
Depreciable capital assets 129,859,316      130,362,459      

Total capital assets, net 137,878,836      139,584,598      

Long-term debt related to capital assets
Interagency payables (31,061,909)      (35,679,054)      

Current debt related to capital assets
Interagency payables (1,579,472)        (1,914,058)        

Other
Unspent proceeds on debt related to capital assets -                    195,425            
Debt service reserve 1,873,927         2,079,710         
Debt used to pay bond issuance costs 390,570            427,168            

Total investment in capital assets 107,501,952$    104,693,789$    

Note 17 - Net position restricted by enabling legislation 

Framingham State University Foundation, Inc.'s statements of net position as of June 30, 2018 and 
2017 reflect a restricted net position of $4,649,119 and $3,843,298, respectively. Of these amounts, 
$870,233 in both fiscal years 2018 and 2017 are restricted by enabling legislation for the State 
Matching Funds Program. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 18 - Operating expenses 

The University's operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, on a natural 
classification basis, are comprised of the following: 

2018 2017

Salaries
Faculty 22,776,533$     23,338,782$     
Exempt wages 20,525,145       18,937,820       
Non-exempt wages 8,294,557         8,363,929         
Benefits 16,767,562       15,312,031       

Utilities 3,834,308         3,883,505         
Supplies and other services 28,055,121       28,267,116       
Depreciation 7,327,512         5,892,062         

Total operating expenses 107,580,738$   103,995,245$   

The University's operating expenses for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, presented in 
accordance with the Commonwealth's expenditure classification plan, are comprised of the 
following: 

2018 2017

Education and general
Regular employee compensation 39,242,998$     38,433,337$     
Regular employee related expenses 447,226            436,783            
Special employee/contract services 9,803,622         9,799,874         
Pension and insurance 16,285,164       14,863,719       
Administrative expenses 5,611,791         3,930,187         
Facility operating supplies and related expenses 749,342            2,388,079         
Energy and space rental 3,834,308         3,883,505         
Consultant services 1,505,392         1,382,528         
Operational services 466,455            1,135,741         
Equipment purchases 922,855            438,961            
Equipment lease and maintenance 186,266            633,691            
Purchased client services and programs 370,147            465,859            
Building improvements 1,289,187         1,176,769         
Debt payment 237,521            182,866            
Loans and special payments 1,585,519         2,038,828         
Information technology 3,848,967         3,311,099         
Depreciation 7,327,512         5,892,062         

Total education and general expenses 93,714,272$     90,393,888$     
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 19 - State controlled accounts 

Certain significant costs and benefits associated with the operations of the University are 
appropriated, expended, controlled, and reported by the Commonwealth through non-University line 
items in the Commonwealth's budget. Under generally accepted accounting principles, such 
transactions must be recorded in the financial statements of the University. These transactions 
include payments by the Commonwealth for the employer's share of funding the Massachusetts 
State Employees' Retirement System (see Note 20) and for the employer's share of health care 
premiums. 

The estimated amounts of funding attributable for the Commonwealth's retirement system 
contribution and the employer's share of health care premiums for the years ended June 30, 2018, 
2017 and 2016 were as follows (see State appropriations under Note 22): 

2018 2017 2016

Commonwealth's retirement system 
contribution 3,699,688$       3,042,698$       2,867,370$       

Employer's share of health care 
premiums 6,376,181         6,404,048         5,175,052         

Note 20 - Retirement plan 

Substantially all of the University's full-time employees are covered by the Massachusetts State 
Employees' Retirement System ("MSERS"). MSERS, a public employee retirement system 
("PERS"), is a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan that is administered by the 
Massachusetts State Retirement Board and covers substantially all non-student employees. The 
Commonwealth does not issue separately audited financial statements for the plan. The financial 
position and results of operations of the plan are incorporated into the Commonwealth's financial 
statements, a copy of which may be obtained from the Office of the State Comptroller, 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, One Ashburton Place, Room 901, Boston, MA 02108. 

MSERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to members and their 
beneficiaries. Massachusetts General Laws ("MGL") establishes uniform benefit and contribution 
requirements for all contributory PERS. These requirements provide for superannuation retirement 
allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's highest three-year average annual rate 
of regular compensation. For employees hired after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances are 
calculated on the basis of the last five years or any five consecutive years, whichever is greater in 
terms of compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable 
service and group creditable service, and group classification. The authority for amending these 
provisions rests with the Legislature. 

Members become vested after 10 years of creditable service. A superannuation retirement 
allowance may be received upon the completion of 20 years of creditable service or upon reaching 
the age of 55 with 10 years of service. Normal retirement for most employees occurs at age 65; for 
certain hazardous duty and public safety positions, normal retirement is at age 55. Most employees 
who joined the system after April 1, 2012 cannot retire prior to age 60. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The MSERS' funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL. The Legislature 
has the authority to amend these policies. The annuity portion of the MSERS retirement allowance 
is funded by employees, who contribute a percentage of their regular compensation. Costs of 
administering the plan are funded out of plan assets. 

Member contributions for MSERS vary depending on the most recent date of membership: 

Hire date % of Compensation

Prior to 1975 5% of regular compensation
1975 to 1983 7% of regular compensation

1984 to June 30, 1996 8% of regular compensation
July 1, 1996 to present 9% of regular compensation

1979 to present An additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of 
$30,000

In addition, members of Group 1 who join the system on or after April 2, 2012 will have their 
withholding rate reduced to 6% after achieving 30 years of creditable service. 

The University is not required to contribute from its appropriation allocation or other University funds 
to MSERS for employees compensated from State appropriations. For University employees 
covered by MSERS but compensated from a trust fund or other source, the University is required to 
contribute an amount determined as a percentage of compensation in accordance with a fringe 
benefit rate established by the State. The total amount of current funding by the State related to the 
University's employees during 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $3,699,688, $3,042,698, and $2,867,370, 
respectively. The total amount of current funding by the University related to the University's 
employees compensated by a trust fund or other source during 2018, 2017 and 2016 was 
$1,115,600, $912,072, and $756,143, respectively. Annual covered payroll was approximately 73%, 
74% and 78% of annual total payroll for the University in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University reported a liability of $14,961,538 and $14,519,987, 
respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was 
measured as of January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2016, respectively, and the State's total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
those dates. The University's proportion of the net pension liability was based on an effective 
contribution methodology which allocates total contributions amongst the employers in a consistent 
manner based on an employer's share of total covered payroll. At June 30, 2018, the University's 
proportion was 0.1167% which was an increase of 0.0114% from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017, the University's proportion was 0.1053% which was a decrease of 
0.0063% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University recognized pension expense of 
$5,839,324 and $5,190,435, respectively, which is comprised of the following: 

2018 2017

Contractually required expense - State 3,350,522$        2,805,825$        
Contractually required expense - University 1,115,600         912,072            
Actuarially calculated expense 1,373,202         1,472,538         

Total 5,839,324$        5,190,435$        

At June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
outflows of 
resources

Deferred inflows 
of resources

Changes of assumptions 1,559,787$        -$                  
Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments -                    178,267            
Differences between expected and actual experience 578,474            407,066            
Changes in proportion due to internal allocation 2,189,747         402,147            
Changes in proportion from Commonwealth 51,244              5,333                
University contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 1,115,600         -                    

Total 5,494,852$        992,813$          

$1,115,600 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from University 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30,
2019 1,079,440$        
2020 2,026,699         
2021 879,748            
2022 (575,993)           
2023 (23,455)             

Total 3,386,439$        
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

At June 30, 2017, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
outflows of 
resources

Deferred inflows 
of resources

Changes of assumptions 1,610,170$        -$                  
Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 974,700            -                    
Differences between expected and actual experience 689,661            -                    
Changes in proportion due to internal allocation 1,742,160         520,426            
Changes in proportion from Commonwealth 32,348              6,995                
University contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 912,072            -                    

Total 5,961,111$        527,421$          

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This valuation used the following 
assumptions: 

1. (a) 7.5% investment rate of return, (b) 3.5% interest rate credited to the annuity savings 
fund and (c) 3.0% cost of living increase on the first $13,000 per year (3.0% cost of living 
increase per year for the year ended June 30, 2016). 

2. Salary increases are based on analyses of past experience but range from 4.0% to 9.0% 
depending on group and length of service. 

3. Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2014 established an early retirement incentive ("ERI") program for 
certain employees of the highway division of the Massachusetts Department of 
Transportation whose positions have been eliminated due to automation of toll collections. 
Most members retiring under the ERI program had a date retirement of October 28, 2016. 
112 members took the ERI and retired during fiscal year 2017. As a result, the total pension 
liability of MSERS increased by approximately $10 million as of June 30, 2017. 

4. Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011 created a one-time election for eligible members of the 
Optional Retirement Plan ("ORP") to transfer to the Massachusetts State Employee's 
Retirement System ("MSERS") and purchase service for the period while members of the 
ORP. As a result, the total pension liability of MSERS has increased by approximately $400 
million as of June 30, 2016. 

5. Mortality rates were as follows: 

(i) Pre-retirement - reflects RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees Table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016 and set forward one year for females (RP-2000 
Employees Table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2009 
(gender distinct) for the year ended June 30, 2016). 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

(ii) Post-retirement - reflects RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016 set forward one year for females (RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2009 
(gender distinct) for the year ended June 30, 2016). 

(iii) Disability - the mortality rate is assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant Table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2015 
(gender distinct) (unchanged from the year ended June 30, 2016). 

These changes resulted in an increase of approximately $304 million in the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2017. 

1. Experience studies were performed as follows: 

(i) Dated February 27, 2014 and encompasses the period January 1, 2006 to 
December 31, 2011. 

Investment assets of MSERS are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust ("PRIT") Fund. The 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage. 
Best estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset class 2017 2016 2017 2016

Global equity 40.00% 40.00% 5.00% 6.90%
Portfolio completion strategies 13.00% 4.00% 3.60% 3.60%
Core fixed income 12.00% 13.00% 1.10% 1.60%
Private equity 11.00% 10.00% 6.60% 8.70%
Value added fixed income 10.00% 10.00% 3.80% 4.80%
Real estate 10.00% 10.00% 3.60% 4.60%
Timber/natural resources 4.00% 4.00% 3.20% 5.40%
Hedge funds 0.00% 9.00% 3.60% 4.00%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

Long-term expected real
rate of returnTarget allocation

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the measurement years ended 
June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 7.5% for both years. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution 
rates and the University's contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rates. Based on those assumptions, the 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

69 



 
    

 
  

   
 
 

 
 

      
         

      
    
 

 
   

 

  
 

   
      

   
 

   
        

 

 
  

      
  

   
     
  

     
       

      
       

     
     

         
       

      
    

 

Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The following presents the University's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.5%, for both the measurement years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
as well as what the University's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

Measurement year ended 1% decrease Discount rate 1% increase

June 30, 2017 20,376,992$      14,961,538$      10,599,260$      
June 30, 2016 18,921,793        14,519,987        10,789,286        

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
Commonwealth's financial statements. 

Note 21 - Fringe benefits for current employees and post-employment obligations - pension and 
non-pension 

The University participates in the Commonwealth's Fringe Benefit programs, including active 
employee and post - employment health insurance, unemployment, pension, and workers' 
compensation benefits. Health insurance and pension costs for active employees and retirees are 
paid through a fringe benefit rate charged to the University by the Commonwealth. 

On-behalf payments of fringe benefits for benefited employees on the Commonwealth's payroll are 
recognized as revenues and expenses in the University's financial statements in each of the fiscal 
years presented. 

Post-employment other than pensions 
In addition to providing pension benefits, under Chapter 32A of the Massachusetts General Laws 
the Commonwealth is required to provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired 
employees of the Commonwealth. Substantially all of the Commonwealth's employees may become 
eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for the Commonwealth. Eligible 
retirees are required to contribute a specified percentage of the health care/benefit costs, which are 
comparable to contributions required from employees. 

The Commonwealth administers a single employer defined Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions ("OPEB") Plan. Benefits are managed by the Group Insurance Commission ("GIC") and 
investments are managed by the Pension Reserves Investment Management ("PRIM") Board. The 
State Retirement Benefits Trust Fund ("SRBT") is set up solely to pay for OPEB benefits and the 
cost to administer those benefits. Management of the SRBT is vested with a board of trustees, 
which consists of seven members. GIC administers benefit payments, while the Trustees are 
responsible for investment decisions. The SRBT is reported as an OPEB Trust Fund and does not 
issue a stand-alone audited financial report. The financial position and results of operations of the 
plan are incorporated in the Commonwealth's financial statements, a copy of which may be 
obtained from the Office of the State Comptroller, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, One 
Ashburton Place, Room 901, Boston, MA 02108. 

70 



 
    

 
  

   
 
 

 
 

           
     

     
 

   
        

 

    
     

      
       

  

    
        
        

      
        

       
      

  

       
      

  
      

     
      

     
     

 

     
 

 

Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

During the fiscal years ended on June 30, 2018 and 2017, the GIC provided health insurance for its 
members through indemnity, PPO, and HMO plans. The GIC also administered carve-outs for the 
pharmacy benefit and mental health and substance abuse benefits for certain of its health plans. In 
addition to health insurance, the GIC sponsors life insurance, long-term disability insurance (for 
active employees only), dental and vision coverage for employees not covered by collective 
bargaining, a retiree discount vision plan and retiree dental plan, and finally, a pre-tax health care 
spending account and dependent care assistance program (for active employees only). 

Employer and employee contribution rates are set in Massachusetts General Law. The 
Commonwealth recognizes its share of the costs on an actuarial basis. As of June 30, 2017 and 
2016 and as of the valuation date (January 1, 2017), Commonwealth participants contributed 0% to 
20% of premium costs, depending on the date of hire and whether the participant is active, retiree, 
or survivor status. 

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University reported a liability of $29,100,266 and $25,834,386, 
respectively, for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was 
measured as of January 1, 2017 and the Commonwealth's total OPEB liability used to calculate the 
net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The University's 
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on an effective contribution methodology which 
allocates total contributions amongst the employers in a consistent manner based on an employer's 
share of total covered payroll. At June 30, 2018, the University's proportion was 0.1664%, which 
was an increase of 0.0301% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

The amount of funding by the University related to benefits other than pensions for the years ended 
June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $8,734,263, $9,078,022 and $7,241,406, respectively, which 
equaled the required contributions each year charged to it through the Commonwealth's fringe 
benefit recovery program. The total amount of current funding by the Commonwealth related to the 
OPEB portion of fringe benefits for the University's employees during 2018, 2017 and 2016 was 
$2,536,743, $2,253,585 and $1,996,535, respectively. The total amount of funding by the University 
related to the OPEB portion of fringe benefits for the University's employees compensated from a 
trust fund or other source during 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $844,642, $732,558, and $579,426, 
respectively. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the University recognized OPEB expense of $5,223,710, which 
is comprised of the following: 

Contractually required expense - State 2,536,743$       
Contractually required expense - University 844,642            
Actuarially calculated expense 1,842,325         

Total 5,223,710$       
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

At June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred 
outflows of 
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Changes of assumptions -$                  3,295,905$       
Net differences between projected and actual 
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments -                    53,092              
Difference between expected and actual experience -                    66,907              
Changes in proportion due to internal allocation 4,666,471         -                    
Changes in proportion from Commonwealth 60,904              -                    
University contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 844,642            -                    

Total 5,572,017$       3,415,904$       

The $844,642 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from University 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources as a result of the University's requirement to contribute 
to the Plan will be recognized in expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30,
2019 274,635$          
2020 274,635            
2021 274,635            
2022 274,635            
2023 212,931            

Total 1,311,471$       

The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2017 rolled back to June 30, 2016. The total OPEB liability for the 
June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 
rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This valuation used the following assumptions: 

1. The following annual healthcare cost trend rates: (1) 8.5%, decreasing by 0.5% each year to 
an ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2024 for medical, (2) 5.0% for EGWP and (3) 5.0% for 
administration costs. 

2. The mortality rate was in accordance with RP 2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table projected 
with scale MP-2016 from the central year, with females set forward one year. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

3. Participation rates: 

(i) 100% of all retirees who currently have health care coverage will continue with the 
same coverage, except that retirees under age 65 with POS/PPO coverage switch to 
Indemnity at age 65 and those over age 65 with POS/PPO coverage switch to HMO. 

(ii) All current retirees, other than those indicated on the census data as not being eligible 
by Medicare, have Medicare coverage upon attainment of age 65, as do their spouses. 
All future retirees are assumed to have Medicare coverage upon attainment of age 65. 

(iii) 80% of current and future contingent eligible participants will elect health care benefits 
at age 65, or current age if later. 

(iv) Actives, upon retirement, take coverage, and are assumed to have the following 
coverage: 

Under 65 Age 65 +

Indemnity 40.0% 85.0%
POS/PPO 50.0% 0.0%
HMO 10.0% 15.0%

Retirement age

Investment assets of the Plan are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust ("PRIT") Fund. The 
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage. Best 
estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset class Target allocation 2017 2016

Global Equity 40.00% 5.00% 6.90%
Portfolio Completion Strategies 13.00% 3.60% 3.60%
Core Fixed Income 12.00% 1.10% 1.60%
Private Equity 11.00% 6.60% 8.70%
Value Added Fixed Income 10.00% 3.80% 4.80%
Real Estate 10.00% 3.60% 4.60%
Timber/Natural Resources 4.00% 3.20% 5.40%
Hedge Funds 0.00% 3.60% 4.00%

Total 100.00%

Long-term expected real 
rate of return
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The discount rates used to measure the OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 were 3.63% 
and 2.88%, respectively. These rates were based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index rates of 
3.58% and 2.85%, respectively, as of the measurement dates June 30, 2017 and 2016 and the 
expected rates of return. The plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. The projected "depletion date" when 
projected benefits are not covered by projected assets is 2023. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on plan investments of 7.50% per annum was not applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

The following presents the University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated 
using the discount rate as well as what the University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Measurement year ended 1% decrease Discount rate 1% increase

June 30, 2017  (a) 34,544,343$     29,100,266$     24,771,800$     
June 30, 2016  (b) 30,883,210       25,834,386       21,842,210       

(a) The discount rates as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 3.63% (current); 2.63% (1% 
decrease) and 4.63% (1% increase). 

(b) The discount rates as of June 30, 2016 are as follows: 2.88% (current); 1.88% (1% 
decrease) and 3.88% (1% increase). 

The following presents the University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated 
using the current healthcare cost trend rate as well as what the University's proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

Measurement year ended 1% decrease (b)
Healthcare cost 
trend rates (a) 1% increase (c)

June 30, 2017 24,076,769$     29,100,266$     35,710,884$     
June 30, 2016 21,372,286       25,834,386       31,746,873       

(a) The current healthcare cost trend rates are as follows: 9.0% (June 30, 2017) and 8.5% 
(June 30, 2016) for medical and 5.0% for both fiscal years 2017 and 2016 Employer Group 
Waiver Plan and administration costs. 

(b) The healthcare cost trend rates after a 1% decrease are as follows: 8.0% (June 30, 2017) 
and 7.5% (June 30, 2016) for medical and 4.0% for both fiscal years 2017 and 2016 
Employer Group Waiver Plan and administration costs. 

(c) The healthcare cost trend rates after a 1% increase are as follows: 10.0% (June 30, 2017) 
and 9.5% (June 30, 2016) for medical and 6.0% for both fiscal years 2017 and 2016 
Employer Group Waiver Plan and administration costs. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Detailed information about the OPEB plan's changes in net OPEB liability, fiduciary net position, 
and employees covered by benefit terms separately identified by a) Inactive employees currently 
receiving benefit payments, b) Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit 
payments, and c) Active employees is available in the Commonwealth's financial statements. 

Note 22 - Management Accounting and Reporting System 

Section 15C of Chapter 15A of the Massachusetts General Laws requires Commonwealth Colleges 
and Universities to report activity of campus based funds to the Comptroller of the Commonwealth 
on the Commonwealth's Statewide Accounting System, Massachusetts Management Accounting 
and Reporting System ("MMARS") using the statutory basis of accounting. The statutory basis of 
accounting is a modified accrual basis of accounting and differs from the information included in 
these financial statements. The amounts reported on MMARS meet the guidelines of the 
Comptroller's Guide for Higher Education Audited Financial Statements. 

State appropriations 
The University's State appropriations are comprised of the following for the years ended June 30, 
2018 and 2017: 

2018 2017

Gross State appropriations 28,236,072$      32,439,185$      

Add: Fringe benefits for benefited employees on the
Commonwealth payroll

Less: Day school tuition remitted to the Commonwealth
 and included in tuition and fee revenue (385,692)           (341,127)           

Net State appropriations 37,926,249$      41,544,804$      

10,075,869        9,446,746         

$37,753,236 and $37,022,123 represent appropriations for maintenance and payroll during 2018 
and 2017, respectively. $173,013 and $4,522,681 represent appropriations for capital 
improvements during 2018 and 2017, respectively. This amount is presented separately in the 
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

Day school tuition receipts and transfers have been recorded in an agency fund and had no 
material balance outstanding at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Note 23 - Risk management, commitments and contingencies 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Commonwealth is 
self-insured. In addition, the University maintains commercial insurance coverage for certain of 
those risks. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured 
losses for the covered risks. The separate insurance policies maintained by the University consist of 
Educator's Legal Liability, commercial crime, general liability, automobile liability, excess liability, 
and a foreign package policy. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from 
coverage in the prior year. The costs of settled claims have not exceeded policy coverages in any 
of the past three years. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

The University also participates in the Commonwealth's self-insured programs for employees 
workers' compensation, health care and other insurance. The Commonwealth assesses the costs of 
workers' compensation and unemployment insurance to the University based on the University's 
actual experience (see Note 7). The Commonwealth manages workers' compensation as part of its 
general operations. No separate fund for workers' compensation is provided for in Massachusetts 
General Laws. The Commonwealth assesses the costs of health care insurance to the University 
through a fringe benefit rate and the liability for such coverage is borne by the Commonwealth. The 
Commonwealth's Group Insurance Commission manages health insurance and other benefits for 
the Commonwealth's active and retired employees (see Note 21). 

Massachusetts General Laws limit the risk assumed by the Commonwealth for claims of personal 
injury or property damages to $100,000 per occurrence, in most circumstances. 

Pending or threatened lawsuits against governmental agencies arise in the ordinary course of 
operations. In the opinion of the University's administration, the ultimate resolution of any legal 
actions at this date will not result in a material loss to the University since most of any obligation is 
expected to be paid from State appropriated funds. 

The University receives significant financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form 
of grants. Expenditure of funds under these programs requires compliance with the grant 
agreements and are subject to audit by representatives of these federal and state agencies. Any 
disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits become a liability of the University. In the 
opinion of management, such liabilities, if any, are not expected to materially affect the financial 
condition of the University. 

The University participates in the Massachusetts University Savings Prepaid Tuition Program. This 
program allows participants to pay in advance (against a bond) for future tuition at the cost of tuition 
at the time of the bond purchase, increased by changes in the Consumer Price Index plus 2%. The 
University is obligated to accept as payment of tuition the amount determined by this Program 
without regard to the standard tuition rate in effect at the time of the individual's enrollment at the 
University. The effect of this program cannot be determined as it is contingent on future tuition 
increases and the bond purchasers who attend the University. 

The University has various capital projects that are currently in progress as of the date of the 
financial statements. These projects will be paid from funds appropriated and under the control of 
the DCAMM. The projects consist of renovations and improvements and have been recorded in the 
respective accounts. 

As of June 30, 2018, the collective bargaining agreements between the Board of Higher Education 
and two Employee Unions which impact the University have expired. New agreements have not yet 
been negotiated by the parties. Once the parties reach new agreements, the agreements are 
subject to approval by the Massachusetts Legislature and ratification by the Governor of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Accordingly, management cannot determine at this time, the 
impact, if any, that the results of the negotiations will have on the University's financial statements. 
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 24 - Pledge agreements 

In fiscal year 2012, the Independent Association of Framingham State Alumni ("Alumni 
Association") made a conditional promise to give (pledge) a total amount of $500,000 to either the 
Foundation and/or the University over a seven-year period beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 
2018. The condition to be met, amounts, and timing of annual gifts pursuant to the pledge 
agreement are more fully described in a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") among the 
Alumni Association, Foundation and University. The gifts shall be restricted-use gifts with the 
restricted use specified by the Alumni Association in writing at the time each gift payment is made 
pursuant to the MOU. During the years ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, the University 
received $41,621 and $93,739, respectively, in accordance with this agreement.  

In March, 2018, a donor made a conditional promise to give (pledge) a total amount of 
approximately $2,435,360 to the University through the Foundation over a 12-year period beginning 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2031. The purpose of the gift will be used to create the Mancuso 
Scholarship Fund within the Foundation, which will fund scholarships at the University. The 
conditions to be met, amounts, and timing of annual gifts pursuant to the pledge agreement are 
more fully described in a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") among the donor, Foundation 
and University. The gifts shall be restricted-use gifts with the restricted use specified by the donor in 
the MOU and the Scholarships shall be governed by the terms of a separate agreement between 
the donor and the University. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the University did not receive 
any contributions in accordance with this agreement.  

Note 25 - Danforth Art Center 

On September 25, 2017, the University, the Foundation and the Danforth Museum Corporation 
entered into a Founding Agreement, as amended on October 13, 2017, to create the Danforth Art 
Center at Framingham State University (the "Art Center"). Under the terms of the agreement, the 
Foundation acquired the Danforth art collection in the form of a contribution. In exchange, the 
Foundation, together with the University, have assumed responsibility for the collection, including 
but not limited to its care, maintenance, storage, protection, preservation, display, management, 
cataloging, and insurance. The Collection includes approximately 3,000 paintings, sculptures, 
prints, multimedia, and other works of art. The Danforth Museum building was acquired by MSCBA, 
and is currently undergoing a renovation which is anticipated to be completed in January 2019, at 
which time the Art Center will be begin operations. MSCBA intends to enter into a formal 
management agreement for the University's initial use of the building for the Art Center after current 
construction is completed. The University will use the building as a space for art classes, space for 
museum galleries for display of the art collection or special exhibitions, and space for administrative 
and support offices for the Art Center.  
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Note 26 - Correction of an error and change in accounting principle  

In fiscal year 2018, the University adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 75 ("GASB 75"), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, by recognizing a net OPEB liability of $29,763,265 as of July 1, 2016, which amount was 
provided to the University by the State, for the effect of retroactively applying the new standard. 
Subsequent to having issued its financial statements on November 14, 2018, the University was 
informed by the State of an error in the net OPEB liability allocated to the University. To correct this 
error, the University has reduced the amount recognized as of July 1, 2016 in connection with 
initially adopting GASB 75 by $3,928,879 to $25,834,386. Information was not available to 
recognize the impact on deferred inflows and outflows as of July 1, 2016 of initial adoption. 

The error in the net OPEB liability allocated by the State to the University also resulted in 
misstatements in the University's net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 as had been 
originally reported. Accordingly, the University has restated its financial statements to correct these 
errors as shown in the tables below: 

2018 
(as previously 
reported on 

November 14, 
2018) 

2018 
(as restated) Effect of change 

Statement of Net Position: 

Deferred outflows - OPEB 
Net OPEB liability 
Deferred inflows - OPEB 
Unrestricted net position 
Total net position 

$       6,290,953 
32,912,333 

4,380,713 
6,270,128 

118,750,953 

$       5,572,017 
29,100,266 

3,415,904 
10,328,068 

122,808,893 

$ (718,936) 
(3,812,067) 

(964,809) 
4,057,940 
4,057,940 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position: 

Institutional support 
Increase (decrease) in net position 

11,819,402 
(6,138,980) 

11,690,341 
(6,009,919) 

(129,061) 
129,061 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2017
(as previously 
reported on 

November 14, 
2018)

2017
(as restated) Effect of change

Statement of Net Position:

Net OPEB liability 29,763,265$      25,834,386$      (3,928,879)$      
Unrestricted net position 14,989,295        18,918,174        3,928,879          
Total net position 124,889,933      128,818,812      3,928,879          
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Schedule of the University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
and Schedule of University Contributions 

June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

University's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
University's covered payroll 
University's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 
liability 

0.1167% 0.1053% 0.1116% 
$ 14,961,538 $ 14,519,987 $ 12,702,384 $ 
$ 37,912,752 $ 37,366,419 $ 35,597,813 $ 

39.46% 38.86% 35.68% 

67.21% 63.48% 67.87% 

0.0835% 
6,196,704 

33,398,731 

18.55% 

76.32% 

$ 
$ 

0.0800% 
7,112,594 

31,176,819 

22.81% 

70.31% 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30. 

Schedule of University Contributions 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually required contribution 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 

$ 4,756,235 $ 3,954,770 $      3,623,513 $ 
(4,756,235) (3,954,770) (3,623,513) 

3,710,142 
(3,710,142) 

$ 2,679,992 
(2,679,992) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

University's covered payroll 
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 37,912,752 $ 37,366,419 $ 35,597,813 $ 
12.55% 10.58% 10.18% 

33,398,731 
11.11% 

$ 31,176,819 
8.60% 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3 and Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Required Supplementary Pension Information 
June 30, 2018 

Note 1 - Changes in Pension Plan benefit terms and assumptions 

FY 2017 Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

Changes in benefit terms 

Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2014 established an early retirement incentive ("ERI") program for certain 
employees of the highway division of the Massachusetts Department of Transportation whose 
positions have been eliminated due to the automation of toll collections. Most members retiring 
under the ERI program had a date retirement of October 28, 2016. 112 members took the ERI and 
retired during fiscal year 2017. As a result, the total pension liability of MSERS increased by 
approximately $10 million as of June 30, 2017. 

Changes in assumptions 

The mortality assumptions changed as follows: 

 Pre-retirement - was changed to RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016 set forward one year for females from RP-2000 
Employees table projected generationally with scale BB and a base year of 2009 (gender 
distinct). 

 Post-retirement - was changed to RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant table projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2016 set forward one year for females from RP-2000 Healthy 
Annuitant table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2009 (gender 
distinct). 

 Disabled members - is assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant 
Table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2015 (gender distinct), and 
is unchanged from the prior valuation. 

FY 2016 Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

Changes in benefit terms 

Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011 created a one-time election for eligible members of the Optional 
Retirement Plan ("ORP") to transfer to the Massachusetts State Employee's Retirement System 
("MSERS") and purchase service for the period while members of the ORP. As a result, the total 
pension liability of MSERS has increased by approximately $400 million as of June 30, 2016. 

Note 2 - Other information 

This schedule is intended to present 10 years of data. Additional years will be presented when 
available. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Schedule of the University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability 
and Schedule of University Contributions 

June 30, 2018 

2018 2017

University's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset) 0.1664% 0.1363%
University's proportionate share of the total OPEB liability (asset) 30,758,621$      27,014,648$      

Less: University's proportionate share of Plan fiduciary net position 1,658,355          1,180,262          
University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 29,100,266$      25,834,386$      
University's covered payroll 37,912,752$      37,366,419$      

University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 76.76% 69.14%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 5.39% 4.37%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30.
2018 2017

Contractually required contribution 3,381,385$        2,986,143$        
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (3,381,385)        (2,986,143)        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  

University's covered payroll 37,912,752$      37,366,419$      
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.92% 7.99%

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3 and Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Notes to Required Supplementary OPEB Information 
June 30, 2018 

Note 1 - Changes in OPEB plan benefit terms and assumptions 

There are no changes in plan benefit terms and assumptions since the actuarial valuation as of 
January 1, 2017 is the initial actuarial valuation performed for the plan. 

Note 2 - Other information 

This schedule is intended to present 10 years of data. Additional years will be presented when 
available. 

Detained information about the OPEB plan's changes in net OPEB liability and changes in the 
plan's fiduciary net position are not available to the University and, accordingly, are not presented in 
the schedule. This information is available in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' financial 
statements. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund Activity 
June 30, 2018 

The University's Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund non-classified Statements of 
Net Position at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Statements of Net Position 

Residence 
Residence Hall Damage
Hall Fund Fund

Assets
Cash 4,099,425$        434,789$          
Accounts receivable 202,768            38,442              

Total assets 4,302,193         473,231            

Liabilities
Accounts payable 15,249              -                    
Salaries and fringe benefits 74,462              -                    
Compensated absences 304,767            -                    
Deposits 294,152            -                    

Total liabilities 688,630            -                    

Net position 3,613,563$        473,231$          
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund Activity 
June 30, 2018 

The University's Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position (presented in accordance with the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts' Expenditure Classification plan) for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Residence 
Residence Hall Damage
Hall Fund Fund

Revenue
Student tuition and fees 15,655,868$    93,566$           
Less: Scholarship allowances (287,949)         -                  

Net student tuition and fees 15,367,919      93,566            

Interest 10,699            -                  
Commissions 57,738            -                  
Rentals 86,305            -                  
Auxiliary services fees and other revenue 90,565            -                  

Total revenues 15,613,226      93,566            

Transfer in (external) 8,100              -                  

Expenses
Regular employee compensation 1,376,729        -                  
Regular employee related expenses 6,202              -                  
Special employee/contract services 1,172,913        -                  
Pension and insurance 482,413           -                  
Administrative expenses 267,788           -                  
Facility operating supplies and related expenses 150,723           -                  

   Consultant services 2,476              -                  
Operational services 19,234            -                  
Equipment purchases 28,409            -                  
Equipment lease - purchase, lease, rent, repair 198,661           -                  
Purchased client service and programs 3,274              -                  
Buildings improvements 173,595           21,048            
Information technology 29,387            10,183            
Loans and special payments 9,943,631        -                  

Total expenses 13,855,435      31,231            

86 



 
    

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
        

      
  

Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund Activity 
June 30, 2018 

Residence 
Residence Hall Damage
Hall Fund Fund

Transfer out (external)
Electricity 1,568,320 -                  
Laundry and cleaning 70,000 -                  
Health services reimbuirsement 50,000 -                  
General expenses 70,328

Total transfer out (external) 1,758,648        -                  

Increase (decrease) in net position 7,243              62,335            

Net position - beginning of year 3,606,320 410,896           

Net position - end of year 3,613,563$      473,231$         

The above Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position do not include an 
allocation of the current year charge for workers' compensation as estimated by the Commonwealth's 
actuarial review. It is not practical to allocate any such amount to any specific trust fund. 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Supplemental Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Schedule of Net Position by Category

2013 (2) 2014 (2) 2015 2016 2017 (4) 2018

Net investment in capital assets  $   41,448,701  $   52,034,054  $      84,138,157  $      97,567,357  $   104,693,789  $   107,501,952 

Restricted-expendable 3,805,464 3,905,599 2,516,075 2,562,269 3,118,277 2,820,618

Restricted-nonexpendable 1,925,721 1,970,057 1,996,750 2,045,582 2,088,572 2,158,255

Unrestricted 31,978,129 36,838,098 37,341,806 39,648,488 18,918,174 10,328,068

Total net position  $   79,158,015  $   94,747,808  $    125,992,788  $    141,823,696  $   128,818,812  $   122,808,893 

Sources and Uses of Funds

2013 (2) 2014 (2) 2015 2016 2017 2018

Source of Revenue

Student charges (net of scholarships) (3) 33,283,040$    33,486,009$    33,644,723$       34,315,628$       35,394,918$     35,227,444$     

Grants and contracts 6,706,251 7,480,144 9,933,830 12,284,096 9,882,318 8,030,560

Auxiliary enterprises 13,106,652 13,739,521 14,208,692 14,706,516 15,630,123 16,001,360

Other operating revenue 2,224,319 2,087,533 1,689,136 2,038,867 3,116,759 3,661,029

Total operating revenue 55,320,262      56,793,207      59,476,381         63,345,107         64,024,118       62,920,393       

State support 27,584,390 30,676,068 32,664,050 35,477,537 37,022,123 37,753,236

Other non-operating revenue 4,296,226 12,202,066 36,483,195 21,925,262 16,882,314 5,397,172

Total non-operating revenue 31,880,616      42,878,134      69,147,245         57,402,799         53,904,437       43,150,408       

Total revenue 87,200,878$    99,671,341$    128,623,626$     120,747,906$     117,928,555$    106,070,801$    

Functional Expense

Instruction 26,225,721$    27,347,169$    29,049,792$       31,336,705$       33,811,638$     34,241,502$     

Research 18,537            90,386            1,508,571          1,630,714          1,732,248         112,467            

Academic support 9,343,322       9,974,585       9,998,548          11,852,251         12,835,835       13,869,676       

Student services 9,516,596       10,513,003      11,158,061         11,911,904         13,214,323       13,682,206       

Institutional support 7,828,181       7,858,572       9,009,850          10,815,126         10,555,230       11,690,341       

Operations and maintenance of plant 11,149,462      11,087,924      11,167,239         11,440,601         12,352,552       12,790,568       

Scholarships (3) -                     -                     -                        -                        -                      -                      

Sub-total 64,081,819      66,871,639      71,892,061         78,987,301         84,501,826       86,386,760       

Auxiliary enterprises 10,982,802      11,907,599      12,099,652         10,395,641         13,601,357       13,866,466       

Total operating expense 75,064,621      78,779,238      83,991,713         89,382,942         98,103,183       100,253,226     

Other non-operating expense 778,700          1,315,343       2,072,255          10,798,765         32,830,256       11,827,494       

Total non-operating expense 778,700          1,315,343       2,072,255          10,798,765         32,830,256       11,827,494       

Total expense 75,843,321$    80,094,581$    86,063,968$       100,181,707$     130,933,439$    112,080,720$    

(4) FY17 has been restated to reflect the incorporation of GASB 75 post-employment benefits (OPEB) 

(3) In FY18, endowment scholarship expenses were reclassified and included in the Net Student Charges Revenue line; FY13 - FY17 amounts have been 

restated above but will not agree with the published financial statements for these years.

(2) FY13 & FY14 have been restated based upon the new IPEDS allocation methodology deployed for FYE15.  

(1)  These schedules do not include the component unit, Framingham State University Foundation, Inc.; total operating expense does not 

include depreciation.

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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Framingham State University
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Supplemental Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Schedule of Capital Asset Information 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Land (acreage) (1)(7) 51.28 51.28 53.00 54.00 143.18 143.18 145.16 

Buildings (square feet) 
100 Instruction /classroom (6) 49,482 49,482 49,482 49,482 49,482 53,467 53,467 
200 Labs (4)(7) 69,875 69,875 69,875 69,875 124,875 124,875 132,875 
300 Administrative (6) 83,857 83,857 83,857 94,325 94,325 119,262 119,262 
400 Study facilities (6) 54,565 54,565 54,565 54,565 54,565 58,862 58,862 
52x Athletic 49,709 49,709 49,709 53,449 53,449 53,449 53,449 
5xx Other Special Use (1)(6)(7) 8,852 8,852 31,706 31,706 114,106 122,506 138,506 
600 General Use (6) 56,311 56,311 56,311 56,311 56,311 76,023 76,023 
700 Support facilities (2) (6) 138,165 138,165 138,165 138,165 154,425 156,785 156,785

 000 Unclassified - - - -
Unassigned/unassignable (6) 

Total Square Feet 
154,688 
665,504 

154,688 
665,504 

154,688 
688,358 

154,688 
702,566 

154,688 
856,226 

164,397 
929,626 

164,397 
953,626 

Residence Halls (3) (5) 469,645 469,645 539,045 539,045 545,795 562,728 562,728 

Rental space - 6,613 6,613 6,613 6,613 - -

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Dormitories - # of residents (1) 1,946 1,946 1,940 1,890 1,876 1,875 1,838 

Note:  Classification of facilities space is consisent with Facilities Inventory and 
Classification Code guide. 

(1) FY16 Added the Warren Conference Center 
(2) FY16 Added 2 Perini Buildings 
(3) Residence Hall # of residents is based upon the average of the Spring and Fall occupancy the calendar year, e.g. 2017 = 
Spring 2017 + Fall 2017. 
(4) FY16 Added Hemenway Labs 
(5) FY17 Add West Hall/move O'Connor 
(6) FY17 Add O'Connor 
(7) FY18 Add Maynard Building, 14 Vernon Street 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Supplemental Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Schedule of Tuition and Mandatory Fees

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Resident Undergraduate

Tuition 970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          970$          

Mandatory Fees 5,171 5,570 6,095 6,610 7,110 7,110 7,350 7,730 8,370 8,950

  Total 6,141$       6,540$       7,065$       7,580$       8,080$       8,080$       8,320$       8,700$       9,340$       9,920$       

Non Resident Undergraduate

Tuition 7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       7,050$       

Mandatory Fees 5,171 5,570 6,095 6,610 7,110 7,110 7,350 7,730 8,370 8,950

  Total 12,221$     12,620$     13,145$     13,660$     14,160$     14,160$     14,400$     14,780$     15,420$     16,000$     

Resident Graduate 

Tuition 1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       1,675$       

Mandatory Fees 5,171 5,570 6,095 6,610 7,110 7,110 7,350 7,730 8,370 8,950

  Total 6,846$       7,245$       7,770$       8,285$       8,785$       8,785$       9,025$       9,405$       10,045$     10,625$     

Note: Tuition and fee amounts are for a full-time student per academic year.  These amounts exclude residence hall room and board.

Academic Year

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Supplemental Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Admissions-Freshman  (1) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Applications 4,620 4,108 4,542 6,254 6,985 6,902 6,665 6,189 7,525 7,438

Applications accepted 2,999 2,744 3,016 3,668 3,733 3,903 4,110 4,239 4,866 4,946

Accepted as a percentage of applications 65% 67% 66% 59% 53% 57% 62% 68% 65% 66%

Students enrolled (2) 991 1,147 1,237 1,442 1,407 1,341 1,338 1,358 1,242 1,289

Enrolled as a percentage of accepted 33% 42% 41% 39% 38% 34% 33% 32% 26% 26%

(1)  Includes all undergraduate admissions including transfer students.

(2)  Includes only students who were accepted and enrolled. Enrolled alone would include students who were not accepted

      but enrolled as non-degree seeking students.

Enrollment 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Full-time equivalent 4,237 4,213 4,288 4,710 4,909 4,942 4,996 4,881 4,732 4,537

Unduplicated credit headcount 6,086 5,989 5,953 6,415 6,506 6,429 6,499 6,398 5,977 5,691

Percent undergraduate  (3) 65% 64% 65% 67% 69% 71% 71% 70% 73% 73%

Percent graduate 35% 36% 35% 33% 31% 29% 29% 30% 27% 27%

(3)  Percent undergraduate/graduate based on Fall semester registration, unduplicated headcount.

Student Population Demographics  (4) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Percentage of men 30% 28% 30% 31% 32% 32% 32% 33% 35% 35%

Percentage of women 70% 72% 70% 69% 68% 68% 68% 67% 65% 65%

Percentage of African-American 4% 4% 5% 6% 6% 6% 6% 7% 8% 9%

Percentage of White 88% 89% 86% 84% 82% 83% 82% 77% 74% 71%

Percentage of Latino 4% 4% 5% 6% 8% 8% 9% 10% 10% 12%

Percentage of  Other (5) 4% 3% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3% 7% 8% 8%

< 20 18% 19% 20% 22% 21% 21% 20% 24% 25% 24%

20 to 30 51% 51% 51% 50% 53% 54% 55% 51% 52% 53%

31 to 40 13% 12% 13% 12% 12% 11% 12% 12% 11% 11%

41 & Over 18% 18% 16% 16% 14% 14% 14% 13% 12% 12%

(4)  Percents within category are based on population of students who reported this information (gender, race/ethnicity, 

      and age).

(5)  Other includes Asian or Pacific Islander, American Indian, Alaskan Native, and Cape Verdean.

Degrees Granted FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

Bachelor's 662 722 728 703 735 795 908 968 1,012 914

Master's 410 545 430 546 426 538 414 496 453 469

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Supplemental Statistical Information (Unaudited) 

Schedule of Employment

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Faculty - Primary Instruction
   /1 /2

264              250              257              261              312                  318                  366                  529                  530                  536                  

Part-time 99                81                96                97                136                  136                  174                  143                  140                  143                  

Part-time CE Instructors 182                  185                  187                  

Full-time 165              169              161              164              176                  182                  192                  204                  205                  206                  

Staff and Administrators 296              287              276              293              310                  315                  314                  322                  334                  340                  

Part-time 6                  5                  7                  7                  9                      9                      10                    8                      8                      9                      

Full-time 290              282              269              286              301                  306                  304                  314                  326                  331                  

Total Employees 560              537              533              554              622                  633                  680                  851                  864                  876                  

Part-time 105              86                103              104              145                  145                  184                  333                  333                  339                  

Full-time 455              451              430              450              477                  488                  496                  518                  531                  537                  

/1  Includes Instruction, Research and Public Service

/2 As of 2015, Part time Faculty also include all Continuing Education part time instructors

Note:  This schedule reflects personnel as of November 1 and includes employees paid from both 

state appropriation and local trust funds.

See Independent Auditor's Report on Page 3. 
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CohnReznick LLP 
cohnreznick.com 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
Framingham State University 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities and discretely presented component unit of Framingham State University (the "University") (a 
department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 14, 2018, except for Note 26 to the 
financial statements which is dated March 14, 2019, which included emphasis of matter paragraphs as 
indicated on page 4. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial 
statements of Framingham State University Foundation, Inc., as described in our report on Framingham 
State University's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' 
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on 
separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's internal 
control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Cohn Reznick~ 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 

March 14, 2019 

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Boston, Massachusetts 
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Framingham State University 
(a department of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

There were no findings noted in the audit on the financial statements of Framingham State University 
for the year ended June 30, 2018, conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
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Roger A. Tiwari 
308 Lowell Street Somerville, MA 02145 – (617) 767-9128 – rogeratiwari@gmail.com 

Education 
Framingham State University, Framingham, MA 
Candidate for B.S. in Business Management/Information Technology 
Expected graduation: Spring 2020 
Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA 
A.A. in Liberal Arts 
2016-2018 
Phi Thetta Kappa Honor Member 

Professional Work Experience 
Chubb & Sonn - Business Analyst Intern (Warren, NJ) Jun.2013 - Dec. 2015 

• Created various profiles, roles, page layouts, and configured the permissions based on the organization hierar-

chy requirements 

• Collaborated with the Lead Business Analyst and Project Manager to monitor progress and the deliverables for 

the internal insurance system project 

• Interface with clients from Operations, Marketing, Sales, Technologies, and Outside Vendors and act as their 

customer interface point as the lead of the Projects 

• Authored various Use Cases and Activity diagrams, Sequence diagrams, business process flow diagrams, and 

define the Data Flow Diagrams 

Savingstar- Data Entry Clerk (Waltham, MA) Jan.2012 - May.2013 

• Entered data from source documents into computer database, files and forms 

• Updated data and deleted unnecessary files 

AT&T Nationwide College Tour- Field Marketing Manager (Boston, MA) Jan.2013 - Jan.2014 

• Managed 12 Brand Ambassadors at various locations throughout Boston 

• Provided client with an in-depth report of each university executed 

• Distributed promotional swag (i.e. USB Car Adapter) 

• Created social media buzz by convincing college students to take the pledge and share on Facebook, Instagram 

and Twitter on their personal device 

BMW Ride N Drive – Product Specialist (Worcester, MA) Jan.2011 - Dec.2012 

• Created informational and engaging presentations of product lines to demonstrate features for BMW new and 

existing client 

• Ensured that consumers followed the designated test drive route and monitored safety of consumers 

• Arrived on-site educated on all BMW vehicles, with the ability to answer basic consumer question 

TECHNICAL SKILLS: 

Project Methodologies: Agile, Waterfall, JAD UML, RUP, BPMN 

Roger A. Tiwari 

mailto:rogeratiwari@gmail.com


   

         

       

           

         

            

          

          

         

Business Modeling Tools: MS Visio, Rational Rose 

Requirement Management Tools: Rational RequisitePro 

Defect Tracking Tools: Rational Clear Quest, Quality Center, Bugzilla 

Operating Systems: UNIX, Windows and Mac 

RDBMS: MS SQL Server, Oracle, Load runner, TOAD, Informatica 

Reporting Tools: Business Objects and Crystal Reports 

Languages: SQL/PLSQL, IOS, HTML, CSS and Javascript 

Business Applications: Microsoft Office Suite 

Roger A. Tiwari 
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